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KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
EaEEERAT

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETRBE

The financial year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Year”)
was marked by increased uncertainty and multi-faceted
challenges. | am delighted that Kin Yat Holdings Limited
(the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”), has been relatively able to maintain its
resilience amidst the operating difficulties. Our main task
ahead remains to upgrade our production capability and
automation in order to enhance overall competitiveness,
while contemplating new initiatives to strengthen and
diversity our production base in the longer term and
recouping the investments in our real estate development
business segment.

° Consolidated turnover increased 39.1% year-on-
year to a record high of HK$4,221,878,000 (2018:
HK$3,034,274,000);

° Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
was HK$112,384,000 (2018: HK$149,821,000);
inclusive of:

o recognition of subsidy income of
HK$46,147,000 (2018: HK$69,840,000);

° a write-back of impairment in properties
under development of HK$4,582,000 made in
previous year;

° write-back of impairment in property, plant and
equipment of HK$7,189,000 (2018: Nil);

o fair value gain on investment properties of
HK$5,383,000 (2018: HK$4,935,000); and

o gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
HK$10,126,000 made in previous year.

° Before inclusion of those one-off gains/expenses
including the recognition of subsidy income, write-
back of impairment of properties under development,
write-back of impairment of property, plant and
equipment, fair value gain on investment properties
and gain on disposal of subsidiaries, a profit (before
non-controlling interests) of HK$53,665,000 (2018:
HK$60,338,000) was recorded; and

o Basic earnings per share for the Year were HK25.61
cents (FY2018: HK34.71 cents).
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KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

STRATEGIES AND OUTLOOK

In the Management Discussion and Analysis chapter, we
will have a look back on our activities during the Year.
Before we go into details of our performance, | would like
to discuss some of the challenges our industry faces and
our strategies to cope with them.

Macroeconomic Challenges

While the Sino-US trade war is bringing shocks to the
global economy, China’s manufacturing sector has in
fact been facing multiple challenges even before the tariff
hikes.

With years of wealth accumulation and the ageing of
the population, China’s ‘demographic dividend’ is fast
diminishing. Consequently, labour shortage has become
a major obstacle for Mainland-based manufacturers,
in particular those engaged in more labour-intensive
operations.

Second, as China transforms its ‘the world’s factory’
position, its industrial policies and the regulatory
environment have evolved in a bid to upgrade the
industrial sector. While this will be beneficial to the long-
term development of the country, industry is hit by the
consequent policy changes, tightened administrative
control and escalated legislative costs during the process
of transformation.

Third, manufacturers in China continue to face the
pressure of high costs despite the economic slowdown.
The costs of human resources, energy and other overhead
expenses have escalated over the past few years, cutting
into the profit margins of many manufacturers. Given
the fact that the number of workers employed under our
manufacturing business is relatively high due mainly to the
large scale of operation and also the particular production
process, our Group has inevitably been affected by these
surging costs.

On a more positive note for the Group, signs point to a
further depreciation of the Renminbi, which will benefit our
manufacturing business, particularly our Motors operation
of which a substantial portion of the materials is procured
from the Mainland.
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KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETRBE

STRATEGIES AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Medium-term Initiatives

The Group’s profit decline during the Year was mainly
attributable to an overloading of our facilities for robotics
production and the increase in operating costs. Going
forward, we will strive to achieve a more even distribution
of production throughout the year in order to keep the
costs in check. We will also avoid engaging in aggressive
market share competition, but aim to pursue a more
balanced flow of orders. This will help ease the tight
production situation, especially in Shenzhen where labour
shortage is most acute.

Overall, the labour shortage problem in China is expected
to ease in the coming years, following the slowdown in
manufacturing activities. Nevertheless, we will continue to
seek to increase the degree of automation at our facilities
as a means to reduce our reliance on manpower. The
introduction of more automated processes will also help
enhance the quality and consistency of our production.

Automation is complemented with digitisation and lean
manufacturing to further enhance our efficiency and
precision of work, and thus competence in the delivery of
products with higher technological content.

More importantly, the Group endeavours to speed up
the recouping of investments made in the real estate
development projects so as to build a war chest to cope
with the challenges and market uncertainties mainly
caused by the escalating operating costs in China and
also the ongoing Sino-US trade war.

Long-term Strategies

In order to secure our cost advantage and
competitiveness, the diversification of our production
base is always a key consideration in our long-term
development plan. Over the past two decades, the
Group has expanded its production base further inland
in phases from Shenzhen to Shixing Shaoguan, then
from Guangdong Province to Dushan County in Guizhou
Province. Currently, a very substantial portion of our
electrical and electronic products in terms of turnover are
manufactured in Shenzhen, with the remaining balance
from our Shixing and Dushan bases. For the motors
segment, the distribution between Shixing and Dushan is
about 70% to 30%, with a small portion being produced in
Malaysia.
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KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

STRATEGIES AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Long-term Strategies (continued)

Planning for further diversification has been ongoing, and
the Sino-US trade war has expedited the need to consider
locations outside China. Under study and site inspection
are locations in Asia, such as Myanmar, India and
Vietnam, where we are able to enjoy demographic and
cost advantages. The Group is already operating a small-
scale plant in Malaysia for the motors segment, and a
new production line for motor drives will be added to this
location in July 2019. Plans are also underway to establish
production lines in Malaysia for some |oT and baby items.

Among the locations under consideration, Myanmar’s
low labour costs and young population provide strong
incentives for manufacturers. However, due consideration
will be given to the suitability of products to be
manufactured for exporting to the US. India and Vietnam
are both highly industrialised with relatively mature
infrastructure and supply chains, although both locations
now witness rising costs and increasing shortage of
labour. Before proceeding further, we will carefully monitor
and weigh the impact of the recent removal of India from
the US’ privileged trading programme.

Despite its surging costs, China will remain a strong
production base for the Group and indeed for the
electrical and electronic products sector. For sophisticated
robotics and motors manufacturing, China has the
advantage of a comprehensive supply chain and skilled
labour, which is still not easy replaceable elsewhere.
Notwithstanding our diversification consideration, the
Group will continue to retain a substantial manufacturing
base in China.

Finally, the management noted the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government’s re-industrialisation
efforts in recent years, which include support for Hong
Kong enterprises to operate in local industrial estates, as
well as assistance to the industrial sector to accelerate the
adoption of Industry 4.0-related technologies. The Group
will carry out studies and visits, but no concrete plan or
timetable has been concluded yet.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETRBE

STRATEGIES AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Long-term Strategies (continued)

The board of directors (the “Board”) and management will
carefully weigh the pros and cons of each feasible location
before proceeding cautiously with the diversification plan.
The Board is cautiously optimistic about the coming
financial year but will prudently guard the Group against
the risks associated with the macroeconomic turbulences
and market landscape shifts.

Financial Management

With total bank borrowings at HK$810,106,000 as at
31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: HK$531,890,000), the
Group has maintained a gearing ratio (bank borrowings
divided by total equity) of approximately 67.0% (31 March
2018: 45.9%).

The Group will continue to maintain a strong financial
position, and will allocate funding from internal resources
and bank borrowings to support our necessary capital
expenditures for the development of our core businesses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is an industrial enterprise specialising in the
technology-driven production of electrical and electronic
products, including robotics, Internet of things (“loT”) and
smart home items, along with a diverse portfolio of motor
drives and related products. The latest addition of a glass
technology and application segment has further extended
our manufacturing scope. The Group is also engaged
in certain real estate development projects in Guizhou
Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

The Sino-US trade war has not had much adverse
impact on the Group as a whole during the Year in terms
of business turnover. Business momentum remained
strong for the robotics and motors product lines. The
Group’s consolidated turnover increased by 39.1% year-
on-year to HK$4,221,878,000 during the Year (2018:
HK$3,034,274,000). This turnover growth helped set
another record high for the Group, and was driven both
by its electrical and electronics and motors businesses.
Set out below is a breakdown of the Group’s segmental
external turnover:

° HK$3,166,417,000 from the electrical and
electronic products business, representing 75.0%
of the consolidated turnover of the Group for the
Year (2018: HK$2,137,529,000; 70.1%);

o HK$972,817,000 from the motors business,
contributing 23.0% of the consolidated turnover
(2018: HK$896,745,000; 29.9%); and

° HK$82,644,000 from the new business segment
- glass technology and application business,
accounting for 2.0% of the consolidated turnover
(2018: Nil; 0%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

EEENmKR D

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS (continued)

Basic earnings per share for the Year were HK25.61 cents
(2018: HK84.71 cents).

The table below sets out the results of the Group by
business segment, together with the comparative figures
of the previous year:

Results by business segment EBoBEER
Electrical and electronic products ERNLEFEM

Motors E

Glass technology and application I i MR R E S
Real estate development i EE R
Resources development BRI

Total segment results SRR

Amidst a challenging operating environment, the Group’s
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
declined 25.0% year-on-year to HK$112,384,000 (2018:
HK$149,821,000). Before inclusion of those one-off gains/
expenses including the recognition of subsidy income of
HK$46,147,000 (2018: HK$69,840,000), write-back of
impairment of properties under development of nil (2018:
HK$4,582,000), write-back of impairment of property,
plant and equipment of HK$7,189,000 (2018: Nil), fair
value gain on investment properties of HK$5,383,000
(2018: HK$4,935,000), and gain on disposal of
subsidiaries of nil (2018: HK$10,126,000), a profit (before
non-controlling interests) of HK$53,665,000 (2018:
HK$60,338,000) was recorded.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS (continued)

The earnings decline was mainly due to the decrease
in profitability of the electrical and electronic products
segment and the motors segment, attributable to the
general increase in labour and material costs. The increase
in cost was aggravated by additional costs incurred owing
to an overloading of facilities during certain peak months
which outweighed the positive effect induced by the
mild depreciation in the Renminbi exchange rate against
the United States dollars during the Year. The facilities
overload was caused by an overlapping of orders resulting
from the postponement of substantial robotic product
orders by a client towards the end of 2018, thereby
upsetting the production schedule. In particular, the surge
in labour costs and the problem of labour supply shortage
in the PRC were intense particularly during the last quarter
of the calendar year 2018 when a lot of manufacturers
were rushing to meet deadlines to cope with the tariffs
hike for goods to the market in United States.

Second, the Group’s plan was to utilise the new
production facilities in Dushan County, Guizhou Province
(“Dushan”) in order to fulfil increased orders. However,
there was a delay in the handover of the factory premises
by the Dushan County government, which has brought
interruption to the Group’s capacity expansion plan,
subsequent allocation of production and additional
manufacturing outsourcing expenses.

11
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Manufacturing Businesses

The Group now operates three manufacturing business
streams on three major production centres in the PRC.
Two of the production centres are based in Guangdong
Province, respectively in Songgang, Baoan District,
Shenzhen City (“Shenzhen”) and Shixing County,
Shaoguan City (“Shixing”). The third production centre
is located in Dushan. Additionally, a motor facility is in
operation in Malaysia.

During the Year, the Shenzhen centre continues to be
dedicated to high-value-added processes for robotics
and loT manufacturing, while Shixing centre is the major
production base for motor drives and other electrical and
electronic products. The Dushan centre currently houses
motors production, glass technology and application
business, and robotics sub-assembly business.

Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment

The segment is engaged in the development, design and
manufacture of: (i) artificial intelligence (“Al”) robotics, (ii)
oT, smart home and entertainment products, and (i)
other products such as home electrical appliances.

Driven by robust sales of robotic vacuum cleaners
(“RVC”), the juvenile series products and other Al robotic
products, segment external turnover grew 48.1% vyear-
on-year to HK$3,166,417,000 during the Year (2018:
HK$2,137,529,000). However, the general surge in labour
and material costs and additional outsourcing expenses
have brought the segment’s operating profit down 23.3%
year-on-year to HK$93,035,000 (2018: HK$121,252,000).

The increase in cost was partially caused by a general
labour shortage and more stringent social welfare
requirements in China. The postponement of a client’s
substantial robotic product orders also resulted in an
overlapping of production with some other scheduled
projects, and thus a short-term overloading of the facilities
in Shenzhen centre.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment (continued)

Going forward, there exists considerable uncertainties
in the global economic environment, and uncertainties
associated with the transition of China from an export-
led growth model to one that is domestic demand driven.
The Group maintains a stable and healthy outlook for the
electrical and electronic products segment in the coming
financial year, but will adopt a more conservative business
plan in order to control its risk exposure to the external
instabilities.

Robotics

With a strong foundation in robotics manufacturing, the
Group has sought to expand from its core RVC line to
other home-use and outdoor robots. During the Year, an
underwater robot has completed development and was
moved to production. In addition to home applications, the
Group has also taken up the research and development
(“R&D”) and production of robots with nursing functions,
a STEM kit set, and an educational robot for interactive
language learning.

From industry data, the demand for consumer robotic
products has remained strong. However, as the Sino-US
trade battle escalates, US brand owners and other clients
are increasingly cautious about sourcing from China.
Order placements tend to become more conservative as
competition in the market intensifies and uncertainties
continue to emerge.

In light of the challenges and market uncertainties, the
Group has strategised to maintain a more focused and
selective business portfolio. This will allow the Group to
utilise existing capacities more efficiently and thus seek
profit margin improvement in the longer term.

13

EEENWmE DM

(KO &)
BRI ()
EEREFERERAE(F)

RERK  2HEERBEDFERATHEE
o mPEERE N EREABEEATE
BIgR - MR THABRERINZ KL - HR
ERNETEREBIBRET —VREFEN
AR AEEREFRBERRERE - K
MEBRTHERBE - AEEIFRB AT
K E R o

WA
AEEERBRARE T ECREIIBERER
Y —EHRIRRZOBRERWMARINERE
HMRAMEIMEMAERE - XFER
—HKERABMAD TXABRLRALE -
bR K JE A S - AR B IR IE T 5T 5 3 ([
BDREEAGEEDEHEMA - STEM
(M2 M IENBER)EHLRARED
EERENHBEEMA

RTEBELNT  BEEHEMAERNT
KEKARES - BEEFXEZFHRFTETR
XEmBEEMEMEFHNETBERERD
BEE AR TIHHFNE B TEEEFE
FH - FTERBUEBRRT ©

EHRERBEETSIAREE AKED
HE RS R E A HMEEENER
e WRBERERERNEERGER -
YEBFSRAEREHEENHE -



KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
EaEEERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

EEENmKR D

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment (continued)

Robotics (continued)

On the other hand, the Group has not slowed its efforts
in furthering its technological edge and production
competence. In particular, the Group will work to
enhance its Al capability, which is expected to lead the
development of new breeds of robotics commanding
premium design and prices. Management notes the
prospect of innovation and technology development in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, and
will explore the opportunity of leveraging this huge R&D
platform in the future.

As discussed in our interim report for the six months
ended 30 September 2018, the utilisation rate of our
Shenzhen facilities has reached a high level, and the
Group originally planned to shift part of the robotics
supply chain to Dushan. However, owing to a delay in
the handover of the factory premises by the Dushan
County government, the capacity expansion plan has been
postponed. For the near term, the Group will adopt a more
selective approach in procuring orders, and will aim for a
more even distribution of production throughout the Year.

The Group is confident of the ongoing development of
its robotics business, which will remain the core of the
electrical and electronic products segment in the years
ahead.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment (continued)

Internet of Things, Smart Home and Entertainment
Products

Based on the premise of data-driven and machine
learning technologies acquired through years of
robotics manufacturing, the Group has gained ground
in the development of an array of IoT, smart home and
entertainment products.

These product lines have remained in relatively small
volumes, and the Group will continue to adopt a selective
pitching strategy in order to better allocate development
resources and production capacities. Among them,
the baby gear line and robotic products for pets have
continued to record stable sales. Development of a
wearable keyboard for inputting and controlling Bluetooth-
enabled devices is also ongoing.

The Group is optimistic about the sales of an
entertainment product series which will be carried in a new
line of theme parks based on a blockbuster movie. Two
parks have already been opened in the US, with one more
currently under construction in Europe. These additional
points of sale will help boost the business volume of
the product series. The pitching of other entertainment
projects will be more selective as the Group opts to go for
margin instead of volume growth.

Overall, the toys market is competitive with manufacturing
margins under pressure. In view of the tariffs imposed by
the US on Chinese-made products, the management has
been exploring the opportunity of relocating part of its
capacities to other Asian locations. Under consideration
is the setting up of pilot production lines for some loT
and baby products in Malaysia, as well as small-scale
production in Vietnam for entertainment items with
lower technological requirements. The feasibility of other
locations, including India, is also being examined. The
Group is well aware of the risks associated with the
relocation of manufacturing activities, and will proceed
cautiously with the establishment of trial production lines
before moving ahead on a larger scale.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Electrical and Electronic Products Business
Segment (continued)

Home Appliances/Electrical Appliances

The home appliances business line continued to witness
stable growth, with the introduction of new products
and acquisition of new business. The Group has built a
successful product portfolio, and is currently developing
an ODM line of electrical appliances and an innovative
home appliance featuring RFID technology.

This business line is expected to continue contributing
stable sales for the segment.

Motors Business Segment

The motors segment is engaged in the development,
design, manufacture and sale of electric motor drives and
related products. Its major facilities are currently located
in Shixing centre and Dushan centre, supplemented by
a production facility in Malaysia. Equipped with high-
precision technologies and equipment, this robust
production and R&D platform enables the segment to roll
out innovative and reliable deliverables for clients.

The segment strategically manages its product portfolio
to respond to market changes and capture technological
trends. In this direction, the segment has continued with
the development of larger motor drives and has debuted a
series of brushless motors.

Segment external turnover increased by 8.5% year-
on-year to a record level of HK$972,817,000 (2018:
HK$896,745,000) on the back of a robust order book,
and driven by the furtherance of strategic plans to expand
market share in various sectors particularly the home and
office appliances sectors. Amongst others, the further
increase in labour rates was one of the key factors drove
segment profit down by 22.4% to HK$56,793,000 (2018:
HK$73,204,000). To relieve the limiting effect of labour
shortage on the segment’s manufacturing activity, the
Group will continue to raise the level of automation at its
facilities.

16

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
HEZZ-NF=A=+—HILFEZFRH

AND ANALYSIS

(KO =)
B %R ()
EEREFESEKSHE ()

& T
%E%Wiﬁ FREER UREERHN
Eﬁ%ﬂﬂ&ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ‘% AEBERNEIRR
MEmRES  BAIERE -—ERRARED
BB 2R cn AR AN E PR ST SRR BRI RO T AR E ©

BHHEBEABERDBERMRBEHE -

EHEHFTH

BEMEBDBENERE Rt HERHEE
BWEES R NAEEM BRI X2 AERNE
R EP L RB L - B ERA
THAERE - RIENEENHE T ARG
SREERMEERE AIXBEBIEATR
HERIFMAENERAR °

%5‘5‘ DRHEMHESETREEE - UEE
S RBRM B - Bt m - oy
*E?iiiﬁ'ﬂ?éfﬁﬂ?@%%ﬁbﬁuu R dteh—

RY|EREH o

ERYNTESHEST  URIENHEZ
BHEs>mE (BREXBEERBAEART
B)REMSMEAREERT S - £ D EEIN
BEBITFI RS 5%E972,817,000/ T (=
T — )\4F : 896,745,000/ 7T) - LA % -
HPYBTTEKFE— S ERABERA éﬁz@
DHEHFI T $22.4% 556,793,000/ 7T (—

— J\4E : 73,204,000&7T) ° ZISE@M!@K&
FEEaE KT NEBL TEREEE
SEBMES o



ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-ZT-NFZA=T—HLEFEZFR

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Motors Business Segment (continued)

Given the segment’s insignificant direct export to the
US, the trade frictions did not bring substantial direct
impact on the motor business. However, the management
considers that a weakened global economy will have an
indirect but broad-based effect on all business sectors.
The Group will therefore adopt a more conservative
strategy for this segment in the year ahead. It will also
continue to develop and expand its domestic sales in the
PRC market, which is still relatively robust.

During the Year, the segment’s business was mainly
driven by the home and office appliances sectors,
while the Group is actively developing the automobile
market. The automobile line performed well and
delivered increased sales in spite of a negative growth in
automobile production and sales in China. The segment
has established capabilities in the production of motor for
headlights, rear-view mirrors and air-conditioning. Going
forward, it will expand into solutions that support other
functions such as door locks, sunroofs, seat adjusters,
windows lifts, electronic parking brakes and other assistive
facilities. The management will also seek to capture
opportunities that are expected to emerge from the
growth of electric cars.

Another key task for the management is to improve
the profit margin of the segment. In this connection,
the segment has sought to improve the operational
efficiency through optimisation of equipment utilisation,
and implement more stringent cost control measures.
In addition, the segment is also developing products of
higher value. To this end, the segment has expanded from
micro to mid-sized motors, and re-launched its alternating
current motor business after years of planning and
development.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Motors Business Segment (continued)

Efforts have also been made to enhance the technological
content of the segment’s motor drives in order to
achieve increased performance, reliability and durability.
In this direction, the segment has developed a line of
brushless direct current motors constructed with electrical
components. The advantages of brushless motors
over brushed motors include higher efficiency, reduced
operational noise, low electromagnetic interference, longer
lifespan, greater adjustability and precise movement
control. Brushless motors find applications in a broad
range of computer peripherals, hand-held tools and
vehicles.

As part of the segment’s proactive measures to address
the difficulties brought by the trade barriers, plans are
underway to diver its production base. A motor production
line is scheduled to be commissioned by July 2019 in
Malaysia, signifying our initial step toward the production
of motors outside China which expected to induce
demands from customers from Association of Southern
Asian Nations or Trans-Pacific Partnership member
countries which enjoy export tax concessions.

In view of the healthy business rollout of the motors
segment, the segment looks to the coming year with a
neutral stance, while holding an upward outlook for the
motors segment in the longer term, and we also caution
on the potential dampening effect of the ongoing Sino-US
trade war on the overall business environment.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Glass Technology and Application Segment

This new segment is engaged mainly in the sale and
downstream processing of glass including but not limited
to insulating glass, glass window modules and marble
glass products, as well as the design, manufacture
and installation of curtain wall systems. The segment is
basically engaged in domestic sales in the PRC with a
small amount of export sales of processed glass, and its
facilities are currently located in Dushan.

The Group holds a 64% interest in a glass technology
and application company, Progress Power-Saving Glass
Technology Company Limited (“PPSGT”), with a major
subsidiary, Chuangjian Jieneng Glass (Guizhou) Company
Limited operating in our Dushan centre. PPSGT has
become a subsidiary of the Group since August 2018, and
generated a segment turnover of HK$82,644,000 (2018:
Nil) after acquisition. A segment loss of HK$6,538,000
(2018: Nil) was incurred.

With the slower than expected collection of accounts
receivables from certain curtain wall projects for
government buildings since the end of 2018, despite
that the collectability of those receivables should not be
problematic as the developers are associated entities of
the government , the segment’s working capital turnover
rate has inevitably been affected.

With its capital-intensive business nature, management
expects capital recovery from this segment to be slow
considering a general slowdown in the PRC economy.
The Group has therefore adopted a more conservative
business strategy for this segment by downsizing the
operating scale and slowing down the expansion plan with
respect to other projects including the sale of advertising
rights on switchable project glass systems and the coating
of glass surfaces for electrochromic glass smart shading
systems.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Non-manufacturing Businesses

Real Estate Development Business Segment

During the Year, the Group was engaged in two residential
and commercial property development projects in
Dushan Economic Development Zone, namely The Royale
Cambridge Residences and The Jardin Montsouris.

The Royale Cambridge Residences
Phase 1 of this residential project was completed, with
sales ongoing at a slow pace.

Under HKFRS15, for properties which have no alternative
use to the Group and the Group has no enforceable right
to payment from the customer for performance completed
to date, the Group recognises revenue as the performance
obligations are satisfied at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the property and the Group
satisfies the performance obligations.

As at 31 March 2019, HKD72,297,000 was received for
its contracted sales of such property development.

The Group is confident of the long-term potential of this
property development, and will continue to maintain an
appropriate pace of development so as to maximise long-
term returns from the project.

The Jardin Montsouris

This resettlement project is located on a site opposite
to our The Royale Cambridge Residences project.
Construction works on Phase | of this project are ongoing,
and application is underway for a pre-sale permit.

The project was developed with an aim of providing
housing for residents in need of shabby town relocation
owing to resettlement. However, there has been a delay
in the county administration’s acquisition of units owing
to a change in local government officials during the Year.
Progress of this project has subsequently been slowed.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

Non-manufacturing Businesses (continued)

Real Estate Development Business Segment
(continued)

The Jardin Montsouris (continued)

Phase | of this development was finally fixed at six
residential buildings with a total saleable floor area for
residential units of approximately 200,000 square metres.
As sales to the government in respect of administration’s
acquisition of units for relocation purposes have slowed,
the segment has been in the process of soliciting sales
of the property units from resettlement in relation to
transportation projects such as the Dushan Station of the
Guiyang-Nanning High Speed Rail next to the site of our
project.

The management has confidence that this project will
make contribution to the cash flow and revenue stream of
the Group in the long-run.

The Group considers the two existing projects on hand
as one-off real estate development opportunities and
does not expect in general to tender for other property
development projects in other locations in the PRC.

DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per ordinary share,
totaling HK$13,168,000 were paid to the shareholders of
the Company on 11 January 2019.

In furtherance of the Company’s strategy of building up
war chest to cope with the uncertainties in the future, the
Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for
the Year (2018: HK7.0 cents per ordinary share).
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FINANCIAL CONDITIONS, LIQUIDITY
AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group primarily used its internally generated cash
flows and banking facilities to finance its operations
and business development. The Group has always
been executing a prudent and conservative strategy
in its financial management. As at 31 March 2019, the
Group had time deposits of HK$13,754,000 (31 March
2018: HK$11,645,000), cash and bank balances of
HK$227,170,000 (31 March 2018: HK$205,011,000),
and net current liabilities of HK$192,183,000 (31 March
2018: net current assets HK$358,993,000). As at 31
March 2019, shareholders’ equity was HK$1,205,512,000
(81 March 2018: HK$1,156,778,000). Total consolidated
banking facilities of the Group from all banks as at 31
March 2019 amounted to approximately HK$917,563,000
(31 March 2018: HK$983,074,000). As at 31 March 2019,
total bank borrowings amounted to HK$810,106,000 (31
March 2018: HK$531,890,000).

During the preparation of the annual results of the
Company for the Year, the management has found
out that, due to the oversight of the management, the
Company has not applied for obtaining waivers from
the relevant banks to waive their rights to demand for
repayment on demand with respect to certain long-
term bank loans (in an amount of approximately
HK$235,500,000) (the “LT Loans”) for the 12 months
period from 1 April 2019 (“Confirmation”). In accordance
with the relevant accounting standards, the LT Loans
shall be classified as current liabilities instead of non-
current liabilities as at 31 March 2019. As a result, as at
31 March 2019, the Group’s bank loan in the amount of
HK$484,750,000 had been classified as current liabilities.
Consequently, as at 31 March 2019, the Group had net
current liabilities and there was a non-compliance with the
financial covenant with respect to certain loan agreements
between the banks and the Group.
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KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL CONDITIONS, LIQUIDITY
AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (continued)

Subsequent to 31 March 2019, the Group has
successfully obtained (i) written consents from all relevant
banks to grant waiver to the Group for the compliance
with the relevant financial covenant; (i) Confirmation in
relation to all LT Loans (except for two long-term loans
amounting of HK$92,500,000 with scheduled repayment
dates beyond one year after 31 March 2019); and (jii)
confirmation from all relevant banks as a whole that
the banking facilities available to the Group will not be
demanded or cancelled such that they will continue to be
available to the Group for 12 months from 1 April 2019. In
view of the situation, the Group will implement measures,
inter alia, to monitor cash flows through cutting costs and
proactively take measures to accelerate the recouping
of investments in our real estate development business
and collections of outstanding receivables, and dispose
of non-core assets to enhance cashflow position. In view
of these, the directors of the Company believe that the
Group will have sufficient financial resources to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due within the next twelve months from the
end of the reporting period.

The Group has been in the investment mode in the past
two years particularly in the areas of equipment and
plant for production automation and property under
development. The management of the Company is of the
view that the Group is poised to reap the benefits of these
investment in the coming years.

However, in view of all uncertainties the Company faces,
particularly the trade dispute between the US and China,
the management adopted a more prudent strategy in
treasury management with an aim of building up war chest
to fight the possible future challenges.

As at 31 March 2019, the bank borrowings of the
Group was repayable within one year amounted to
HK$810,106,000 (31 March 2018: HK$237,140,000)
and the remaining balance of nil (31 March 2018:
HK$294,750,000) was repayable within second to fifth
years.
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KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
EaEEERAR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

EEENmKR D

FINANCIAL CONDITIONS, LIQUIDITY
AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the current ratio of the Group
(current assets divided by current liabilities) was
maintained at 0.9 times (31 March 2018: 1.3 times) and
the gearing ratio of the Group (total bank borrowings
divided by total equity) was 67.0% (31 March 2018:
45.9%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2019, the total issued share capital of
the Company was HK$43,896,000 (31 March 2018:
HK$43,846,000), comprising 438,960,000 (31 March
2018: 438,460,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

During the Year, the Company issued 500,000 ordinary
shares (31 March 2018: 10,100,000 ordinary shares)
upon exercise of share options granted to employees
of the Company under the share option scheme of the
Company.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

There was no charge on the Group’s assets as at 31
March 2019 (31 March 2018: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi or United States dollars. The Group does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy on it. In order
to manage and minimise the foreign exchange risk, the
management shall from time to time review and monitor
the foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
the significant foreign currency exposure when appropriate
and necessary.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s financial facilities are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi and interests on bank
borrowings are chargeable based on certain interest
margin over the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
and the People’s Bank of China lending rate which are
therefore of floating rate in nature. The Group has not
entered into any interest rate risk hedge to mitigate
exposure to interest rate risk during the Year.
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KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group employed around 11,000
full-time employees, of which less than 120 of them were
stationed in Hong Kong headquarters with the remaining
working in the PRC and Malaysia.

The Board’s remuneration committee of the Company
made recommendation to the Board on the policy and
structure of the Company for all remuneration of Directors,
reviewed and determined the remuneration package of
individual executive Director and senior management of
the Company with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives, responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere within the Group and in the
market. The Group remunerates its employees largely
in accordance with prevailing industry standards. In
Hong Kong, the Group’s employee benefits include staff
retirement scheme, medical scheme and performance
bonus. In the PRC and Malaysia, the Group provides its
employee’s staff welfare and allowances in accordance
with the prevailing labour laws. The Group has also put in
place a share option scheme to motivate and reward staff
with outstanding performance. At the discretion of the
Board, the Group’s employees will be granted the options,
of which the number of options granted is determined by
individual performance and level of responsibilities.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The Register of Members will be closed from Friday, 23
August 2019 to Wednesday, 28 August 2019, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Wednesday, 28 August 2019, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 22 August 2019.

Cheng Chor Kit
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

ESEREHTR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, aged 67, is the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. He is the founder of
the Group and is responsible for the Group’s overall
operation and strategic planning. He is also a member
of the Board’s remuneration committee and nomination
committee. Mr. Cheng currently is a Standing member of
the 12th Shaoguan Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (the “CPPCC”) and also
a former member of the Guangdong Provincial Committee
of the CPPCC. Mr. Cheng has over 40 years of experience
in the toy industry.

Mr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent, aged 63, is an executive
Director since August 2005 and is responsible for the
corporate and business management of the Group. He is
also a member of the Board’s remuneration committee
and nomination committee. Mr. Fung holds a Master of
Science Degree in engineering business management
and has over 30 years of experience in the toy industry.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked as an engineering
director in a sizeable toys manufacturing and distribution
company.

Mr. Liu Tat Luen, aged 54, is an executive Director since
December 2009. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor Degree in
Science (Quantity Surveying) from the University of Hong
Kong and a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Liu served as a director and
a responsible officer in a corporate finance advisory
firm (type 6 regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) in Hong Kong and has over
20 years of working experience in the financial industry in
Asia as a whole.
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KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Cheng Tsz To, aged 32, is an executive Director
since June 2014. After graduating with a Master’s degree
of Engineering in Mechatronics with honors from the
University of Sheffield, the United Kingdom, Mr. Cheng
joined the Group in 2010. He is a son of Mr. Cheng Chor
Kit, the executive Director and the controlling shareholder
(as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”)) of the Company and is the younger
brother of Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang, the executive Director of
the Company.

Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang, aged 35, is an executive Director
since March 2016. After studied Physics and Mathematics
in the Loughborough University, the United Kingdom, Mr.
Cheng joined the Group in 2007. He is the chief executive
officer of the motor business segment of the Group since
July 2013. Mr. Cheng is a son of Mr. Cheng Chor Kit,
the executive Director and the controlling shareholder (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company and is the
elder brother of Mr. Cheng Tsz To, the executive Director
of the Company.

Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex, aged 52, is an executive Director
since December 2016. Mr. Hui joined the Group in
February 2016 as an executive director and the assistant
to the chairman of the Company and is primarily
responsible for the business development of the Group’s
manufacturing business particularly regarding electrical
and electronic products business segment. Mr. Hui holds
a Bachelor’s Degree of Engineering in Manufacturing
Engineering and a Master Degree of Business
Administration (General Management) from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Hui has over 20 years
of experience in the field of home electrical appliance
industry and specialised in manufacturing, operating and
sales areas. Prior to joining the Group, he was the chief
executive officer in a renowned domestic and commercial
electrical appliance company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

ESEREHTR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chi Wai, aged 53, has been an independent
non-executive Director since September 2004. He is the
chairman of the Board’s nomination committee and a
member of the Board’s audit committee and remuneration
committee. He currently also serves as an independent
non-executive director for Bonjour Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0653), C&D International Investment Group Limited
(stock code: 1908) and Arts Optical International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1120), all of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). He is currently the chairman of
the audit committee of Bonjour Holdings Limited and Arts
Optical International Holdings Limited and the chairman of
the nomination committee of C&D International Investment
Group Limited. Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor's Degree
in Social Science from and was awarded a post-graduate
certificate in laws by the University of Hong Kong in 1988
and 1993, respectively. He is a practising certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
(“ICAEW”). He has over 30 years of experience in the
accountancy profession. Other than his private practice in
accounting, Mr. Wong has been admitted as solicitor at
the High Court on 9 March 2019 and currently practice as
an associate solicitor in a law firm.

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian, aged 57, has been an
independent non-executive Director since September
2004. She is the chairperson of the Board’s audit
committee and a member of the Board’s remuneration
committee and nomination committee. Dr. Sun is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and of the CPA Australia.
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KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul, aged 67, has been an
independent non-executive Director since June 2014. He
is the chairman of the Board’s remuneration committee
and a member of the Board’s audit committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Cheng qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1976 and he has been a fellow member
of the ICAEW and of the HKICPA since 1982 and 1990
respectively. Mr. Cheng was a member of the Council
of HKICPA in 2006 and 2007 and a member of the
Corporate Finance Committee of HKICPA from 2006 to
2012. Currently, he is a member of the Audit Profession
Reform Working Group and Professional Conduct
Committee of HKICPA. Mr. Cheng is an independent
non-executive director, the audit committee chairman, a
member of the remuneration and nomination committees
of Xinyi Solar Holdings Limited (stock code: 0968). In
June 2017, Mr. Cheng was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong)
Limited, a restricted licence bank in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheung Wang Ip, aged 58, has been an independent
non-executive Director since July 2014. He is a member of
the Board’s audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Cheung is a Chartered General
Practice Surveyor by profession and has over 30 years of
professional work experience in the property industry and
related fields, including valuation and feasibility study. Mr.
Cheung is a corporate member of both the Royal Institute
of Chartered Surveyors and the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors (General Practice) as well as a member of
Associacao da Avaliacao da Propriedade de Macau.
He is a member of the China Real Estate Chamber of
Commerce Hong Kong Chapter and a member of China
Real Estate Appraiser in the PRC. In addition, Mr. Cheung
is serving as a member of the 12th Shanxi Provincial
Committee of the CPPCC. Currently, Mr. Cheung is
the Operation Head of Hong Kong and Macau and an
executive director of Vigers Appraisal and Consulting
Limited (“Vigers”), he is also an executive director of Vigers
Macao Company Limited (Vigers is an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of a listed company whose shares listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited).
Prior to joining Vigers in 2006, Mr. Cheung was a senior
director of the Valuation and Consultancy Department in
Savills Hong Kong Limited, where he held the position of
the Head of Hong Kong and Macau valuation team. He
had held various positions in companies including the
Mass Transit Railway Corporation, Guangzhou Investment
Company Limited and Jones Lang Wootton.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

The Directors of the Company present their report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 14 to the financial
statements. The principal activities of the subsidiaries
consisted of the design, manufacture and sale of
electrical and electronic products, motor drives, sale and
downstream processing of glass, other manufacturing
business and real estate development. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Year and the Group’s financial
position at that date are set out in the financial statements
on pages 83 to 239 of this annual report. During the
Year, interim dividend of HK3.0 cents per ordinary share,
amounting to a total cash dividend of approximately
HK$13,168,000 was paid to shareholders of the Company
on 11 January 2019.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend to the shareholders for the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donation of
HK$82,000 (2018: HK$24,000).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business and the performance of the
Group for the Year is provided in the chapters of
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” set out on pages 4 to 8 and pages 9 to 25,
respectively, of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to
reducing the impact on the environment in its operational
activities, not only by advocating the concept of “green
office”, but also by improving the production process
to reduce energy consumption and emission, so as to
ensure that the operations does not pose risks on the
environment and our neighbours.

Our 2019 Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the “2019 ESG Report”) prepared in accordance with
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules will provide further
explanation of our policies and efforts. The 2019 ESG
Report will be published within three months after the
publication of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s main operations are carried out both in Hong
Kong and Mainland China and are regulated by the local
laws and regulations accordingly. During the Year and up
to the date of this annual report, the Group has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The Group faces various risks and uncertainties in
operations. To cope with the risks, the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are in place
to ensure the principal risks are continuously identified,
monitored and managed on an established basis.

Global economic and political development

Global economic environment performance and political
instability would influence the conditions on consumer
confidence and their buying habits, and ultimately affects
the Group’s performance. The Group continues to
implement its strategies to develop and strengthen the
penetration of different geographical markets to reduce its
dependency on specific markets.

Policy and legal risks

The Group’s principal operating activities is conducted in
Mainland China and have a duty to abide the local laws
and regulations. Newly launched laws and regulations, for
example, domestic monetary and economic policy, labour
and environmental protection, bring a long-term benefit
to the country’s development and to the well-being of
the citizens. On the contrary, the newly enacted laws and
regulations may produce a short-term negative impact on
the results of the Group.

High customer concentration risks

Our large international customers provide valuable inputs
to the Group, especially during the development phase of
new products, for improving the quality of products and
production processes. However, over-reliance on large
international customers may also carry substantial risks
that can far outweigh any benefits in the long term. To
avoid such risk the Group continues to use the existing
customers as a springboard to expand the Group’s
customer base.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

People risks

The Group’s future development is strongly replies on the
Group to attract and retain qualified personnel. Without
such personnel, delay or disruption in operations may
happen and ultimately hinder in achieving the Group’s
strategic goal. The risk of the loss of key personnel
is mitigated by regular of training and remuneration
packages reviews within the management team.

Details of the Group’s foreign currency exposure
and interest rate risk are provided in the chapter of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
9 to 25 of this annual report.

The above mentioned does not present an exhaustive
picture of the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
the Board must tailor its risk management to match the
nature of risk threats.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAFF,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS

The Group’s success depends on the support from
key stakeholders which comprise our staff, customers,
suppliers as well as our shareholders.

The Group values our employees as the most significant
and valuable assets to the Group, a comprehensive
benefit package is offered to each employee for
recognising their efforts. The Group also has a significant
mission for providing a healthy and safety workplace to
all employees. During the Year, no significant accident
occurred due to workplace accident.

The Group commits to provide quality services and
products to each customer, any complaints from our
customers are handled and investigated in thorough and
efficient manner.

33

EEEHE

FTERRETHABAEZE &)

AZ ER

AEENRRERGRARE EBURRAE
BREEERARKEECERAT ~ WMELFA
A AREEBAEE FERKIPE - &R
RASEERARBEER - BRASR
KERAEBEEEABNEIRFHTE
fEHE EBIREE -

AEBESNE RN ERAR 2 FBHERNANFRS
OEBEMIEEERREOITIEEHA -

EXPFAERFEZ2IN A KB E SRR
ETHAMEER EF@ATHAEERARE
2 LESEMEENRREE -

HET -FF #HEBRRRZ

AEENRNDFREMAHNET TP H#
EEMERETERNENIR -

AEEREMNEIAAEESZEERES
MEE M&8 TREZEAREFEEIN
RAREZEN - RERETRHEERRLE
MITESRTEASENERED - AFE
W TESMP Y EEEEMERNBIER

gy e

AEBRINAEEFPRESRENRE R
Em YARBESMN T EENRAEER
KA TP AR -



KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
EaEEERAR

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

HEZZ-NF=A=+—HILFEZFRH

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAFF,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The purchase of goods and contracting of services are
based solely on need, quality and price of the goods and
services. A fair and open competition in procurement with
high ethical standards promoted by the Group assure
high products quality at all times to gain the confidence of
customers.

For details of relationship with the shareholders of the
Company can be found in the “Corporate Governance
Report” set out on pages 49 to 70 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results, assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 240 of this annual report. The summary does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31
March 2019 are set out in Note 27 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital and the share
options of the Company during the Year, together with the
reasons therefor, are set out in Notes 29 and 30 to the
financial statements, respectively.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the Year are set out in Note 31 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”) or the laws of
Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie,
comprising the contributed surplus and the retained
profits, amounted to HK$470,519,000. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s
contributed surplus of HK$104,750,000 may be
distributed under certain circumstances. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account with a balance of
HK$156,015,000 may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 78% of the total sales for the
Year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 63% of the total sales.

Purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 35% of the total purchases of the Group for
the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 9% of the total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors,
their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), nor
those shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers.

35

EEEHE

BLRBERE
BIEADRZARMA (AR HER
EAIEE RS A RNARLIARERR
REFMBN2BEBEEZRE -

A] 7 K o e
RZE—-HNhE=Z=A=+—8  KxQFAk
BEDERE/SEYHRZER  BESH
AB#HBRRE %A - £470,519,00078 Tt ©
BEBREZE-AN—FRaE RETFEBR
TR 2 8] A 9k & 104,750,000 7T 2 #4
AE R W ARRZROERERE
156,015,000/ 7T * A] LA BERAT I 2 FE =0
DIk ©

TEEFRHES

AEEN AEEBRAES 2 HERERF
EHERETS%  HRRAES 2 HEHN
$4 8 1 563% °

AEERAREEH ZRBEBEASEZAF
ERBAREISY% HFRAHER ZRBERE
B ERAE 4R REO% o

REERA BBF REZHMEA(ERR
EHRA) AREEMARFEARRDEITR
KERAEZBR  BERAEAEERREP
RtEE 2B



KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
EaEEERAT

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

HEZZ-NF=A=+—HILFEZFRH

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent
Mr. Liu Tat Luen
Mr. Cheng Tsz To
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang
Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chi Wai

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul

Mr. Cheung Wang Ip

Biographical details in respect of the Directors at the
date of this annual report is provided in chapter of
“Biographical Details of the Directors” set out in pages 26
to 29 of this annual report.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, Mr. Fung Wah Cheong,
Vincent, Mr. Cheng Tze Hang, Mr. Wong Chi Wai and
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip, being the Directors who should
retire by rotation, will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Directors confirm that the Company has received from
each of its independent non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.18 of the Listing Rules, and the Company considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-Law 166 of Bye-Laws, subject to
the applicable laws, every Director shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of his/her office. The Company
has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit entered into a service contract with
the Company commencing from 1 August 2005 without a
fixed term but subject to termination by either party giving
not less than six months’ notice in writing to the other

party.

Other than Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, all the Directors entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-Laws. Each of the executive and
independent non-executive Directors, unless terminated
by either party giving not less than six months’ notice and
three months’ notice, respectively, in writing to the other
party, the termination of which should not be later than the
end of the three years.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO
which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
he/she is taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the Model Code of Securities Transactions
by directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as

EERBESTHRAERRSG A

AROREESE2EZRXE
R-ZB-AEF=A=1+—8 FARAAEER

lH
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?‘ﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬂﬂﬁﬂE’JﬁfﬁﬂxXﬁ%ﬁi”‘f’E
AR RBEAZERIAR)  HORBEEFK
HAE 5151 25 35216 ZE\.:B)\%E.:EH}WZ*Em 14
CRBELMETAETETESFIHNRE
STRI(MREST AL ARG RNR R MB R T 2
BT

follows:

(@) Interests in the shares of the Company

(@) RAQFRMD 2R

Number of ordinary

Approximate
percentage of
the Company's

Long position/ shares held issued shares
Name of Director short position Capacity FRHEER HAQFACERST
Esns #e/ %R L) ROBE BROZBAEIL
(Note 1)/ (#1:#1)
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit Long position Founder of a trust 252,920,000 57.62%
BRGEEE A EGIZAUN (Note 2)/ (#7522)
Beneficial owner 10,106,000 2.30%
EREBA
Interests held by spouse 3,700,000 0.84%
[ERIESEEL: 2
Mr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent  Long position Beneficial owner 8,152,000 1.85%
BES KT HAE BEEEBA
Mr. Liu Tat Luen Long position Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.45%
BERRE A ERlEA
Mr. Cheng Tsz To Long position Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.68%
BrELE e EnfEAA
Beneficiary of trust 252,920,000 57.62%
ERXEA (Note 2 & 3)/ (H7£2%3)
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang Long position Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.68%
BrEEE e EREAA
Beneficiary of trust 252,920,000 57.62%
FEXHEA (Note 2 & 3)/ (522 R3)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (continued)

(@) Interests in the shares of the Company

(continued)

EEEHE

EERBESTHRAERRSG A
ERORBEER 2ERZRXE @)

(@) REQAREZEE(E)

Number of ordinary

Approximate
percentage of
the Company's

Long position/ shares held issued shares

Name of Director short position Capacity FREER HAQFACERST

Esps HE/%E 54 ROME BROZBHEIL

(Note 1)/ (#7:#1)

Mr. Wong Chi Wai Long position Beneficial owner 500,000 0.11%
EMAE LS e BREAA

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian Long position Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.22%
HEmEL e BEREAA

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul Long position Beneficial owner 80,000 0.01%
BEZLE e BREAA

Mr. Cheung Wang Ip Long position Beneficial owner 200,000 0.04%
REFLE e EREAA

(1) The percentage of shareholding is calculated based (1) BEBILTDIBREARAQATIR=ZZ—HN

on 438,960,000 shares, being the total number of
issued ordinary shares of the Company as at 31
March 2019.

These shares are held by Resplendent Global Limited
(“Resplendent”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Padora
Global Inc. (“Padora”) of which is wholly-owned by
Polo Asset Holdings Limited (“Polo Asset”). Polo
Asset is in turn wholly-owned by a discretionary trust
(the “Trust”) established by Mr. Cheng Chor Kit for
his family.

After the restructuring exercise of the Trust and the
completion of share transfer on 2 April 2019, HSBC
Trustee International Limited, the trustee of the Trust
(the “Trustee”), ceased to be interested in the entire
interest of Padora. After the aforesaid restructuring,
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit ceased to be interested in
252,920,000 shares in the Company in the capacity
as the founder of the Trust and has instead become
directly interested in 52.0% of the voting shares in
Padora.

After the aforesaid restructuring exercise, Mr. Cheng
Tsz To and Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang ceased to be
interested in 252,920,000 shares in the Company in
the capacity as the beneficiary of the Trust.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERERETHRAERER®G - 48
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN RO REESZERZRAE ©)
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) Interests in the underlying shares of the (b) RAERXTEERED ZEH
Company
Number of
underlying shares
in respect of
share options held
and approximate Price of the
percentage of Date of Company's
shareholding share shares at
fisBREz options Exercise grant date
Long position/ RBRGEAR granted Exercise price RRLEH
Name of Director short position ~ Capacity KRERY BRE period per share AL AR
ESftg 8/ %8 5% ARl REAH TS SRITEE ZRE

HKS/# HKS/E T

Mr. Liu Tat Luen Long position Beneficial owner 2,000,000 4172010 4172013 - 2.102 2.060
BERAE i EEEEA (0.45%) 8/1/2020
Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex Long position Beneficial owner 1,000,000 10/3/2016 171212019 - 1,160 1.160
FRREE i BB (0.22%) 9/3/2026
Mr. Wong Chi Wai Long position Beneficial owner 300,000 29/3/2011 29/3/2011 - 2792 2770
U i i BB (0.06%) 28/3/2021
400,000 11712017 717/2017 - 2.262 2220
(0.09%) 6/7/2027
100,000 1172017 13/9/2017 - 2262 2220
(0.02%) 6/7/2027
100,000 9/7/2018 13/9/2018 - 2470 2470
(0.02%) 8/7/2028
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian Long position Beneficial owner 300,000 29/3/2011 29/3/2011 - 2.192 2.770
FEpiEt e kA (0.06%) 28/3/2021
100,000 9/7/2018 13/9/2018 - 2410 2470
(0.02%) 8/7/2028
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul  Long position Beneficial owner 100,000 11712017 71712017 - 2.262 2.220
gEGxE e EafAA (0.02%) 6/7/2027
100,000 9/7/2018 9/7/2018 - 2410 2470
(0.02%) 8/7/2028
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip Long position Beneficial owner 100,000 9/7/2018 211712018 - 2470 2470
REXRE e BB (0.02%) 8/7/2028
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(b)

Interests in the underlying shares of the
Company (continued)

The Directors’ interests in the Company’s share
options are disclosed in Note 30 to the financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019,
none of the Directors nor chief executive of the
Company had interests or short positions in any
securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which are required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which he/she is taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as
disclosed, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” of this chapter
and in the share option scheme disclosures in Note 30
to the financial statements, at no time during the Year
were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are
disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

None of the Directors nor their respective associates
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to any Director
or chief executive of the Company, the following persons
had an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

FERRREMALRARSG - A

BRORERERE 2 ED

RZTE-NFE=R=+—H8 " ' BARFERM

EERHZST

BABMRM  ATALTRAR

AR - D REEETHEAARE
&5 NS GG EXVERF2 M3 #B R X [ AR
NEWE - JREE 7 LB G F3361%:C
ARRBGFENBLMOESZIORAMNT :

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the Company’s Number of
ordinary issued shares share options
shares held HERAFL held
Name of Shareholder Capacity FBEER BITR®BZ FrisiE e
REES /28 47) R & B BRES 2R
(Note 1)/ (A13£1)
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit Founder of the Trust, 266,726,000 60.76% =
B E beneficial owner and (Note 2)/ (H722)
interests held by spouse
FETZRIAN  EnHE
AR EEBHEE 2 #a
Mdm. Tsang Yuk Wan Beneficial owner and 266,726,000 60.76% -
FEw+ interests held by spouse  (Note 3)/ (#1#3)
ERBEBEAR
HEEAEAR < #a
HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee of the Trust 252,920,000 57.62% -
ZEFAZETA (Note 4)/ (Hfi#4)
RUAN, David Ching-Chi Interests on controlling 40,112,000 9.13% -
corporation (Note 5)/ (#:£5)
e PN
RAYS Capital Partners Limited Investment manager 40,112,000 9.13% =
BRERERAR REKE (Note 8)/ (H175)
Asian Equity Special Opportunities Beneficial owner 39,576,000 9.01% =
Portfolio Master Fund Limited EXEAA (Note 5)/ (#1:15)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Notes:

)

The percentage of shareholding is calculated based on
438,960,000 shares, being the total number of issued
ordinary shares of the Company as at 31 March 2019.

This refers to the same block of shareholding of
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit described in the section headed
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above.

Mdm. Tsang Yuk Wan is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Chor
Kit and is deemed to be interested in the shares which are
interested by Mr. Cheng Chor Kit under Part XV of the SFO.

HSBC International Trustee Limited, the trustee of the
Trust of which established by Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, was
then taken to be interested in 252,920,000 shares of the
Company. Such interest included that shares owned by
Resplendent as described in Note 2 of the section headed
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above.

As a result of the Trust, described in the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief executive’s interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures”,
being dissolved on 2 April 2019, the entire holding held by
the Trustee in Padora, the sole owner of Resplendent, has
been nullified. After the aforesaid restructuring exercise,
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit and Mdm. Tsang Yuk Wan, becomes
directly interested in 52.0% and 16.0% of the voting shares
in Padora respectively.

Refer to the information available on the website of the
Stock Exchange, Asian Equity Special Opportunities
Portfolio Master Fund Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of RAYS Capital Partners Limited which in turn is owned as
t0 95.24% by Mr. RUAN, David Ching-Chi.

All the interests stated above representing long position.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the
Directors and chief executive officer of the Company were
not aware of any person who had an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest
of the Directors, the controlling shareholder and their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of the Company that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflict of interest
which any such person has or may have with the Group
during the Year.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the Year.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO R13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES ON THE
STOCK EXCHANGE

In April 2015 and November 2017, the Company as a
borrower, entered into a renewed and new term loan
facility agreements of HK$100,000,000 each with The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited for
a term of 60 months of each term loan facility respectively.
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO R13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES ON THE
STOCK EXCHANGE (continued)

In July 2015 and November 2017, the Company as a
borrower, entered into term loan facility agreements of
HK$100,000,000 and HK$150,000,000 with Hang Seng
Bank Limited for a term of 36 months of each term loan
respectively.

In May 2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as a borrower, entered into a new term loan
and trade-line facility agreement of total HK$100,000,000
with Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited for a term of 36
months and the purpose of the aforesaid term loan is used
for financing capital expenditure.

In January 2019, Hang Seng Bank Limited revised the
term loan facilities granted as above mentioned and
entered into a renewed term loan facility agreement with
the Company (the “Renewed Agreement”). Pursuant
to the Renewed Agreement, the renewed term loan is
for a period of 36 months and included term loans of
HK$45,000,000 to finance capital expenditure of the
Company and of HK$217,500,000 to refinance the
outstanding balance of the loans previously granted.

In addition to general conditions, each of the term loan
facility agreement imposes, inter alia, a condition that
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, the Director and the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company, and the discretionary trust set up by him for the
benefit of his family; collectively shall beneficially or directly
maintain a shareholding of not less than 50% of the issued
share capital of the Company (the “Specific Performance
Obligations”). A breach of the Specific Performance
Obligations will constitute an event of default under the
relevant facility letter. Upon the occurrence of such event,
each of the loan shall become immediately due and
repayable on demand.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS,
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 25 July 2018, Kin Yat Enterprises (BVI) Limited (the
“Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the sale and purchase agreement (the
“S&P Agreement”) with Silurian Resources Limited (the
“Vendor”). Pursuant to which the Purchaser agreed to
acquire the shares, representing 51% of the issued share
capital of Progress Power-Saving Glass Technology
Co., Limited (“PPSGT”), together with the sale loan, at
a consideration of HK$30,000,000 (the “Acquisition”).
Before the Acquisition, the Purchaser has acquired 13%
of the issued share capital of PPSGT from an independent
third party. Upon completion of the Acquisition, PPSGT
became a 64%-owners subsidiary of the Company.

The Vendor is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Cheng
Chor Kit, an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company and
controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of the Company. Hence, the transaction contemplated
under the S&P Agreement constituted a connected
transaction of the Company. As the applicable percentage
ratios (as defined under the Listing Rules) in respect of
the Acquisition are more than 0.1% but less than 5%,
the Acquisition is subject to the announcement and
reporting requirements but exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The announcement in
respect of the aforesaid transaction was made on 25 July
2018.

Apart from described above, under the Listing Rules,
the Company did not have any other discloseable non-
exempted connected or continuing connected transaction
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.
As the same time, the Group was neither involved in any
significant investment, nor any material acquisitions or
disposals of any subsidiaries.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information of the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
49 to 70 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers were first appointed as auditor
of the Company in 2018 upon the retirement of Ernst &
Young.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for
their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheng Chor Kit
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate
governance at all time and in all areas of its operations
for maximising long-term shareholder value while
balancing broader stakeholders’ interests. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise quality
of the Board, effective internal control, stringent disclosure
practices, an ethical corporate culture and accountability
to all stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board regularly reviews the guidelines and latest
development in corporate governance. In the opinion of
the Board, the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2019 except
for the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as
described in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” in this Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Report”). The Board has also reviewed the CG Report and
is satisfied that it has been in full compliance with all the
requirements stipulated in the CG Report in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND RELEVANT
EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code regarding securities transactions by the
Directors.

Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year. All relevant employees of the Group (the
“Relevant Employees”) who, because of their office in the
Group, are likely to be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information have been requested to comply with
the provisions of the Model Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The composition of the Board shall comprise of a
balanced mix of Directors and shall have a sufficient
number of Directors to provide a breadth of knowledge
as well as the ability to make insightful discussions on key
issues.

As of the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
ten members, the Board is confident that the balance
between the number of executive and independent non-
executive Directors has been reasonably and adequately
established in order to protect the interests of the
shareholders and the Company as a whole.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Directors were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent
Mr. Liu Tat Luen
Mr. Cheng Tsz To
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang
Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chi Wai

Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian

Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul

Mr. Cheung Wang Ip

All Directors come from diverse businesses and
professional backgrounds and expertise as shown in
“Biographical Details of the Directors” on pages 26 to 29
in this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Composition of the Board (continued)

Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang and Mr. Cheng Tsz To are the
sons of Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, the executive Director and
the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of the Company. Save as disclosed above, none of
the Directors has any financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among the Directors.

All Directors disclose to the Company the number and
natures of offices held in other public companies or
organisations as well as other significant appointments
annually which ensures that all Board members are
capable of inputting enough time and devoting enough
attention to the Company’s affairs.

Functions of the Board

The Company’s overall management is vested on its
Board which accepts that it is ultimately accountable and
responsible for the performance and affairs of the Group.
The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership
set the Company’s strategic aims and the Company’s
values and standards, and to ensure that its obligations
to its stakeholders and others are understood and met.
To facilitate the operations, the Board has established a
schedule of matters reserved for its approval. The specific
responsibilities reserved for the Board include (1) setting
the Group’s strategies and dividend policy, (2) approving
budgets, reviewing operational and financial performance
(8) approving major investments and divestments,
(4) reviewing risk management and internal control system
of the Group, (5) ensuring appropriate management
development and succession plans in place, (6) approving
appointments of Directors and other senior executives,
(7) approving corporate social responsibility policies,
(8) ensuring effective communication with shareholders
and (9) other significant operational and financial matters.

An update list of Directors identifying their role and

function is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Delegation of Authority

The Board has delegated the authorities and day-to-
day responsibilities to the management and requires the
management to execute the objectives and strategies
established by the Board. The Board also exercises a
separate and independent assessment to the performance
of the management on a periodical basis.

The management is responsible for running the
Company’s businesses and for proposing the
development of the Group’s strategies and overall
commercial objectives in consultation with the Board.
The management is also responsible for implementing
decisions of the Board and its committees, developing
main policies and reviewing the business organisational
structure and operational performance. Furthermore, the
management is obligated to supply relevant, adequate,
clear and timely information and report to the Board and
its committees in a consistent format. The Board, where
necessary, can make further enquiries to the management
on any matters they are concerned.

Board Meeting
For the Board discharges their responsibilities, the
Directors are required to meet in person regularly. The
schedule of the Board meetings for the coming year is
determined and informed all Directors in the fourth quarter
meeting annually.

Prior to the meetings of the Board, as delegated by
the chairman of the Company, the company secretary
or a designated person of the Company prepares and
despatches the notice of meeting together with the
relevant documents and information to all Directors in a
timely manner to ensure that all the participants are given
the opportunities of reviewing and preparing the matter
discussed for making informed decisions in the meeting.

The Board met four times during the Year and meeting

attendance records are set out on page 70 of this annual
report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting (continued)

The minutes of the Board meetings are prepared by the
company secretary or a designated staff of the Company
who are delegated by the Board. The draft minutes
are circulated to all members of the Board for their
commentary. The final minutes are open for inspection
by all members of the Board at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer shall be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual and
the division of responsibilities between the chairman and
chief executive officer should be clearly established and
set out in writing.

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company are not separated and are performed
by the same individual, Mr. Cheng Chor Kit. The balance
of power and authority is ensured by the operations of
the Board which comprises experienced and high caliber
individuals, with a highly independent element in the Board
where the Board members meet regularly to discuss
issues affecting operations of the Company. The Board
believes that this structure is conducive to strong and
consistent leadership, enabling the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and efficiently.

Independent non-executive Directors

The corporate governance stresses the importance of
independent non-executive directors. The independent
non-executive Directors bring in a wide range of skills and
business experience to the Company, and also bring in
independent and sound judgement on issues relating to
strategy, performance and risk through their contribution
to Board and to its committees.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules,
there are no less than three independent non-executive
directors and at least one of them has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The independent non-
executive Directors are all experienced individuals from
various professionals, their skills and experience are an
important element in proper functioning to the Board. The
Board believes that a strong independent element on the
Board can provide a higher level of “checks and balances”
on the Company’s key decision-making mechanism as
well as monitor the Company’s affairs effectively.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, the written confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Evaluated the independence of all independent
non-executive Directors on an annual basis and based on
their confirmation, the Board considers the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors have been
adequately maintained.

Under provision A.3.1 of the CG Code, the independent
non-executive Directors are identified as such in all
corporate communications containing the names of the
Directors.

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for different terms and subject
to a termination by giving not less than six months’ prior
written notice.

Under provision A.4.1 of CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years and subject to a
termination by giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice.
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal
(continued)

All Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy are
subject to election at the annual general meeting after
appointment. All Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Under provision of A.4.3 of CG Code, any further re-
appointment of an independent non-executive Director
who has served the Board for more than nine years
will be subject to separate resolution to be approved
by shareholders in the annual general meeting of the
Company.

Mr. Wong Chi Wai (“Mr. Wong”) has served as
independent non-executive Director more than 9 years
and his re-election will be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by the shareholders. Mr. Wong has not
involved in any executive management of the Company
and expressed objective and independent views to
the Company over the years. As an independent non-
executive Director with in-depth understanding of the
Company’s operation and with professional qualifications.
The Board, taking into consideration of his independent
scope of works during his tenure of office, concurs that
the long service of Mr. Wong would not affect his exercise
of independent judgement and is satisfied that Mr. Wong
has the required character, integrity and experience
to continue fulfilling the role of the independent non-
executive Director. The Directors consider the re-election
of Mr. Wong as independent non-executive Director is in
the best interest of the Company and shareholders as a
whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
of the Board. The Company recognises the benefits of
the Board that possesses a balance of skills, experience,
expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the businesses of the Company.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The nomination committee of the Board will review
the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness
of the Policy. The nomination committee of the Board
also discusses any revisions that may be required
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

Directors’ Training

Every Director should keep himself or herself abreast
of the responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company.
Each new incoming Director receives an induction
package covering the introduction of Group’s businesses
and real-life overview of the Company, induction of their
roles and responsibilities, the practical procedure duties
and the compliance of laws and regulations.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training (continued)

All Directors are encouraged to pursue an ongoing
development and refreshment of their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
relevant and productive.

On 29 November 2018, a tailor-made seminar
was organised to Directors in related to the recent
development of corporate government. All Directors on
that date participated in this seminar.

The training of each individual Director for the Year is set
out below:
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Types of training

Name of Director EEHE EAlER
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Cheng Chor Kit g e A/B
Mr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent = A/B
Mr. Liu Tat Luen BEgLE A/B
Mr. Cheng Tsz To B FiE Sk E A/B
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang L e A/B
Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex AFRIREE A/B
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITESE

Mr. Wong Chi Wal WAL S A/B
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian REmEL A/B
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul BB 87 % A& A/B
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip RAFERE A/B

A Attending briefings/seminars/conference/forums
B Reading/studying training or other materials

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
coverage on directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
any legal actions taken against the Directors and senior
management of the Company arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following Board
committees, all chaired by independent non-executive
Directors, with clearly defined terms of reference, which
are on no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG
Code of the Listing Rules:

= Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”);

- Nomination Committee (the “Nomination
Committee”); and

- Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”)

The roles and responsibilities of each Board committee is
set out by the Board with clearly defined written terms of
reference and this document is available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Pursuant to the written terms of reference, each
Board committee has authority to engage outside
consultants or experts as it considers necessary to
discharge the committee’s responsibilities. Minutes
of all Board committees meetings are circulated to all
Board members. To further reinforce independence
and effectiveness, all Audit Committee members being
appointed are independent non-executive Directors, and
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
have been structured with a majority of independent
non-executive Directors being the Board committees’
members. During the Year and up to the date of this
annual report, each Board Committee’s members include:
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Remuneration Nomination Audit
Committee Committee Committee
FMzESs REZEE EVEES
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit BRAGEE Member,/ X & Member,/ X & =
Mr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent HESRE Member /5% & Member /5% & =
Independent non-executive Directors BXEHITES
Mr. Wong Chi Wai =ML E Member,/f 8  Chairman,/ % Member,/ ik &
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian BEpmE L+ Member /5% & Member,/f & Chairperson,/ £ &
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul BB 5k Chairman,/ £ /& Member,/ % & Member,/ % &
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip RARESTE Member /5 & Member /5 & Member, /5% B
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration packages offered by the Company
should be able to attract and motivate the Directors and
senior management of the Company for their sufficient
quality, whilst at the same time taking into account
the shareholders’ interests as well. The main roles
and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee is
aimed to assist the Board to develop and administer
fair and transparent procedures for setting policy on
the remuneration of Directors and senior management
of the Company, and to ensure no individual Director
or any of his/her associates can determine his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee reviews and determines,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages include but not limited to basic salaries,
deferred compensation, stock options and any benefits
in kind, pension rights, incentive payments and any
other compensation payments, of individual executive
Directors and senior management of the Company with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
within the Group and in the market. The Remuneration
Committee also independently reviews and approves the
compensation and related arrangements for executive
Directors and senior management of the Company in
respect of any loss or termination of office or appointment.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the Year to review and approve the Directors’
remuneration packages. Meeting attendance records of
the Remuneration Committee are set out on page 70 of
this annual report.

Information relating to remuneration of each Director for
the Year is set out in Note 10 to the financial statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee

The primarily responsibility of the Nomination Committee,
followed our diversity policy as mentioned above, reviews
the composition of the Board from time to time and
gives advice to the Board on the candidates, conditions,
selection standards and procedures of the proposed
appointment of Directors and senior management of the
Company.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
recommending to the Board all new appointments of
Directors and senior management of the Company
identify by referral or intermediary agencies. The
Nomination Committee considers the past performance
and qualification of the candidates for Directors and
senior management of the Company, reviews general
market conditions and the Bye-Laws in selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship and
management.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the Year to review and discuss the composition of the
Board, assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and to make recommendations to the
Board on the re-election of Directors. Meeting attendance
records of the Nomination Committee are set out on page
70 of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee

The main roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to assist the Board in (1) maintaining an effective
risk management and a system of internal control and
compliance with the Company’s obligations (including
external financial reporting obligations) under the Listing
Rules as modified from time to time and applicable laws
and regulations is in place; (2) overseeing the integrity
of the financial statements of the Company; and (3), on
behalf of the Board, (i) selecting the Company’s external
auditor and approving their remuneration, (i) assessing the
independence and qualifications of the external auditors,
and (i) the overseeing the performance of the Company’s
internal audit function.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed with
the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018 as well as the
interim report for the six months ended 30 September
2018. The Audit Committee also reviewed the Group’s
financial controls, risk management and internal control
systems, discussed internal control matters, conducted
discussions with the external auditor on financial reporting,
compliance, the effectiveness of the audit process, and
reported all relevant matters to the Board during the year
ended 31 March 2019. In addition, the Audit Committee
has met with the external auditor of the Company and
reviewed the financial results of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019, including the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year.

Meeting attendance records of the Audit Committee are
set out on page 70 of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Corporate Governance Function

The Company has not deliberately established a corporate
governance committee and the Board delegated its
responsibilities to the Audit Committee with clearly defined
written terms of reference, for performing the corporate
governance functions:

1. to develop and review the policies and practices of
the Company on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the policies and practices
of the Company on compliance with legal and
regulatory;

4.  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to the Directors
and employees of the Group; and

5.  to review the compliance by the Company with the

CG Code and the disclosure requirements for the CG
Report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and External Auditor’s Financial Reporting
Responsibility

The management has timely and frequently provided
a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance to the Board. The Board has
an ultimate responsibility for preparing the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the Group’s
state of affairs and the results together with cash
flows situation for the Year. In preparing the financial
statements, the generally accepted accounting standards
in Hong Kong have been adopted; appropriate accounting
policies have been used and applied consistently; and
reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates have
been made.

Other than the discussion in respect of the financial
conditions, liquidity and financial resources on the chapter
of “Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements of the
Group.

The Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 71 to 82 of
this annual report has set out the reporting responsibilities
of the external auditor of the Company.

Auditor’s Remuneration
The auditor’s remuneration and the fee for non-audit
services for the Year are as below:

Nature of services RS
Audit services 1% B R 7%
Non-audit services FEIZ EUR 75
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and
financial control and reviewing their effectiveness at least
annually, while the management and other personnel
are responsible for implementing and maintaining the
internal control system on an ongoing basis to safeguard
the stakeholders’ interests and its assets. This system is
designed to manage rather than to eliminate risk of failure
in operating environment from time to time.

The Group is committed to set up and maintain a sound
and effective internal control system which is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational system and the
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

An internal control advisor (the “Advisor”) was appointed
by the Company as an outsourced internal audit function
to assist the Group to conduct a yearly review of the
internal control system according to the internal audit plan
agreed by the management and the Audit Committee.
The review is to determine if the key internal controls are
in place and determine significant gaps within the design
of the controls. The Advisor reported the internal audit
findings and recommendations to both the management
of the Group and the Audit Committee. The management
of the Group agreed on the internal audit findings and
adopted the recommendations by the Advisor.

Based on the risk management mechanism and internal
audit review activities, the management of the Group had
provided a confirmation to the Board that the Group had
maintained an effective risk management mechanism and
internal control systems during the Year.

64

2| B 5T £ B2 P BB BE 42

%AETEQE$‘%IZHA“£¥&W*BW
THEAMMBEE Y& IBFRIEE
ME - ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂ/\aﬁﬂ BERFER
EEEETREFAIMEEHE - URER
RESREEE - EZ%'JFEETH%ﬁIEFﬁiF
B R ERIET HBRMRRER

AEBBRINBIREFHTERBR AL
EEHE ZBIESHEREHAE (MFEYH)
RE - UPHBRERRBHIBL XEEM
IR EERIERRZ AR  AREBAE
BEEZ-

ARBEDERE-RBAEPEZRER (R E
RONEABE R HHAEEIRRER
J"'E‘ﬂi%’f?i,\ ST ZABEZEI Y AR
EEGEETFREERZ ZERSEEER

REMBANER VETEELEKX
RetRR - BRERAREZ EEEMNERZ
ZESERANNERERLHEERZSE - A&
BrERERRANMEZERLRNERZ

RIZERE RS R ABEZFGETE K
SEHERECKRNESERR  AEERK
FEHAH-EARERZRAREERSI LA
ERESIRAHIE -



ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-ZT-NFZA=T—HLEFEZFR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Ho Man (“Mr. Chan”) has been appointed as
the company secretary of the Company since 1996 and
is responsible for overseeing all the company secretarial
matters of the Group. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of the HKICPA.

Mr. Chan confirmed that he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS
Shareholders’ Rights

1.

Rights to convene Special General Meeting
Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, any one or more
registered shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than 10% of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at the general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by a written requisition,
to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

The written requisition must state the purpose of
the meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and be
delivered to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company at the Company’s principal place of
business at 7/F., Galaxy Factory Building, 25-27 Luk
Hop Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, and
such may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionist(s).

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them
represented more than one half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene a meeting in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of
the Companies Act of Bermuda.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND BREEANREEEBRRZR 2

INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Shareholders’ Rights (continued) IR RAEFI ()

2.  Procedures for putting forward proposals at 2. RERAESLIEZBZHZER
shareholders’ meetings
Any one or more registered shareholders, at the A —BHZBERZBRERERER
date of submission of written requisition, represents EFAH  KRAER@E2BRRAER
either (a) not less than 5% of the total voting rights EZERETDLNE% O PR —BH R’
of all shareholders; or (b) not less than one hundred R AEREREEZ2FARKREAE L
shareholders, entitled to submit a written requisition REREZ -

for putting forward proposals at the general meeting.

The written requisition duly signed by the registered BETRREAEZZEEDES (L
shareholders, must state the purpose of the written BARPEmMESBZEMN)  BR—MHT
requisition, together with a statement of not more BE—TF ARAEEEBRRERIE
than one thousand words with respect to the matter EECCRAEBRETBTEEEN
referred to in the proposed resolution must be BoMEFERBHRBRBAM - AR
deposited at the principal place of business in Hong N SNl R A VA7 €S O () ==
Kong, not less than six weeks before the general EEAMBER - AIZERKRRERG /D
meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a R—RXKE -
resolution; or not less than one week in case of other
requisition.

3. Procedures for directing shareholders’ 3. REROEFEREHEAHAZESF
enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to RERABERUNEmMARNEBEARRZA
the Board in writing through the company secretary AIWMERNEZEFGRESEN  RFAMEZ
of the Company whose contact details are as B4R FFIBN T
follows:
7/F., Galaxy Factory Building, 25-27 Luk Hop Street, EANET B NAH52THRERT
San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong O]
Fax: (852)-2351-1867 {E#& : (852)-2351-1867
Email: webmaster@kinyat.com.hk B # : webmaster@kinyat.com.hk
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investor Relations

1.

Shareholders’ communication

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining
clear, timely and effective communications with
shareholders. Annual reports and interim reports
are published to provide shareholders with
comprehensive information of the Company’s
operational and financial performances. The
Company practises timely dissemination
of information and makes sure its website
(www.kinyat.com.hk) contains the most current
information, including annual reports, interim reports,
announcements, monthly returns and press releases,
and is updated in a timely manner to ensure
transparency.

The Board endeavour to maintain an ongoing and
transparent communications with all shareholders
and, in particular, use general meeting as a platform
for shareholders to state and exchange views with
the Board directly and encourage their participation.
The Directors are available to answer questions from
shareholders throughout an annual general meeting.
External auditor is also available at an annual
general meeting to address shareholders’ queries in
accordance to the requirements of applicable Listing
Rules.

The annual general meeting for the year of 2018
of the Company (the “2018 AGM”) was held on 16
August 2018 and all the members of the Board
together with the external auditor presented in the
2018 AGM. Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing
Rules, any vote of shareholders on all resolutions
at general meetings must be taken by poll. The poll
results in respect of the resolutions proposed at the
2018 AGM were published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on 16 August
2018.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND BREEANREEEBRRZR 2

INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investor Relations (continued) REEBRE(E)

1.  Shareholders’ communication (continued) 1. HRRZEBEH)
The annual general meeting for the year of 2019 ARR_E-NFRREFAG(=F
of the Company (the “2019 AGM”) will be held on —NERRBFAE]) BR_Z—hF
Wednesday, 28 August 2019, for details of the NAZ+NB(EB=Z)817 BE=Z
information on the 2019 AGM, please refer to this —NERRBFRE2FMHER  F2
annual report and its accompanying Explanatory BE A £ 3 I ELBE B 2 B ER B o
Statement.
The Board continues to maintain regular dialogue EZeefBERES RO RIEE
with financial analysts and institutional investors BREE (WMER) THETHZE AR
as appropriate to keep them informed the BETHRAEB 2K EE - TEX
Group’s strategies, operations, management and 8 RINBARFERRNIREEZ
plans. In order to strengthen the bi-directional B EmER  RRIKREEAFERS
communications between the Company, #(webmaster@kinyat.com. hk) &2 3k, {FHj
shareholders and investors, an email contact w WERARFRISREEABFELE
(webmaster@kinyat.com.hk) responded by senior B

management of the Company are available to
shareholders and investors.

2. Sufficient and timely information 2. #ZHRERZIEE
The Board recognises the significance of providing EFeRARNRERREHREEZEZH -
information to shareholders to enable each N BEREERBRAEG FIRE 2 &
shareholder to make an informed assessment for EEZREELANETME - Fi - 0%
the purposes of voting on each of the matter put BRMBEXFOREIERETH TR
before shareholders at the general meeting. Copies Re

of the annual report, financial statements and
related papers are despatched to shareholders in
accordance with the statutory requirements.

3.  Significant constitutional documents 3. ZTEZEXH
There was no change in the Company’s RAFERN  RRARBEXHIL 8E
constitutional document for the Year. g o

4. Dividend Policy 4. BKREBE
Sharing the fruit of our effort and providing a SERMBINKR  BREREHEBTE
stable and sustainable return to our shareholders MAFENERIOEMNER - AR F
is our goal. The Company has adopted a Dividend ERMAREBE ([IREBEK]) ERDIK
Policy (the “Dividend Policy”) which is a guideline BREFARRABRERZIES]
on distribution of dividends to shareholders of the
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS (continued)

Investor Relations (continued)

4.

Dividend Policy (continued)

In considering the payment of dividends, there
shall be a balance between maintaining sufficient
capital for expanding the Group’s business as well
as rewarding the shareholders of the Company.
The Board shall also take into account, among
other things, when considering the declaration and
payments of dividends:

- the actual and expected financial performance
of the Group;

- the capital and debt level of the Group;

- the general market conditions;

- any working capital and capital expenditure
requirement;

- any future development plans of the Group;

- retained earnings and distributable reserves of
the Company and each of the members of the
Group;

- the liquidity position of the Group;

- any restrictions on dividend payouts imposed
by any of the Group’s lenders;

- the statutory and regulatory restrictions which
the Group is subject to from time to time; and

- any other relevant factors that the Board may
deem appropriate.

Under our Dividend Policy, the recommendation
of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board as well as any
restrictions under the law’s requirements of Bermuda
and Hong Kong, the Listing Rules and the Bye-Laws
of the Company. The declaration of final dividend will
be subject to the approval of the shareholders.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Company
in respect of its future dividend. In addition, any
dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert
to the Company in accordance with the Bye-Laws of
the Company.
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TRERRE

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS UNDER RULE 13.51(B)(1)
OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules, there is
no changes in information of the Directors subsequent to
the date of the 2019 interim report of the Company.

THE ATTENDANCE RECORD OF EACH
MEMBER OF THE BOARD IN 2018/2019
The number of Annual General Meeting, Board and its

Committees meetings attended by each Director for the
Year.

B LR Bl %13.51(B)(1) & #
EEEER

RiE EMRANE13.51B)1)E  RAQARZE
—NEFHBRERSE EF2EAHNTES
EO

—ER-NE/BE-NEEEE
EREHESHRCE
RAEER - SEFH S 2 BB A

2 BEEENEEZEEERIRH-

Annual

General Full Remuneration  Nomination Audit

Meeting board  Committee = Commitiee =~ Committee
Name of Director EEfg RREFAE 2REZE HHZEE REZEE EBRZES
Executive Directors BTE=s
Mr. Cheng Chor Kit PRERE 1 4/4 11 1 NATER
Mr. Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent REELE 1/1 4/4 1/1 1M NATER
Mr. Liu Tat Luen BEgEL 1 44 NATER  NATER  NATER
Mr. Cheng Tsz To BrEit i 4/4 N/A A& N/A T i@ N/A T iE A
Mr. Cheng Tsz Hang BrEts 1 44 NATEE  NATER  NATERE
Mr. Hui Ka Po, Alex SRREE 1/1 44 NATNER N/A R N/A N8
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUFHITES
Mr. Wong Chi Wai LS 1/1 4/4 1/1 1/1 4/4
Dr. Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian FENEL i 4/4 11 11 4/4
Mr. Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul PEE gL 1/1 4/4 1/1 1/1 474
Mr. Cheung Wang Ip REERE 1/1 4/4 1/1 1/1 474
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

e
pwec

To the Shareholders of Kin Yat Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Kin Yat Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 83 to 239, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2019;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw your attention to Note 2.1(c) to the consolidated
financial statements, which states that during the year
ended 31 March 2019, the Group reported an operating
cash outflow of HK$28,237,000. As at the same date,
the Group’s current liabilities (after reclassifying certain
bank loans with scheduled repayment dates beyond one
year after 31 March 2019 as current liabilities) exceeded
its current assets by HK$192,183,000. In addition, the
Group has not complied with the financial covenant
requirements of certain bank borrowings. Such non-
compliance may cause certain bank borrowings become
immediately due and payable. These conditions, along
with other matters as described in Note 2.1(c) to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matters described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

o Fair value estimation of leasehold land and buildings
and investment properties

° Provision for inventories

° Business combination

B ZBAERE

ARETER

REFFHSRERMANIEXAE - RA
HBAMGEAVBERENEITRSEZENS
He FUEREERMEFEBRAVBR
KRHABRBETREN - RMATEYHE
LEFREEBNER -KRIFHEBERLEZ
ERTHERR] &Mtz ET5 - BifIE
ETIXFitz EER/AREHEL BRE
FE

BAEET P RR RS ET FEBMD T -

s MHETHEREFURKREMENATE
&t

Key Audit Matter
HRETSBR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNEFORNEEREETSE

HETHRBFURKRENREN D FEMS

Fair value estimation of leasehold land and buildings and investment properties

Refer to Notes 4.1(c), 15 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
B2 E M BHmEMT4.1(c) - 1616 ¢

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had leasehold
land and buildings of HK$442,623,000 and

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of leasehold land and buildings and
investment properties included:

B EREHEE T REBFUARKREY RN
ERITHRFEE

investment properties of HK$65,070,000, the
revaluation surplus and fair value gain recognised
during the year amounted to HK$68,930,000 and
HK$5,383,000, respectively.
RZZE-NF=A=+—0  BEXEHEHEELH
K18 F442,623,000/% 7T & % & ) 265,070,000/ 7T
C FAD R R E AR RN T EWE68,930,00078
7T %5,383,000/8 It °

° Evaluation of the external property valuers’
competence, capabilities and objectivity;
AN G ERNERE - e B H I

o Involving our in-house valuation experts to
assess the methodologies used in valuation by
referencing to market practices;
ERAMABHHEZERSETHE O AT
HEMRANTE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BARETTEE#)

Key Audit Matter
BAEENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESOMEEERETER

Fair value estimation of leasehold land and build
HEITHREFURKREVENAFEMS

ings and investment properties

Management engaged an external valuer to
determine the year-end fair value of the leasehold
land and buildings, and investment properties
based on market comparable method or direct
replacement cost method. The valuations are
dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgement, including
estimated useful life, unit rates, replacement cost,
and capitalisation rate.

EREERE - BEEMBBETISHLEENEE
BERAREETCHE T RIEFURKEMERNTF
ROATFE - HERRRETEERETEEAEGNE
THRREBR  BREMGHACAFY  EE FEEXAL
NERE -

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balance and significant management judgement
and estimates involved in the fair value estimation
of leasehold land and buildings and investment
properties.
BMEIRUERE T EREHREARBE L1 RE
FURBREMEN R FEMSREXNEREH 6
GG ©

Involving our in-house valuation experts

to assess the appropriateness of the key
assumptions of estimated useful life, unit rates,
replacement costs, and capitalisation rate by
referencing to market data; and
ERAMABHEEZRLE MG BURT A
SR AEH BB EERAREREER
BRERENREN R

Assessing the appropriateness of the
disclosures in the financial statements.

AHEM BRI EESHENRE R -

We found the assessment were supported by the
available evidence. We found the disclosures to be
appropriate.
BMERTE 2 EME
ZHERE -

TR

70N Az

BIFF o BRI E
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B ZBAERE

FARETEIE &)

Key Audit Matter
BEENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESOMEEERETER

Provision for inventories

FERE

Refer to Notes 4.1(e) and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

F2HEEMBRRM T4 1) 21 -

At 31 March 2019, the Group held inventories of
HK$649,453,000 and the provision for obsolete

or slow moving inventories was HK$34,088,000.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and

net realisable value in the consolidated financial
statements. Management assesses the provision for
obsolete or slow moving inventories at each period
end based on their consideration of obsolescence
and the net realisable value of inventories. The
determination of estimated selling price less cost to
sell requires the use of significant judgement and
estimates, including consideration of condition of
products, latest selling price, expectation of future
sales orders and market trends and customer
demands.

WZE-—hNhF=RA=+—H  EXEHENF

K /649,453,000 7 - RESBIHTFERER
34,088,000/8 7T « FEEMA R AT E R FEME R
BERGEVBRERIE BEEENEFERE
BERHEAZRFENZE RNEHAMREREL
HHEEE RN BEETIM - TR EEREEK
AEZEGASKRHAGMEST BRYERARN - &F
HER  KRRHETENEY  mEBEREFPEX
HEE -

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balance and, significant management judgement
and estimates involved in determining the provision
for obsolete or slow moving inventories.
HAZINUHBEDANERERNNREERES S
HIFEBER Y REREEEHE & -

Our key procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the provision for obsolete or slow
moving inventories included:

B EREURESFIHTERBAIERMEBIT
B RAR IR 7 BIE

Understanding the key control procedures
performed by management in estimating the
net realisable value of the inventories and
conducting periodic reviews on inventory
obsolescence;
BEREREERFAFEN]ZRFELERNER
GFERERERHRAMBRIZHET

Testing, on a sample basis, the net

realisable value of selected inventory items,

by comparing the carrying amount of the
inventory items against their selling price
subsequent to the year end or close to year
end;
RAMEAACRMETENREESELNF
RESIEOFARNEE  HAETFENAE
BREETAR

Attending the inventory count to observe the
inventory condition.
SEGEREUBREENRR -

Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
the ageing profile of individual inventory items
by checking to the underlying procurement
correspondence and invoices; and

KA REHAREERNERROAH
&R 7 518 B ARE R ML « &
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FARETSEIE &)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAEENSE EMNESOMEEERETER
Provision for inventories
FERE

° Testing, on a sample basis, long aged
inventory for subsequent sales or usage after
year end and reperforming the calculation for
the provision.
KAMEAAHRERRRNFENFREHE
SR FAETRIS  WENRTEEEE -

In addition, we discussed with management
regarding the latest sales pattern in relation to price
and quantity for potential orders, and other factors,
including the market trends and customer demands.
We found that management’s assessment of the
provision for obsolete or slow moving inventories
was supported by the available audit evidence.
e BPMEERE BRSO MHERNETHR - A
REBARITENERRBEULAEMEE - 81
MEBEREPEFEFR - HMHREEBLHREI R
WEEBRENTADEMENETERIF-
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B ZBAERE

FARETEIE &)

Key Audit Matter
BEENSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESOMEEERETER

Business combination

EBEH

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

B2HRe M BRKMT18 -

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
completed the acquisition of Progress Power-
saving Glass Technology Company Limited at cash
consideration of HK$37,647,000 (the “Acquisition”).
Management assessed the nature of the acquisition
by assessing if there are economic resource and
business process associated with it. Management
determined whether the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed under the acquisition constituted
a business and therefore the transaction was
accounted for as business combination.
REBEZEZT-NF=ZA=1+—BLFE - EEBEI
&K 1E37,647,000/8 7T 58 A UK BB B BT B IR IB B
BRAR([WEEIER]) - EBEETRETELS Y
REBEERKERBRE  AHERESENNLE - &
BEECRBREBEEMBENEERMAENE
BERABER  WHEULBER S ARIEERE SO -

Accounting for business combination requires the
Group to allocate the purchase price to the assets
acquired, liabilities assumed, and intangible assets
identified based on their estimated fair values at the
date of acquisition.

EARIERBAHNBRT - EXEARERK
BROMNMAETATE BEEEORKEMPEENE
E - PAENABERAEMNNOETLEE -

Our key procedures in relation to management’s
judgement and estimates over business
combination included:
BMREBEEUEBa N AE RAFOEERET
B

Discussing and inquiring management on

their basis in determining the nature of

the transactions to assess the economic
resource or business process associated

with the acquisition and thus management’s
assessment of the acquisition being accounted
for as business combination;
MmIWMEREESAETER S IEERNEELRT
HMENEEFEFENSCEERIERBIERE

IR B KU FRARIIMERTS A GrRORTE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BARETTEE#)

Key Audit Matter
HARENSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMMEANANEERRETSE

Business combination

EBEH

Independent external valuation has been obtained
by the Group to support the fair values of the
assets acquired, liabilities assumed and intangible
assets identified. In connection with the Acquisition,
identified intangible assets and goodwill recognised
in the consolidated financial statements as at and
for the year ended 31 March 2019 amounted to
HK$19,000,000 and HK$10,713,000 respectively.
EXEECMEBELINBEEAFRKRBEEE 7
REAERMBNELEENATE KelES
EHmNE RZE-NAF=-A=+—HEREEZZA L
FENGEVBRRCERNEBIEBLEERS
245 711/519,000,000 # 7T % 10,713,000/ 7T °

The accounting of the above business combination
involved various significant judgement and estimates
in determining the recognition of identifiable net
assets and intangible assets at fair value at the
acquisition date, which included the determination
of valuation methodology and estimation of revenue
growth rate and discount rate.
FEBaf et REEEEERNKERHUATF
BEERABANEERBETLEEFERIRZEEXR
H i R b B BEEE A A R bR s
BRERARE XK o

We focused on this area because the carrying
values of the identifiable intangible assets and the
goodwill amount are significant to the consolidated
financial statements and the valuation methodology
and key assumptions require the use of significant
judgements and estimates. These estimations are
also subject to uncertainties.
BHAFINUBRE VAR ABELEERBMEL
FEHEHGEMBHRERMEEKN MEETENE

AN =]
RERTEZEAERHEG REFT - 2SR TES
EERARTE -

Evaluation of the external valuers’
competence, capabilities and objectivity;
SEEINELEMBER e HNMEE M

Involving our in-house valuation experts

to assess the appropriateness of key
assumptions including revenue growth rate,
discount rate and methodologies used in
valuation by referencing to the applicable
industry/business data external to the Group;
and

BERAMABNEERERS2E EEBEINHE
FARITEFBBUIRUAT A EMRA N AR
BR(BEKEERE  BRX) RFENRE
SN

Assessing the appropriateness of the
disclosures in the financial statements.

AHEP BRI EEFENREN -

We found the assessment was supported by the
available evidence. We found the disclosure to be
appropriate.

BB GEERSRENIE - RMBEBRHEE
FEERE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chung Kit Yi, Kitty.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
e W&

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains, net

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Impairment losses on financial assets
Finance costs, net

Share of losses of associates

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share attributable
to equity holders of the Company
Basic

Diluted

e
A

E£7

HAB A B35 - B4
BE RS BIER
FHREX
SRAE 2 RERE

MIEER  F8
JEMLE & N R Z B8

BR B A1 % R
PSR X

F At A
BUN &I EAE S A

RAREDFTHA
FEIR R R

EARERTE ARG

BREF
2N

The above consolidated income statement should be read
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

BHE_Z—hE=A=+t—HILtFE

Notes

K

(0]

20

11

13

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T
4,221,878 3,034,274
(3,919,149) (2,728,278)
302,729 305,996
77,885 105,874
(69,989) (57,585)
(164,277) (169,615)
(3,621) -
(12,729) (2,345)
(827) -
129,171 182,325
(18,760) (32,619)
110,411 149,706
112,384 149,821
(1,973) (115)
110,411 149,706

HK25.61 centsfll  HK34.71 cents/&fll

HK25.59 centsfll  HK34.42 cents/&fll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GETHWRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-NF=A=+T—HLFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be reclassified to
the income statement:

Exchange translation reserve on
translation of foreign operations

Release of exchange translation
reserve upon disposal of
subsidiaries

Other comprehensive income not
to be reclassified to the income
statement in subsequent periods:

Gain on revaluation of land and
buildings

Deferred tax debited to asset
revaluation reserve

Other comprehensive (loss)/
income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Total comprehensive income for
the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive
income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

Notes

g

F A R

Hip 2 H W :
AEH T EEN AR ZIRE -
BEBIRBELEL
BE 35 i 18
& K B R R R AR RR
PE 3 i
39

REEBETEEFT D EE
Woan 7 Z B2 E Wz

T REFERKE

REEEMGFEMRRZ

EER IR 28

FREMZE (BB,
Wi - HBRBLEA

FRAZEKREAE

BT FAZERSEAHE:

ARFEZTH A
FEFRR R

i
g °
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2019 2018
—2-nE —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
110,411 149,706
(76,896) 63,221
- (19,720)
(76,896) 43,501
68,930 34,968
(13,977) (5,821)
54,953 29,147
(21,943) 72,648
88,468 222,354
90,519 222,479
(2,051) (125)
88,468 222,354

b iR & T i as 5 PR A (R B Y B o — BF B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B KR &

As at 31 March 2019
R-_E—hAFE=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt FET FAET
ASSETS 'E
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mME - WENREE 15 1,123,724 866,668
Investment properties AWM 16 65,070 63,061
Prepaid land lease payments Eft S 17 23,437 24,772
Properties under development BHREPYE 19 44,847 47,168
Intangible assets E A E 18 35,779 7,872
Investment in associates REERRIZEE 20 12,065 6,183
Prepayments and deposits AR RE RS 23 210,642 191,092
Deferred tax assets EETIBE E 28 25,920 33,695
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 1,541,484 1,240,511
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BREPYE 19 485,863 247,795
Inventories FE 21 615,365 477,062
Accounts and bills receivable FEWER S M =B 22 312,149 370,326
Contract assets ABNEE 5 22,983 -
Prepayments and deposits JENZERIRS 23 155,772 274,934
Financial assets at fair value BREREATEINEZ®
through profit or loss REE 24 14,140 31,254
Tax recoverable GRS qEE 7R 791 5,197
Time deposits TEHFER 25 13,754 11,645
Cash and bank balances B RIRTES 25 227,170 205,011
Total current assets B A ERIE 1,847,987 1,623,224
Total assets HWEE 3,389,471 2,863,735
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to equity EAREREEAERMLER
holders of the Company
Share capital & 7 29 43,896 43,846
Reserves & 31 1,161,616 1,112,932
1,205,512 1,156,778
Non-controlling interests IR ER 4,414 1,266
Total equity B 1,209,926 1,158,044
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e B R IR R 3R

As at 31 March 2019
R-_E—hFE=A=+—H

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Deferred income and other payable
Bank borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

a8\
*rBEME

A FE U A e H A A BRR
RITIEE
EENHIARE

FRBAEBE

Current liabilities REBEE

Accounts and bills payable, J'EHHE AN B - H AR
other payables and provisions B N B

Contract liabilities aHamE

Bank borrowings RITEE

Tax payable FET IR

Total current liabilities mBAEEE

Total liabilities waes

Total equity and liabilities HERREE

The above consolidated statement of financial position it

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying o

notes.

These consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to
89 have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 27 June 2019 and were signed on its behalf.

Cheng Chor Kit
o e

Director

EF

5
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2019 2018

— s T—\F

Notes HK$’000 HK$000
it FET FET
26 82,090 109,208
27 - 294,750
28 57,285 37,502
139,375 441,460

26 1,000,597 953,372
5 166,181 -
27 810,106 237,140
63,286 73,719

2,040,170 1,264,231

2,179,545 1,705,691

3,389,471 2,863,735

It #6755 55 00 3% B 22 (R i Bf B & — 6 B9

Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent
BEE
Director

EF
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KT hEAR -+ BHEETERT
EFREEE -



ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

HEZZT-NF=A=+—HIFEZFR

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

At 31 March 2018

Revaluation surplus, net (Note 15)

Deferred tax debited to asset revaluation
reserve (Note 28)

Exchange translation reserve on
franslation of foreign operations

Proft for the year

ECh)

Total comprehensive income(expense) for the year
Final 2018 dividend paid (Note 12)

Interim 2019 dividend paid (Note 12)
Issue of shares (Note 29)

Non-controling interest arose from acquisition
Equity-settled share option expense (Note 9(a))

At 31 March 2019

At 1 April 2017
Revaluation surplus, net (Note 15)
Deferred tax debited to asset
revaluation reserve (Note 28)
Exchange translation reserve on
translation of foreign operations
Release of exchange translation reserve
upon disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39)
Profit for the year F

HEMBATRBRELRE

Total comprefensive income/(expense)
for the year

Release of asset revaluation reserve
upon disposal of asset

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39)

Final 2017 dividend paid (Note 12)

Interim 2018 dividend paid (Note 12)
Issue of shares (Note 29)

Contrioution from non-controling shareholders
Equity-settled share option expense (Note 9(a))

At 31 March 2018

GEEmBER

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BHE_Z—hE=A=+t—HILtFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ADAREREARL
Reserves
i
Share-
Share based Asset Exchange  Capital Non-

Share  premium  payment revaluation translation redemption Contributed Other  Retained Total controlling Total

capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  surplus  reserve profits  reserves interests equity
HRHA
BB gEEH e {E)

B4 ROEER HRER B EXEE i SABR HbEE KOS GEEE FERER  REAE
HK8000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK8'000
fér  FEr  TEr  TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr TR TET TR TEr
43846 154672 3209 163416 56,124 14 6,150 (8,040) 738,287 1,112,082 1,266 1,158,044

- - - 68930 - - - - - 68930 - 68930
- - - (1397 - - - - - (13977 - (13977)
- - - - (76818 - - - - (76819 (18 (76,89)
- - - - - - - - 112,384 112,384 (1,973) 110411
- - - 54953 (16818) - - - 112,384 90,519 (2,051) 88,468
- - - - - - - - (30,728 (30,728 - (30,728
- - - - - - - - (13,168) (13,168 - (13,168
50 1,343 (262) - - - - - - 1,081 289 1,420
- - - - - - - - - - 4910 4910
- - 980 - - - - - - 980 - 980
43896 156,015 3921 218369 (20,694) 14 6,150 (8,940) 806,775 1,161,616 4414 1,200,926
28% 139,642 5506 134840 12613 1 6,150 (8940) 622476 912301 (48826 906,311
- - - 34968 - - - - - 34,968 - 3498
- - - (5,821) - - - - - (6,821) - (5,821)
- - - - 63 - - - - 63,231 (10 6321
- - - - (197 - - - - (19720 - (1970
- - - - - - - - 149821 149,821 (115) 149,706
- - EAALY 43511 - - - 149821 200479 (125) 222,364
- - - (o71) - - - - 571 - - -
- - - - - - - - - - 48733 48,733
- - - - - - - - (1518 (21518 - (518
- - - - - - - - (13063 (13,063 - (13,063)
1010 15,030 (3,560) - - - - - - 11470 - 12,480
- - - - - - - - - - 1,484 1484
- - 1,263 - - - - - - 1,263 - 1263
43846 164,672 3209 163416 56,124 14 6,150 (8940) 738267 1112932 1,200 1,158,044
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Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest on bank loans
Bank interest income
Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, net
Fair value gain on investment properties
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid land
lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net
Write-back of impairment in property,
plant and equipment
Write-back of impairment in properties under
development
Impairment loss on financial assets
Impairment of accounts receivable
Provision for/(write-back) of impairment
of inventories, net
Equity-settled share option expense
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Share of losses of associates
Government subsidies income

Increase in properties under development

Increase in inventories

Increase in accounts and bills receivable

Increase in contract assets

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and
deposits

Increase in accounts and bills payable,
other payables and provisions

Increase in contract liabilities

Decrease/(increase) in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease in restricted bank balances
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Cash generated from operations BEMEER®

Interest received B S

Interest paid EEPELES

Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEETGR

Overseas income taxes paid B EINETEH

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from BEEH RS (RiK)/
operating activities MAFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2019 2018
o 2 N\E
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
129,171 182,325
14,135 3,279
(1,406) (934)
- (850)
(6,720) (8)
(5,383) (4,935)
104,915 80,098
650 641
1,807 -
(1,438) (781)
(7,189) -
- (4,582)

3,621 -
- 3,784
3,034 (14,895)
980 1,263

- (10,126)

827 -
(32,262) (26,338)
204,742 207,941
(127,165) (22,493)
(150,443) (134,106)
(74,828) (37,588)
(23,588) L
1,293 (242,924)
123,740 297,601
28,367 -
23,886 (10,990)
- 1,500
6,004 59,031
1,406 934
(23,895) (11,200)
(5,856) (16,000)
(5,896) (15,650)
(28,237) 17,115
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
HE_Z-—NF=A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\5F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k33 FET FHET
Cash flows from investing activities RETHHERE
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash Wi —fRMB AR - Mk
acquired g ka (36,791) (3,599)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ﬁ%ﬁ%% BB (317,958) (261,573)
Investment in an associate R—EBEAEMRE - (5,877)
Increase in short-term bank deposits REERIT R M (2,109) (5,215)
Dividend income from listed investments THHREZBRBEA = 850
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BEREERETE
plant and equipment 33 10,639 2,812
Net cash outflow from disposal HEMBLARZRAERNFE
of subsidiaries - (893)
Net cash outflow from investing activities REFH 2B MLFE (346,219) (273,495)
Cash flows from financing activities RETH RS RE
Proceeds from issues of shares BIIRNDESEZEHE 29 1,131 12,480
Dividends paid BAKE 12 (43,896) (34,581)
Proceeds from bank borrowings BITIEEEE ZFMBFA 648,597 372,051
Proceeds from short-term financing GHBAREE Y FIERE 162,342 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTER (366,178) (181,224
Contribution from non-controlling FERBERTE
shareholders - 1,484
Net cash inflow from financing activities HEEP RERARE 401,996 170,210
Net increase/(decrease) in BeRBELER 49112
cash and cash equivalents #in,/ (i) 3 27,540 (86,170)
Cash and cash equivalents FNzHe &fﬁé—r Eik)
at the beginning of year 199,855 275,842
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash EXZHURERREZERAYL
and cash equivalents E’ & (5,242) 10,183
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBERAEERY
at the end of year 25 222,153 199,855
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Kin Yat Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the design, manufacture and sale
of electrical and electronic products, motors,
glass technology and application and real estate
development.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is 7/F., Galaxy Factory Building,
25-27 Luk Hop Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The Company is a subsidiary of Resplendent Global
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. The directors of the Company consider
Padora Global Inc., a company also incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, to be the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the Group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements
of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except for land and buildings,
investment properties, and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss,
which are measured at fair value.

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 March 2019,
the Group reported an operating cash
outflow of HK$28,237,000. As at
the same date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets
by HK$192,183,000, and its total bank
borrowings, all classified as current
liabilities (including those with contractual
repayment dates beyond one year after
31 March 2019 (see below)), amounted to
HK$810,106,000, while its cash and bank
balances amounted to HK$227,170,000.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Going concern basis (continued)

Under the relevant bank loan agreements
of certain term loans, the relevant banks
have the overriding right to demand for
repayment even though the scheduled
repayment dates are beyond one year.
Due to the oversight of management, the
Group had not applied for and thus had
not obtained before the year end date
a confirmation from the banks to waive
such rights for its bank loans totalling
HK$364,750,000. As a result, certain of
these loans with scheduled repayment
dates beyond one year amounted to
HK$235,500,000 had to be classified as
current liabilities as at 31 March 2019.

As a result of the foregoing, as at 31
March 2019, the Group has not complied
with a restrictive financial covenant
requirement of certain bank borrowings
amounted to HK$484,750,000 (including
those loans described in the preceding
paragraph), which included bank
borrowings of HK$325,500,000 with
scheduled repayment dates beyond
one year after 31 March 2019. Under
the relevant bank loan agreements,
such non-compliance of covenant may
cause the relevant bank borrowings of
HK$484,750,000 become immediately
due and payable should the lenders
exercise their rights under the loan
agreements. In addition, such non-
compliance also triggered the cross-
default terms of certain other current
bank borrowings of HK$173,543,000
and bank borrowings of HK$32,000,000
with scheduled repayment dates beyond
one year after 31 March 2019, which
may also cause these loans to become
immediately due and payable should
the lenders exercise their rights under
the loan agreements. Accordingly,
the total relevant bank borrowings of
HK$690,293,000 were included in current
liabilities as at 31 March 2019.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Going concern basis (continued)

All of the above conditions indicate the
existence of material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

In view of such circumstances, the
directors of the Company have given
careful consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its
available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going
concern. Certain plans and measures
have been taken to mitigate the liquidity
pressure and to improve its financial
position which include, but not limited to,
the following:

()  subsequent to 31 March 2019,
the Group successfully obtained
written waivers from the relevant
banks in relation to the relevant
bank loans of HK$484,750,000
from complying with the relevant
financial covenant for the year
ended 31 March 2019. In addition,
the Group also successfully
obtained written confirmation from
a bank to revise down the relevant
financial covenant ratio requirement
temporarily until 31 March 2020 in
respect of bank loans amounting to
HK$265,000,000. The Group will
continue to monitor its compliance
with the covenant requirements.
Should the Group be unable
to comply with the covenant
requirements, the management
of the Company will discuss and
negotiate with the respective banks
and will seek to further revise the
terms and covenant requirements or
obtain a waiver of compliance with
the covenant requirements from the
banks, if needed;
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2 SUMMARY
ACCOUNTI

OF SIGNIFICANT
NG POLICIES (continued)

(c) Going concern basis (continued)

(i

(i)

(iv)

based on the communication with
the banks, the directors considered
that the banks will not exercise
their rights under the cross-default
clauses for the bank borrowings
totalling HK$205,543,000 given the
Group has successfully obtained
the waivers from the other relevant
banks as mentioned in (i) above,
despite a written wavier was not
provided by the banks;

the banks have also agreed in
writing to waive their overriding
rights to demand for repayment in
relation to certain bank borrowings
amounted to HK$244,750,000 in
the coming twelve months from the
balance sheet date, which included
HK$143,000,000, with scheduled
repayment dates beyond one year
after 31 March 2019;

based on the on-going discussions
with the relevant banks, these
banks would continue to make the
respective uncommitted banking
facilities available to the Group in
the coming twelve months from
31 March 2019. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion
that such banking facilities will be
renewed when they expire such that
they will continue to be available
to the Group for the next twelve
months from 31 March 2019;
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Going concern basis (continued)

(v)

(vii)

the Group has substantially
completed certain property
development projects. The sales
of these projects are expected to
be launched in the coming vyear.
With respect to these projects,
the Group has already signed a
framework agreement with a local
PRC government authority for the
sale of certain property units and
is expecting to receive certain
advance payments in the coming
twelve months. The directors of the
Company thus are of the opinion
that the property development
projects will be able to generate
operating cash inflow to the Group
in the next twelve months;

the Group will continue to take
active measures to improve
profitability and cash flow of the
Group through various initiatives
including further leveraging on
capital investments made in
manufacturing process automation
to reduce production cost and
improve efficiency and further
strengthening of its relationship with
major customers to negotiate for
better price and terms;

the Group will also continue to seek
for other alternative financing and
bank borrowings to finance the
settlement of the existing financial
obligations and future operating and
capital expenditure; and
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Going concern basis (continued)

(viii) the Group will also continue to seek
for other alternatives to increase its
working capital such as divesting of
the Group’s land and buildings and
investment properties, if needed.

The directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections prepared by management.
The cash flow projections cover a period
of twelve months from 31 March 2019.
They are of the opinion that, taking into
account the above-mentioned plans
and measures, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due
within twelve months from 31 March
2019. Accordingly, the directors are
satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant
uncertainty exists as to whether
management of the Group is able to
achieve its plans and measures as
described above. Whether the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern
would depend upon the Group’s ability
to generate adequate financing and
operating cash flows through achieving
the following plans and measures:
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Going concern basis (continued)

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

continuous compliance by the
Group of the existing and revised
terms and conditions of the bank
borrowings and, where applicable,
successful negotiation with the
banks to obtain wavier or to revise
the terms and conditions of the
bank borrowings for the continuous
compliance thereof as and when
needed such that the existing
bank borrowings and facilities will
continue to be available to the
Group and be repaid in accordance
with the agreed repayment
schedules;

successful launch of the property
development projects on hand and
collection of proceeds from sales
of properties under development
and completed properties in the
expected timeframe;

successful implementation of
measures to improve profitability
and cash flow so as to strengthen
its working capital position;

successfully raising of additional
sources of financing or bank
borrowings as and when needed;
and

successful divestment of its land
and buildings and investment
properties when needed for working
capital.

Should the Group be unable to continue
as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group’s assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for
any further liabilities which might arise
and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities, respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(d) New and amended standards adopted
by the Group
The Group has applied the following
standards and amendments for the first
time for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 April 2018:

HKFRS 2 Classification and
(Amendment) measurement of
share-based
payment
transactions
HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS
(Amendment) 9 Financial
instruments with
HKFRS 4
Insurance
contracts
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from
contracts with
customers
HKFRS 15 Clarifications to
(Amendment) HKFRS 15
HK(IFRIC) 22 Foreign currency
transactions
and advance
consideration
HKAS 40 Transfers of
(Amendment) investment
property
Annual Annual
improvement improvements
project of 2014-2016 cycle
HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28
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ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-ZT-NFZA=T—HLEFEZFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d)

(e)

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group (continued)

Apart from HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15,
there are no other new standards or
amendments to standards that are
effective for the first time for this reporting
period that could be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.

The impact of the adoption of these
standards and the new accounting
policies are disclosed below. The other
standards did not have any material
impact on the Group’s accounting
policies and did not require retrospective
adjustments.

New standards and amendments to
HKFRS in issue but not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and
amendments have been published that
are not mandatory for 31 March 2019
reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

99

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

PR R EE

2 FESHBEBRESE)

21 RUEE(GE)

(d)

(e)

AR WA HRT RS RT
R (&)

B & 78 B 75 S A 95k
REBMGHEERNF155%
Sh BERAREHMAER
Rz H AR R R 2
BRI AR B AREE
REXRTE -

RN E R R @RI
RZFENRTXHE - Hit
HAHAREZ @ RERY
BEMNEATE  THAE
HEWRE -

EEMGEENRER 2T BN
BmEER 2 ER RIEET
x

RZE-—NFE=HA=+—H
WEHBSB/ME RS E
BEAREBEIWERZHEM 2
ATHET SR R RERTA -



KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED

REEBARAR

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

HEZZ-NF=A=+—HILFEZFRH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(e)

New standards and amendments to
HKFRS in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

FTESTHTHERE &)

21 RREE(E)
(e) EHEMEERERZERE
BHREENZHERRET
x(#&)
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTBEHSZ2#%
HrzastBENR
Amendments to HKFRS Annual improvements to HKFRS 1 April 2019
HEBFERE R BT A 2015-2017 cycle —E-NFMHA—AH
BB BIEGER —_FE—nFF
ZE A+ FRR FE N
HKAS 1 and 8 (Amendments)  Definition of material 1 April 2020

BB GITERE 19 R B8R
({BETA)

HKAS 19 (Amendments)
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HKAS 28 (Amendments)
BB G R E285F (1BFTA)

HKAS 9 (Amendments)
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HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
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({&EIA)

HKFRS 16
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Plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement
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Long-term interests in associates
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Prepayment features with negative
compensation
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Definition of business
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1 April 2019
—E-NFMNA—AH

1 April 2019
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1 April 2019
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EHIZTEE —ZE-FTEMNA—H
Leases 1 April 2019
HE —ZE-NEFMNA—H
Insurance contracts 1 April 2021
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BE-ZT-NFZA=T—HLEFEZFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(e)

New standards and amendments to
HKFRS in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016.
It will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the consolidated statement
of financial position, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard, an
asset (the right to use the leased item)
and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.

101

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

PR R EE

2 FESHBEBRESE)

21 RAUEE(GE)

(e)

ERMEMKRER BB
B EER 2 HERRIERT
x (&)
BREMBEHREERE165RE
g

FRMBHREELE165HERN
—E-RE—-AEM - H
BEYBABOBEERKREM
BIRRKRER  RER/LE
EkREHENERSEBE -
RBEHERAERBEE (£
RHEEREBWEN) REH
HezemBE  HEEH
MEEBEBREBHIIMER -

A ARG SRR TR
HERED -



KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
EaEEERAT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(e)

New standards and amendments to
HKFRS in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for the Group’s operating
leases. As at the reporting date, the
Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$1,204,000.
Of these lease commitments, the Group
estimates those related to payments
for short-term and low value leases
which will be recognised on straight-
line basis as expense in profit or loss
are insignificant. For the remaining
lease commitments, the Group expects
to recognise right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$962,000 on 1 April
2019, lease liabilities of HK$964,000
(after adjustments for prepayments and
accrued lease payments recognised
as at 31 March 2019). Overall net
assets will be approximately HK$2,000
lower, and net current assets will be
approximately HK$521,000 lower due to
the presentation of a portion of the liability
as a current liability.

Except some additional disclosures will
be required from next year, the Group
does not expect any significant impact on
the financial statements in relation to the
activities as a lessor.

Date of adoption by the Group

The Group will apply the standard from its
mandatory adoption date of 1 April 2019.
The Group intends to apply the simplified
transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to
first adoption.

There are no other standards that are not
yet effective and that would be expected
to have a material impact on the entity
in the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

2 FESHBEBRESE)

22 S BEEE

This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and HKFRS 15
Revenue from contracts with customers on the
Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces the provision for HKAS 39
that relate to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” from 1 April 2018 resulted in
changes in accounting policies.

(a)  Classification and measurement

The financial assets currently held by
the Group include financial instruments
previously classified as loans and
receivables which continue to be
measured at amortised cost under
HKFRS 9. The Group also has financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
which will continue to be measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Accordingly,
there is no impact on the classification
and measurement of its financial assets.
There will be no impact on the Group’s
accounting for financial liabilities, as
HKFRS 9 only affects the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at
fair value through profit or loss and the
Group does not have any such liabilities.
The derecognition rules have been
transferred from HKAS 39 and have not
been changed.
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Br RS R EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

(b)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s accounts and bills receivable,
deposits and contract assets are subject
to the new expected credit loss model of
the new HKFRS. The Group was required
to revise its impairment methodology
under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes
of assets. While cash and cash equivalents
are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit
loss allowance for accounts and bills
receivable, deposits and contract assets
based on credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. Financial assets are
written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators
that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group.

The Group has assessed the expected
credit loss model applied as at 1 April
2018 and the change in impairment
methodologies has no significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and the comparative figures
have not been restated in this respect.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued) 2.2

2 FESHBEBRESE)

Bt BERE (F)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

The effects of the adoption of HKFRS 15 are as
follows:

The Group has first time adopted HKFRS 15
from 1 April 2018 which resulted in changes
in accounting policies. In accordance with
the transition provisions of HKFRS 15, the
Group has adopted the modified retrospective
application and no comparative figures are
restated.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new framework for
revenue recognition. This replaces HKAS 18
which cover contracts for goods and services
and HKAS 11 which cover construction
contracts. The new standard introduces a five-
step model to determine when to recognise
revenue and at what amount. Under the five-
step model, revenue is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to
a customer and at the amount to which the
entity expects to be entitled. Depending on
the nature of the contracts, revenue is either
recognised over time or at a point in time.

Reclassification were made as at 1 April 2018
to be consistent with the terminology used
under HKFRS 15 for contract liabilities in
relation to payment received in advance from
customers for properties sales which were
previously presented as receipt in advance.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS R EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (continued)
The impact on the Group’s financial position by
the application of HKFRS 15 as compared to
HKAS 18 that was previously in effect before
the adoption of HKFRS 15 is as follows:

Consolidated statement of
financial position (extract)

SRUBRRE (BHR)

Contract liabilities elERE
Receipt in advance BME
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business
combinations by the Group (refer to Note
2.4). Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated income
statement, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of financial position
respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(b)

(c)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting
(see (c) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised
at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group’s share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in
an equity-accounted investment equals
or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting (continued)

(c) Equity accounting (continued)
Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in
Note 2.183.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business;

° equity interests issued by the Group;
° fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration

arrangement; and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBEBE )
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Business combinations (continued)

2.4 EBAGH(E)

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the

° consideration transferred;

° amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity; and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity.

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker
(“*CODM”), comprising the Board of Directors of
the Company.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HKD,
which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
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KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED

REEBARAR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS R EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains or losses that
related to borrowings and cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss,
within financial cost. All other foreign
exchange gains or losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on a net basis within other
gains/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss.
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ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-ZT-NFZA=T—HLEFEZFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of
foreign operations (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each
income statement and statement
of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions);
and

o all resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any
net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation
(that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that
does not result in the Group losing
control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates
that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence, the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% R ax MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBEBRESE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment 28 YME- -BERRZE

Land and buildings are recognised at fair
value based on annual valuations by external
independent valuers, less subsequent
depreciation for buildings. A revaluation surplus
is credited to other reserves in shareholders’
equity.

All other property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS R EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Increases in the carrying amounts arising
on revaluation of land and buildings are
recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in reserves in
shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the
increase reverses a decrease previously
recognised in profit or loss, the increase is first
recognised in profit or loss. Decreases that
reverse previous increases of the same asset
are first recognised in other comprehensive
income to the extent of the remaining surplus
attributable to the asset; all other decreases
are charged to profit or loss. Each year, the
difference between depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of the asset charged
to profit or loss and depreciation based on the
asset’s original cost, net of tax, is reclassified
from the property, plant and equipment
revaluation surplus to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amounts, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives or, in the case of
leasehold improvements and certain leased
plant and equipment, the shorter lease term as
follows:

Freehold land
Medium term leasehold
land and buildings in

Not depreciated
Over the shorter
of lease terms

Hong Kong and 4%
Buildings outside Over the shorter
Hong Kong of lease term

and 3.3%

Moulds, tools, and 10% - 20%

plant and machinery
Furniture, equipment

and motor vehicles

10% - 25%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in profit or loss. When
revalued assets are sold, it is Group’s policy to
transfer any amounts included in other reserves
in respect of those assets to retained earnings.

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment under construction or
pending installation and is stated at cost
less impairment losses, if any. No provision
for depreciation is made on assets under
construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and available
for their intended use. On completion, the
relevant assets are transferred to property,
plant and equipment at fair value or cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-
term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the Group.
It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as
investment properties. Investment property
is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at carrying
values, representing cost less depreciation and
impairment provision. Changes in fair values
are presented in profit or loss as part of other
gains.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 i a Y =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 FESHBEBE )

2.10 Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments are recorded at
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Land use rights are amortised using the
straight-line method over their lease terms of
50 years.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value takes into account the
price ultimately expected to be realised, less
applicable variable selling expenses and
anticipated cost to completion.

Development cost of property comprises mainly
construction costs, cost of land use rights,
borrowing costs, and professional fees incurred
during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as
current assets unless those will not be realised
in one normal operating cycle.

2.12 Intangible assets

(@) Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in
Note 2.4. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill is not amortised but
it is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Intangible assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGU") for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those CGU or groups of CGU
that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The units or groups of
units are identified at the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the
operating segments (Note 5).

Technology

Technology acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The technology
has a finite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the
straight line method to allocate its cost
over its estimated useful life of 10 years.

Contract order back log

Contract order back log acquired in a
business combination is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The contract
order back log has a finite useful life
and is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight line method to allocate
its cost over its estimated useful life of 1
year.

119

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

PR R EE

2 FESHBEBRESE)

212 BLEE (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

BE (&)
HEERIEEZRCELSE
L ([REeEEEM]) AETT
HERR - BEYE T EE
BN EBEENELS G
PESMRSEAEMNIER
CELBEMAMNEL - BRE
EfBNgReELENE
AT ER B MR E
ERENREER (AL
2 E8 (MI3E5)) WERR -

B i

R E & HF S B R AT R UL
BHBRATFERR %X
MR EMEHRER - WK
AR, R A B A o 3N
THERBEARARE R AR A
SHAERFHI0FNE D

st
B o
-t

HEBEHTE
REBEHRENEES D
I ER U B R QT ERE
RoBEAKNTENAER
FHAER - LR AR RET
BHEE - BENERAER
ERGE R AR B AR
EHNERNEOHE -



KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
EREBEARAT BE-_ZT—h&=A8 E+—EI¢$F§*Z$$&

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

2 FESHBEBE )

213 kEMEERE

Goodwill and intangible assets that have
an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.

2.14 Investment and other financial assets

(a) Classification
From 1 April 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the follow measurement
categories:

° those to be measured subsequently
at fair value through profit or loss

(FVPL); and

° those to be measured at amortised
cost.
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BE-ZT-NFZA=T—HLEFEZFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification (continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value,
gains and losses will be recorded in
profit or loss. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on trade-
date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets
(continued)

(c)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset. The Group classifies its debt
instruments as:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit
or loss and presented in “other
gains/(losses), net” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where
the Group’s management has elected
to present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss
as other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVPL are recognised in other
gains/(losses) in the statement of profit
or loss as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Impairment

From 1 April 2018, the Group assesses
on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For accounts receivable, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted
by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables, see
Note 3.1 for further details.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 i a Y =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEEFBRBE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets
(continued)

(e)

Accounting policies applied until 31
March 2018

The Group has applied HKFRS 9
retrospectively, but has elected not to
restate comparative information. As
a result, the comparative information
provided continues to be accounted for
in accordance with the Group’s previous
accounting policy.

Until 31 March 2018, the Group classifies
its financial assets and liabilities in the

following categories:

° financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; and

° loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the

purpose for which the investments were
acquired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets

(continued)

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31
March 2018 (continued)

(1)

Classification

Management determines the
classification of its investments at
initial recognition.

1. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

The Group classifies financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss if they are
acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short
term, ie are held for trading.
They are presented as current
assets if they are expected
to be sold within 12 months
after the end of the reporting
period; otherwise they are
presented as non-current
assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.14 Investment and other financial assets

(continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 e) BEE-Z—N\E=A=1+—

2 FESHBEBE )

214 RERHMEREE (&)

March 2018 (continued)
(i) Classification (continued)

AEANEEE(E)

() 2 E)

2. Loans and receivables 2. EBERREWFIA
Loans and receivables are Bk WA
non-derivative financial assets A IERE R T
with fixed or determinable SWRERAER
payments that are not E ok A B E XK
quoted in an active market. BHZEMTES R

If collection of the amounts
is expected in one year
or less they are classified
as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-
current assets. The Group’s

AE - WRER
AR — 4
TEREIEE
RBEE - TR
25 AR E
EoAREEN

loans and receivables e W SR IE B 1R
comprise of accounts and LA AR R
bills receivable, deposits and A B JE W BR 3R 2
other receivables, and cash EE -EmeaRkE
and cash equivalents in the ftby F& Y 5% 78 K 3R

consolidated statement of
financial position.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets
(continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 31
March 2018 (continued)

(i)

Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify
a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held for trading
category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling
it in the near term. Financial assets
other than loans and receivables are
permitted to be reclassified out of
the held for trading category only
in rare circumstances arising from
a single event that is unusual and
highly unlikely to recur in the near
term. In addition, the Group may
choose to reclassify financial assets
that would meet the definition of
loans and receivables out of the
held for trading or available- for-
sale categories if the Group has the
intention and ability to hold these
financial assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity at the date of
reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair
value as of the reclassification
date. Fair value becomes the
new cost or amortised cost as
applicable, and no reversals of
fair value gains or losses recorded
before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective
interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables
and held-to-maturity categories are
determined at the reclassification
date. Further increases in estimates
of cash flows adjust effective
interest rates prospectively.
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KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
EaEEERAT

2 SUMMARY
ACCOUNTI

OF SIGNIFICANT
NG POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets

(continued)

(e) Accounting policies applied until 31
March 2018 (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group
measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest
method.

Financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair
value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value are
recognised in profit or loss within
other gains/losses.

128

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
HEZZ-NF=A=+—HILFEZFRH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 i a Y =

2 XEETBERBE®R®

214 RERHMEREE (&)

) EE-BE—NFE=ZA=+-—

HERAMNETEE (&)
(iii) AR AL UL TRERR
FIEEREENSHE

(iv)

EBHNRX 5B (A%
BEGHEBEEAHELE

EE )R - 8
TREERTRENE

NERLEREECE
& MAKECKER
BEEHARNBAID
2B e [0 e (B - )
RIFEREREE -

iTE

e tERE - AEE%
ERFEF=ZE®mE
E (I EEBER
BEATEINENSRE
E)EEFBENEES
BEENRZHHA « E

BRI A AR
TREENHMAR

BEAH -

B R EMRIA R R
FRE BRI SO IZ 31 K
it & -

FRESEATER
ZEMEERABRER
BRFEHER - AFE
HE)EL 2 W EER
K&z ke, B
BAER -



ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BE-ZT-NFZA=T—HLEFEZFR B A RAE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% R ax MY =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets

2 FESHBEBRESE)

214 RERHMEREE ()

(continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 31

March 2018 (continued)

(iv)  Measurement (continued)
Dividends on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss as
part of revenue from continuing
operations when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Interest income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is
included in the other income of the
consolidated income statement.

Details on how the fair value of
financial instruments is determined
are disclosed in Note 3.3.

2.15 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on
future event and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16

2.17

Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the
basis of normal operating capacity. Costs
are determined on the first-in, first-out basis.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are amounts due
from customers for goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
Accounts receivable are generally due for
settlement within 60 days and therefore are all
classified as current.

Accounts receivable are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the accounts receivable with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. See Note
2.14 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for accounts receivable and Note
3.1 for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Share capital and shares held for employee
share scheme

Ordinary shares are classified as equity (Note
29).

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Accounts and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Group prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually
paid within 60 days of recognition. Accounts
and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHHEEBME®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Borrowing 221 B&
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, BENSEZAFENBRAEER
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings DGR - B EHBREH
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. RAGTE - FTSIE (B 5K
Any difference between the proceeds (net of N)EEDNSENEZENEEHRRA
transaction costs) and the redemption amount NERF EEEIBRmPRER o 8L
is recognised in profit or loss over the period EXBMEINNER RAskR
of the borrowings using the effective interest METHMARERBERAR/EN
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan R SR « RIEIBERAT - ZER
facilities are recognised as transaction costs SREERDBERLL - WETE
of the loan to the extent that it is probable EERBRAEREIE THAER
that some or all of the facility will be drawn & RIZERSBAER  JER
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until BERFEOTEMNHIE - WHRER
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is BiER AR 8 o

no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance EAXNPRTENE TR - BUSSL
sheet when the obligation specified in the Ewnk BEEEERELRTS
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Bro B HRIEETS TSR
The difference between the carrying amount of BEMNERNEHEENRE(BED
a financial liability that has been extinguished EENFREEXMAENE
or transferred to another party and the B ENERE  TESTPERA
consideration paid, including any non-cash HMRASTBEER -

assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as other income or
finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities BEREARDEE  HEAEEHE
unless the Group has an unconditional right to FEGHENSEEZAGENRE
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 BEEEmEAfAERI2EAE
months after the reporting period. BIBRAN o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets
are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS R EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

The deferred tax liability in relation to
investment property that is measured
at fair value is determined assuming the
property will be recovered entirely through
sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has
a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

135

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

PR R EE

2 FESHBEBRESE)

2.23 VHIRIEREFTSH (&)

(b)

TS (&)

BB AFEFENREY
EZBRERBEREZME
#AlE B E 2Bk EmE
5o

BREFEREEENKRRAE
ERT B H B A IA K I
ERUEZENEBREER -

(GRAVANCIESE-pakea ek S
REBIREMZFZER
AT RE & M A) A R m
AT FINE & EBIRE Z R
HEMIEZHZERER
BRAELEHBAREREE -

i 0K TE 7I 38 1T RN R
HEHARBREERABRE &
BIELEV ARG HRER — R
HREEAERE - AR SHIEEHIA
BEMARB -WEBHEEZX
TE P 58 il #0717 4 A 3K 8H I R
BREEENAEREER
R E 1 B fE - B8 B B
MBAEERMARE -

BIHEA R R AT B TR X 18 25 ) B
R MR ERE M2 RS
S B BN R Y IR B AR
FAERSN - MULIBR T - HHIA
BoplREmEmE s E
BEREmPHER -



KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
EaEEERAT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 i a Y =

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
HEZZ-NF=A=+—HILFEZFRH

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong
are required to participate in a defined
contribution scheme as defined in
mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”). The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group under independently
administered funds. Contributions to
the schemes by the employers and
employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. Under
the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
(the employer) and its employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. The monthly contributions of
each of the employer and the employees
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 and
thereafter contributions are voluntary.
The Group has no further obligations for
the actual payment of post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.

Employees of the Group in the PRC
are required to participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes
administered and operated by municipal
governments. The Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC contribute funds to the
retirement scheme to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees which are
calculated on certain percentage of the
average employee salary as agreed by the
municipal government. Such retirement
schemes are responsible for the entire
post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees. The
Group has no further obligations for
the actual payment of post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions.
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BE-ZT-NFZA=T—HLEFEZFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

Employee leaves entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the date of statement of financial
position. Employee entitlements to sick
and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation
Share-based compensation benefits are
provided to employees via the share
option scheme. Information relating to
these schemes is set out in Note 30.

Employee options

The fair value of options granted under
the share option scheme is recognised
as an employee benefits expense with
a corresponding increase in equity.
The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

- including any market performance
conditions (eg the entity’s share
price);

— excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance
vesting conditions (eg profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

— including the impact of any
non-vesting conditions (eg the
requirement for employees to save
or holdings shares for a specific
period of time).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

(d)

Share-based compensation (continued)
Employee options (continued)

The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-
market vesting and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates:

()  when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits;
and

(i)~ when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are
measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to
their present value.
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BE-ZT-NFZA=T—HLEFEZFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25

2.26

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation using a pre-tax that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
sold or services performed, stated net of
discounts, returns and value-added taxes. The
Group recognises revenue when the specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS R EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (continued)

2 FESHBEBE )

2.26 MR (&)

Wzt X8 Ga Y 12 %IJ%‘}ZHWQL&

Revenue is recognised when or as the
control of goods or services is transferred
to a customer. Depending on the terms of
the contract and the laws that apply to the
contract, control of the goods and services
may be transferred over time or at a point
in time. Control of the goods and services
is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

° creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° does not creates an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods and services transfers
over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods and
services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (continued)

2 FESHBEBRESE)

2.26 WHEBR (&)

When determining the transaction price to
be allocated from different performance
obligations, the Group first determines the
service fees that the Group entitles in the
contract period and adjusts the transaction
price for variable considerations and significant
financing component, if any. The Group
includes in the transaction price some or all
of an amount of variable considerations only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when
the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When either party to a contract has performed,
the Group presents the contract in the
statement of financial position as a contract
asset or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the entity’s performance
and the customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods and
services that the Group has transferred to
a customer. A receivable is recorded when
the Group has an unconditional right to a
consideration. A right to consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS R EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (continued)

2 XEETBERBE®R®

2.26 MR (&)
WERANEB T FEE

If a customer pays consideration or the Group
has a right to an amount of consideration that
is unconditional, before the Group transfers a
good or service to the customer, the Group
presents the contract liability when the
payment is made or a receivable is recorded
(whichever is earlier). A contract liability is
the Group’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

The following is a description of the accounting
policy for the principal revenue streams of the
Group.

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being when the goods
are delivered to the customers, the customers
have full discretion over the goods and there
is no unfilled obligation that could affect
the customers’ acceptance of the goods.
Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to customers, and either customers have
accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment
is due.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.26 Revenue recognition (continued) 2.26 WA (&)

2 FEETBERBE®R

Sales of goods (continued)

If the services rendered or products delivered
by the Group exceed the payments made
by the counter parties, a contract asset is
recognised. If the payments exceed the
services rendered or products delivered, a
contract liability is recognised.

Sales of properties

For property sales contract for which the
control of the property is transferred at a point
of time, revenue is recognised when the buyers
obtains physical possession or the legal title
of the completed property and the Group has
present right to payment and the collection of
the consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effect of a financing component if it is
significant.

Glass installation

For provision of construction services, the
Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset or work in progress that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced,
thus the Group satisfies a performance
obligation and recognises revenue over time,
by reference to completion of the specific
transaction assessed on the basis of the actual
costs incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs
for each contract.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27

2.28

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. When a receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired
loans is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividends are recognised as revenue when
the right to receive payment is established.
This applies even if they are paid out of pre-
acquisition profits. However, the investment
may need to be tested for impairment as a
consequence.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.29

2.30

2.31

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
not transferred to the Group as lessee are
classified as operating leases (Note 36).
Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note
36). The respective leased assets are included
in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair values when there is a reasonable
assurance that the grants will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised within “Other income”
in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.
Government grant related to property, plant
and equipment are recognised as deferred
income and is recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the expected useful lives
of the related assets.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
Risk management is carried out by the senior
management of the Company under policies
approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

The functional currency of the
Hong Kong reporting entities is
HKD and the transactions are
mostly denominated in HKD and
United States dollars (“USD”).
For transactions or balances
denominated in USD are reasonably
stable with the HKD under the
Linked Exchange Rate System, the
directors are of the opinion that the
Company does not have significant
foreign exchange risk, the exposure
to fluctuation in exchange rates will
only arise from the translation to the
presentation currency of the Group.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is
performed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)
The functional currency of the
PRC reporting entities is RMB
and the transactions are mostly
denominated in RMB and HKS$,
the conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules
and regulations of the foreign
exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk primarily through
financing, capital expenditure and
expenses transactions that are
denominated in a currency other
than RMB, which is the functional
currency of the major subsidiaries
of the Group. The Group manages
its exposures to foreign currency
transactions by monitoring the
level of foreign currency receipts
and payments. The Group ensures
that the net exposure to foreign
exchange risk is kept to an
acceptable level from time to time.
The Group is presently not using
any forward exchange contract to
hedge against foreign exchange
risk as management considers its
exposure is not significant.

At 31 March 2019, if HKD had
strengthened/weakened by 5%
(2018: 5%) against RMB with all
other variables held constant,
profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$24,423,000
higher/lower (2018: HK$12,108,000
higher/lower).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk
arises from long-term borrowings
with variable rates, which expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The Group’s borrowings and
receivables are carried at amortised
cost.

The Group monitors closely
its interest rate exposure by
maintaining an appropriate floating
rate borrowings and considers
hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
The position is regularly monitored
and evaluated by reference of
anticipated changes in market
interest rate.

At 31 March 2019, if interest rates
on bank and other borrowings
had been 50 basis points (2018:
50 basis points) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant,
profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$4,051,000 lower/
higher (2018: HK$2,659,000 lower/
higher) mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating
rate borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Price risk

The Group’s exposure to price
risk arises from investments held
by the Group and classified in the
consolidated statement of financial
position as fair value through profit
or loss (Note 24).

Profit for the period would increase/
decrease by approximately
HK$1,414,000 (2018: HK$3,125,000)
as a result of 10% gains/losses on
equity securities classified as at fair
value through profit or loss.

(b) Credit risk

(i)

Risk management

Credit risk arises if a customer or
other counterparty fails to meet its
contractual obligations. The credit
risk of the Group mainly arises from
trade and other receivables and
deposits with banks and financial
institutions.

The Group has policies that limit the
amount of credit exposure to any
financial institutions. Substantially
all the deposits in banks are held
in reputable financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and the PRC,
which management believes are of
high credit quality and management
does not expect any losses arising
from non-performance by these
counterparties.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Risk management (continued)

The Group also has policies in place
to ensure that sales of products
are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. Sales to
large or long-established customers
with good repayment history
comprise a significant proportion
of the total sales. The Group’s
historical experience in collection
of trade and other receivables falls
within the recorded allowances.

The Group has concentration
of credit risk as the top five
trade debtors accounted for
approximately 78% of its total
trade debts balance as at 31
March 2019 (2018: 64%). In
view of this, the management of
the Group regularly assesses by
monitoring the individual profile of its
accounts receivable. In this regard,
management of the Group considers
that the credit concentration risk
has been significantly mitigated.

150

3

BREREER#®)

3.1 HM¥RAKBEZEE)
(b) FEERKRE)

() EREE(E)
RNERINR A BUR AR
REAFHGBEEERD
ZEFPHEER - MA
BRIFERS 2 KA
SRARFIHENIEE
BMEZETIHD o A
I 38 13 U [0 B U AR 5k K%
Hith fE U FIE 2 8850 T
BB ARRREE -

REBEEFEERRBES -
BEANR -—ZT—hE=
A=Z+—HZREXKESH
FEWERFIEEE 5 R
IRFBEBRLIT8% (=
T—)\F:64%) - A
Bl AEEERE
7 8 BT H O AR 3K
2 BRI & &5 5E BIRT
Heoptins @ AEE
EREERAEEETRA
% B AR -



ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-ZT-NFZA=T—HLEFEZFR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% R ax MY =

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
Accounts receivable

The accounts receivable of the
Group are subject to the expected
credit loss model. The Group
applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all
accounts receivable.

To measure expected credit losses,
the Group categorises its accounts
receivable based on the nature of
customer accounts and shared
credit risk characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based
on the payment profiles of sales
over a period of 12 months before
31 March 2019 or 1 April 2018
respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced
within this period. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BXRBER®
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BXEREBREZEE)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) FERKE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) TEEERE(E)
(continued)
Accounts receivable (continued) FEUER R (&)
On that basis, the loss allowance BEZEE R_ZF
as at 31 March 2019 and 1 April —NLNE=ZH=+—H
2018 (on adoption of HKFRS 9) was MZZE—-N\FMHHA—H
determined as follows for accounts (R BE B FRE%E
receivable: A ZE95%) z fE U BR 3K
EEEBEBEETOT
1-30 31-60 61-90  Over 90
days days days days
Current pastdue pastdue pastdue pastdue Total
BH1Z RENE BAHIZE  BH90A
L 30A 608 90H Nt b
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FEr  FErL  FEr TErn  FEL  TEx
At 31 March 2019 R=B-n%
ZB=t-H
Assets BE
Gross carrying amount AEmE 179,622 92,990 26,799 7,885 9,004 316,300
Loss allowance BiERE (359) (465) (268) (789)  (2,270)  (4,151)
179,263 92,525 26,531 7,096 6,734 312,149
Expected loss rate EHEEE 0.2% 0.5% 1% 10% 25% 1.3%
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE
ZA=t-H
Assets BE
Gross carrying amount BEWE 266,675 72,737 18,556 8,100 5110 371,178
Loss allowance BERE = = = = (852) (852)
266,675 72,737 18,556 8,100 4,258 370,326
Expected loss rate BHEEX = = = = 17% 0.2%

Impairment losses on accounts
receivable are presented as net
impairment losses within operating
profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Accounts receivable (continued)
Previous accounting policy for
impairment of accounts receivable

In the prior year, the impairment of
accounts receivable was incurred
when there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not
been incurred) of the accounts
receivable.

The management of the Group
considered the following as indicator
of loss event:

° significant financial difficulties
of debtor

° probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial
re-organisation

The amount of the loss is

recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(iii)

Other financial assets at amortised
cost

Other financial assets at amortised
cost include other receivables.
Management consider low credit
risk for other financial assets at
amortised cost and did not provide
loss allowance for other financial
assets at amortised cost based on
the historical settlement pattern of
these other financial assets and
the forward looking recoverability
analysis of the counterparties.

While cash and cash equivalents,
time deposits and restricted bank
balance are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS
9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

(c) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of banking facilities.
The Group aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping credit lines available

at all

time.

154

3

BREREER#®)

3.1 HM¥RAKBEZEE)
(b) FEERKRE)
(i) I ARG E 2 B
CHEE
RN ANGTE 2 H At
TREERFEEMER
HE -BEERE IR
BHEHEMESREEY
BELEBR WY
F A 2 pE U Bl
M R E AT E 2
EmemEECEER
SEAR - I IR Y
RAHEZHEMEEE
ErtREERE -

HAREMNASER
W EBE R R R
RITHEBRINARAERR
B35 RS BRI 2
EMRTE - S HA
MERBEL TEKX -

(c) mBELAR
ZENRDHECRAREEER
KEFTE 2RSS  BBR
REEZHRITHRENSHER
Be - AKEREEBEN
HBTREEEEURBRE

TEEME -



ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
BE-ZT-NFZA=T—HLEFEZFR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Management monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity reserve on the basis
of expected cash flows. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 requires a
term loan that contains a clause that
gives the lender the unconditional right to
call the loan at any time shall be classified
in total by the borrower as current in the
statement of financial position. This is
irrespective of whether a default event
has occurred and notwithstanding any
other terms and maturity stated in the
loan agreement.

Under the relevant bank loan agreements
of certain term loans, the relevant banks
have the overriding right to demand for
repayment even though the scheduled
repayment dates are beyond one year.
Due to the oversight of management, the
Group had not applied for and thus had
not obtained before the year end date
a confirmation from the banks to waive
such rights for its bank loans totalling
HK$364,750,000. As a result, certain of
these loans with scheduled repayment
dates beyond one year amounted to
HK$235,500,000 had to be classified as
current liabilities as at 31 March 2019.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As a result of the foregoing, as at 31
March 2019, the Group has not complied
with a restrictive financial covenant
requirement of certain bank borrowings
amounted to HK$484,750,000 (including
those loans described in the preceding
paragraph), which included bank
borrowings of HK$325,500,000 with
scheduled repayment dates beyond
one year after 31 March 2019. Under
the relevant bank loan agreements,
such non-compliance of covenant may
cause the relevant bank borrowings of
HK$484,750,000 become immediately
due and payable should the lenders
exercise their rights under the loan
agreements. In addition, such non-
compliance also triggered the cross-
default terms of certain other current
bank borrowings of HK$173,543,000
and bank borrowings of HK$32,000,000
with scheduled repayment dates beyond
one year after 31 March 2019, which
may also cause these loans to become
immediately due and payable should
the lenders exercise their rights under
the loan agreements. Accordingly,
the total relevant bank borrowings of
HK$690,293,000 were included in current
liabilities as at 31 March 2019. All of the
above conditions indicate the existence
of material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

In view of such circumstances, the
directors of the Company have given
careful consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its
available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going
concern. Certain plans and measures
have been taken to mitigate the liquidity
pressure and to improve its financial
position are summarised in Note 2.1(c) of
these consolidated financial statement.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

For the purpose of the below analysis,
these bank loans are included within
current liabilities and analysed into bank
borrowing payable within one year or on
demand.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMRKEBRERE®
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BXEREBREZEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) () "BELRAR(EZ)

2019

Accounts and bills payable
Financial liabilities included
in other payables, accrued

liabilities
Bank borrowings

2018

Accounts and bills payable
Financial liabilities included
in other payables, accrued

liabilities
Bank borrowings

Within one One to two Two to five
year years years Total
-£R -EEZ@ME MEZERE EH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FEx FEz FEz FET
ZE-hE
BRI ERER 740,050 - - 740,050
SAEBENFER
BB
cRAE 89,321 - - 89,321
RITRE 840,080 - - 840,080
1,669,451 - - 1,669,451
“E-N\%
ENETRER 549,993 - - 549,993
SAEBENFER
BB
cRAE 60,256 = - 60,256
RITEE 247,000 125,654 179,705 552,359
857,249 125,654 179,705 1,162,608

At 31 March 2019, the maturity analysis
of the Group’s bank borrowings following
the contracted repayment schedule would

be as follows:

Within 1 year or on demand
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years

R—FRFIZER
BB —FETBAME
HBMFETBRARLS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXRBER®
(continued)
3.2 Capital management 32 EBEXREHE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic condition. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, obtain bank borrowings, or issue
new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
bank borrowings divided by total equity.

Total bank borrowings RITIEERE
Total equity BRES
Gearing ratio BEREELH R

159

AEBZEAERBAREERE
AEBZFHERQEREN BRI
HEOR - AREFHENENER
PUBE B AR

AEBEEENGERE  URELH
RN EBEH AR - RER N
BERNER  AEERSHECDH
BRZE 2 - BEURTTRRK
BITH

AEBAMAERA B RELRE
A o ZLLELRITIE SRR AR

e

R E -

2019 2018
—g-hn&E —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT FET
810,106 531,890
1,209,926 1,168,044
67.0% 45.9%




KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
EaEEERAR

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

BE—T-NF=A=+—HILFEZFH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS R EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation
The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March
2019 and 2018 by level of inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such
inputs are categorised into three levels within a
fair value hierarchy as follows:

° quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1);

° inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2);

o inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMBEBREREE
(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 DAFEME(E)
The following table presents the Group’s TREINRZZE—NLEER=ZZF—N
financial assets that are at fair value at 31 FZAZ+—HAEEURQRFEE
March 2019 and 2018. TECZERMEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-1 ol - E=H @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FEn FEn FEn FEn
At 31 March 2019 R=B-n%
=ZA=1-H
Assets §E
Financial assets at fair value ~ EBEFELFETIE
through profit or loss LEREE 14,140 - - 14,140
14,140 - - 14,140
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\F
=A=1-H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value  EBBREATENE
through profit or loss LEREE 31,254 - - 31,254
31,254 - - 31,254
There were no transfers between Level 1, FAN-F—E FEHF=ZEZ
2 and 3 and no other changes in valuation RN TS - (H(E 5 A TN E b
techniques during the year. &) o
Financial instruments in level 1 F-E4mIA
The fair value of financial instruments traded EETRTHEEZEMIAZA
in active markets is based on quoted market FEREBEMERAEXRBI ZMS
prices at the statement of financial position WREAFE - ZEAR S L EHRE
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted HRBT - KHEE - K58 FAA
prices are readily and regularly available from +  FREREBHEBEERIEREGHR
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, B MEBRERREAFERS
price services or regulatory agency, and those ERFET EREERATISERS
prices represent actual and regularly occurring B i E R A ETRmE -

market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(a)

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, or
it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and
investments accounted for using
equity method

Assets that have an indefinite useful life
are tested annually for impairment; or
more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on the higher of value-
in-use calculations or fair value less
costs of disposal. These calculations
require the use of judgements and
estimates. Management judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and net
present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and
(iiiy the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s financial
condition and results of operations.
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Br RS R EE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(c)

(d)

Fair value of land and buildings and
investment properties

The Group carries its land and building,
and investment properties at fair value
with changes in the fair value recognised
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and consolidated
income statement, respectively. It obtains
independent valuations at least annually.
At the end of each reporting period, the
management updates their assessment
of the fair value of each property, taking
into account the most recent independent
valuations. Refer to Note 15 and 16 for
the assumptions, valuation techniques
and fair value measurement.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to taxes in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision
for various kinds of taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the consolidated
income statement in the period in which
such determination is made.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(d)

(e)

Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognized when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from
the original estimates, such difference
will impact the recognition of deferred tax
assets and income tax in the period in
which such estimates are changed.

Estimated provision for inventory

The Group’s management reviews the
inventory aging analysis periodically,
and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer suitable for sales. The
Group carries out an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at the
end of each reporting period and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
items through management’s estimation
of the net realisable value for such
obsolete and slow-moving items based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions.
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Br RS R EE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(e)

)

Estimated provision for inventory
(continued)

The Group writes down inventories to net
realisable value based on an assessment
of the realisability of inventories. Write-
downs on inventories are recorded where
events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be
realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectations
are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the carrying
value of inventories and write-downs of
inventories in the years in which such
estimates have been changed.

Provision for properties under
development

The net realisable value is determined by
reference to estimated selling prices of
these properties, less the estimated costs
to completion and applicable variable
selling expenses. The net realisable
value of properties under development
is determined by establishing the market
values of the properties on an “as-
if” completed basis with appropriate
deduction on construction costs,
professional fees, applicable various
selling expenses and interests to be
incurred from the valuation date to
completion.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(f)

Provision for properties under
development (continued)

If there is an increase in costs to
completion or a decrease in net
sales value, the net realisable value
will decrease and this may result
in a provision for properties under
development. Such provision requires
the use of judgements and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, the carrying value
and provision for properties in the period
in which such estimate is changed will be
adjusted accordingly.
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Br RS R EE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(9)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether
goodwill has suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.13. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have
been determined based on the higher
of value-in-use calculations or fair value
less costs of disposal. These calculations
require the use of judgements and
estimates. Management judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and net
present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and
(iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s financial
condition and results of operations.

168

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
HEZZ-NF=A=+—HILFEZFRH

4

B ARG R HE =)

4.1

BREREFREBR(E)

(9)

AERE

REBRBEM F2.13FT 2
BHBREFAHNEESR
PHRE BeELESNZ
e e ERIEEREEA
ERATFERHEKRAZ
EeEET UEAEFRE
A 2B R st REZRE
EREFHUATSERTY
B ERE T E D HE ()
EERCDELENRBENABE
EEBEARUAIKEZ EH
(i) EEZEEBERS UK
Bl & 58 (BN A F AR &K
RARIBBEEREBANFERE
AREEMGT ZRKRER
BEZFREZESE) X
(i) #R 23R & 7 = T80 B
BHRAZEAEIERZ 2
RZEHeREBAREE
FAEELEE  FRER
Bt AR EmERZ
BRF(BERSREEN 2
IR R R RHR) AT A
R B RERNRAZ TR
B EAMEEREE TG
RS RIS 2R o



ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEZZT-NF=A=+—HIFEZFR BEEEERAR
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B %% R ax MY =

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4 EBEAREFEEFTRHAE 2
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and 41 ERGTHEFREBR(E)
assumptions (continued)

(h) Useful lives of intangible assets (hy BEREEZANERFH
Significant judgement is exercised in §$1ﬁﬁﬁﬁ>§\?z—ﬂ§ﬁﬁ¢5ﬂ
the assessment of the useful lives of FITHEERHE - 1ED
the intangible assets. In making its ;Hjlﬁj‘éﬁﬁq EREEEEEZRA
judgement, management considers a = PInEEERREE -

wide range of factors such as the attrition
rates and obsolescence rates.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 ZEEH
Chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) has been ZK@E%%(F%%J)A?&R’EEI
identified as the Board of Directors of the Company BERRE ([ TELERKE]) - I%ﬁi
(the “Directors”). CODM reviews the Group's internal ERREBERBAER 2 REBWmE AR
reports in order to assess performance, allocate RE - DEBERNETHESDLE-

resources and determine the operating segments.

For management purposes, the Group is organised BEEmMS  ANEBREBEEEDERE
into business units based on their products and D HERKENMN WA TNEOER 2R
services and has four reportable operating segments ERoR

as follows:

(a) the electrical and electronic products segment (@ BREEFEMSE BERER
consists of the manufacture and sale of Al HE ANTEEREA - A LRES
robotics, loT and smart home products, BEREEMm  BTREERLEM
electronic entertainment products and other HEES

related products;

(o) the motors segment consists of the (b) BHSME BREHERIFEESHI
manufacture and sale of motors and encoder NS 25 JEAR
film;
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c) the glass technology and application segment
consists of the sale and downstream
processing of glass as well as the design,
manufacture and installation of curtain wall
systems; and

(d) the real estate development segment.

The disposal of the core operating subsidiaries of
the Company relating to the resources development
segment was completed in September 2017.

Management monitors the operating results of the
Group’s business units separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on operating profit or loss which in
certain respects, as explained in the table below, is
measured differently from operating profit or loss in
the consolidated financial statements.

Group financing (including finance costs and finance
revenue) and income taxes are managed on a group
basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to

the third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

Segment revenue

Revenue from external customers
Timing of revenue recognition

- At a paint of time
- Over time

Intersegment sales

Total

Other income and
gaing, net

Segment results

Interest and unallocated
gaing

Unallocated expenses

Finance costs, net

Share of losses of associates

Profit before tax
Income tex expense

Proft for the year

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment ligbilties
Unallocated liabilties

Total labllties

Other segment information:

Capital expenditure
Unallocated amounts

Operating segments

-BER

PEENRHE

FARRR
HiER 8

BhBENAZER

EREH

PERE
KRR

g8

PEEE

AAHEE
gaf

EfDBAR

Er3H

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% R ax MY =

ANy 3 NN =
5 S2E¥EER®
(@) =B E
. S = &= AE TS — & —
The following tables present revenue, results TREINAEKERBE-F— A
and certain asset, liability and expenditure ig_ﬁﬁk’i\iﬁiz_%ﬁ’_; i;lﬁ
) . , . ’ 5177 28 m " RENG
information for the Group’s operating segments :ngg AER HjE% %
BHE > HIE B7roe
for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.
Electrical and (Glass technology and Real estate Resources
electronic products Motors application development development Eliminations Consolidated
EERETER EL HEAHRER FHERR ERRY H E
2019 2018 219 218 2019 2018 219 2018 2019 018 2019 2018 219 218
SE-AE CE-0F ZE-AF ST\ ZR-RE C30\F ZE-AE CE0\F CE-RE S5 ZE-RF CTNF ZERE CE)E
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO0D — HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSO000  HKS000  AKSOOD
iz fé&r  FEr TEE TErT fAr AT fAn  FET . fAT FET . fEE TET
166417 2137520 972817 696745 46307 - - - - - - 41854 3034274
- - - - B - - - - - - W -
166417 2137520 OT2817 696745 G26M - - - - - - 421818 3034074
46411 54560 7491 8541 825 - - - - (48T (83,101) - =
3212808 2192080 900308 9526 83469 - - - - (48T (B3101) 4221878 3034274
U2 004 4800 4807 1,465 6310 9,399 7,197 2,182 - - T8 104657
905 212 GBI T4 (65%) [0y s MR 25 - - 1840 192080
6,172 1217
(1245 (B62)
(12729)  (2349)
(827) -
M 1835
(18,760) (32619
oAt 149706
2014725 1894199 1146035 989914 143,06 500609 515026 40791 %6980 (922309 (935418 3012834 250001
36637 36303
3389471 286373
682729 02231 495 450030 139,255 663131 501450 200980 71164 (922399 (935418 1,283,118 1059457
896427 646234
2179545 1,105,691
12085 54107 169160 112303 1,762 408 507 6 165 - - 00798 167,082
- 1,442
300793 168524
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 S2EER®
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) (X008 (E)
Electrical and Glass technology and Real estate Resources
electronic products Motors application development development Eliminations Consolidated
BERETER H RERTRER EHERR ERRY baf ] &8
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Z2-pfF CI-\E ZB-fE CT-\E ZB-AE T\ ZE-AE CT-\F ZE-pE -\ ZB-pf R/ ZE-pf CT-)\E
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000
71 FEr 273 Fr 71 Fér 71 Fér 77 Fér 71 71 73 T
Other segment information; EfpAEEH (8
(continued)
Depreciation and amortisation & R #8 52,244 43754 47,049 34121 4874 o 20 333 1,210 1,282 - 105,667 79490
Unalocated amounts AORRE 1,705 1,249
107,372 80,739
(Gain)loss on disposal of property, HENE - BERZE
plant and equipment, net BE (i) Bl
(1,343) (850) (95) 69 - = - - - - (1,438) (781)
Surplus on revaluation ERNERERL
of land and buidings i RETIER
recognised drecy mequity B8 (1487 8822 (14725 (73 . = 5 (7,159) P s (83370)  (24768)
Unallocated amounts FOERE (55600 (10,200
(68,930) (34,989)
Fair value (gain)loss on RENEIATE
nvestment properties hz)/88 638 270) - - - (6,021) (4,665) - - - (5,383) (4,939)
(b) Geographical information (b) IFER
United States
of America Europe Asia Others Consolidated
%8 B 3] 0] &a
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NE “E-)\f ZB-pfE —“T-)\F ZB-NE “F-\f ZB-AfE -“Z-\F ZB-NfE “E\%
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$000  HK$'000  HKS$000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEx AT FET AT FET FEr  TEL  FEx FEx FET
Segment revenue: FERE:
Revenue from external customers RENREEHNE 1,715470 1058444 949,124 658,044 1,365,149 1,183,802 192,135 133,984 4,221,878 3,034,274
The revenue information above is based on the PN EERDRIBEE P L
locations of the customers. gl o
Hong Kong Mainland China Malaysia Consolidated
B RE R ERAR &4
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
SE-0E F\F ZE-AE CI-\E ZB-RE CI-\E CE-RE ST
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FET FAT AT &7 FET &7 A7
Other segment information: ~ H#2EEH :
Non-current assets FRBEE 109114 100241 1,378,076 1,072,046 28,374 26529 1515564  1,206816
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Geographical information (continued)

The non-current assets for the above segment
information consist of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, prepaid
land lease payments, investment in associates,
properties under development, intangible
assets and prepayments and deposits, but
exclude deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers
Revenue of HK$2,667,326,000 (2018:
HK$1,861,050,000) was derived from sales of
electrical and electronic products to a major
customer, which accounted for over 10% of
the Group’s total revenue.

Assets and liabilities related to contract
with customers

The Group has recognised the following
assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers:

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

PR R EE

5 p¥ERE)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Contract assets related to glass EEBEBEEMTRZ
production and installation (Note) BHBE ML)

Loss allowance E B R E

Total contract assets BHEBERE

Note:
There consist of revenue from glass services

recognised prior to the date on which it is invoiced to
customers.
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Br RS R EE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 o2EEBER®)
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contract (d) EBEEFEHAZEERERE(E)
with customers (continued)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Contract liabilities related to sales of B ES R A HNAE
goods (Note i) (B &) 92,618 -
Contract liabilities related to glass ERARBEEERTE
production and installation (Note i) & %) & & (K7:5) 1,267 -
Contract liabilities related to sales of BRAEEME AN EE
properties (Note i) (B &tii) 72,296 -
166,181 -
Notes: et -
()  These consist of advanced payments received (i) HEEEHAEEERFP 2 EM
from customers for goods that have not yet MEFPELBEZ K -
been transferred to the customers.
(i)  These consist of advanced payments received (i) WEEREBHEEVERTFEK
from customers resulting from the properties e
sales.
(e) Revenue recognised in relation to contract () MENEBCERAZUE
liabilities

The following table shows how much of the
revenue recognised for the year ended 31
March 2019 relates to carried-forward contract
liabilities that were satisfied in a prior year:

BHHEER

Contract liabilities related to sales of goods
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OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 6

Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, net

Fair value gain on investment
properties (Note 16)

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, net

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 39)

Gross rental income

Sales of scrap materials

Subsidy income (Note)

Write-back of impairment in
properties under development

Write-back of impairment in property,
plant and equipment

Others

FERBREAFENEREZ
SRMEEZBRBILA

FERBREAFENEREZ
TREEZ AFERE
=i

BEME 2 A FERE
(Hat16)

HEME BMELZHEE
Uz FEE

HEMBA R Z W
(#1#£39)

R ON L

& R

wWERURA (A7 72)

BRAYEZRERR

ME - BEREREBZRE
(o] 4
H Al
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2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHAT FET

- 850

6,720 8
5,383 4,935
1,438 781

- 10,126

3,778 1,026
3,662 6,942
46,147 69,840

- 4,582

7,189 -
3,568 6,784
77,885 105,874
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Br RS R EE

6 OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

(continued)
Note:

Various government subsidies have been received from
the local government authorities for subsidising the
operating activities, research and development activities,
and acquisition of fixed assets. During the year ended
31 March 2019, subsidies amounting to HK$46,147,000
(2018: HK$69,840,000) are recognised in profit or loss,
including the recognition of deferred government subsidies
of HK$33,112,000 (2018: HK$26,338,000).

7 FINANCE COSTS, NET

Interest on bank loans iR
Bank interest income iR

During the year ended 31 March 2019, interest
of HK$9,760,000 (2018: HK$7,921,000) was
capitalised under properties under development. The
capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of
borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted
average interest rate applicable to the entity’s
borrowings during the year of 3.7% (2018: 2.9%).
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wist -

KARE B & BUT #E WS E T
BYA BB S A A RRBETE
E-RBEE-_T-—AF=ZA=Z+—BLILHF
- #BA 46,147,000 (ZF— \F :
69,840,000/ /L) ERNBENER - 215
B KT B T 7 B)33,112,0008 7L (= Z — N\
£ : 26,338,000/ 7T) °

7 BMBER FHE

2019 2018
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B %% R ax MY =

8 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 RBANER

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after REBZBRBEIEFNEHER, GEA) T

charging/(crediting): 5| & I8 -
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAE 2,971,560 1,955,739

Amortisation of prepaid land lease FEN TS (HaF17)

payments (Note 17) 650 641
Amortisation of intangible assets M EESE (Wit18)

(Note 18) 1,807 =
Depreciation (Note 15) eE (K:15) 104,915 80,098
Direct operating expenses (including B2 EMEEEY

repairs and maintenance) arising HRELERST (RiEgE

from rental earning investment FIRE)

properties 281 193
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) REBRMHEZ (f1:F9) 746,903 601,004
Impairment of accounts receivable FE W BR R 2 R B

(Note 22) (Hiit22) - 3,784
Legal and professional fee FEERBEER 9,028 10,690
Operating lease payments in THEEFLEERERAE

respect of land and buildings 7,579 3,264
Impairment/(write-back of impairment) 7% 7 5@, CR/E R #) -

of inventories, net F R 3,034 (14,895)
Write-off of property, plant and MEWE - BER&E

equipment 904 =
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee benefit expenses (including
Directors’ emoluments)

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
HEZZ-NF=A=+—HILFEZFRH

9 EERMMAX
(a) EEENBEX (BEESHH)

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Wages, salaries and other ITE& FHehHMmEERAM
employee welfares 743,809 597,629
Retirement benefits costs IR K48 BB AR 2,114 2,112

Equity-settled share option A4 E 2 BB S

expense (Note 30) (#17230) 980 1,263
746,903 601,004

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
five (2018: five) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 10.

During the year, no emoluments have been
paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office (2018:
Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments

The remuneration of every director and chief
executive for the year ended 31 March 2019
and 2018 is set out below:

10

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

PR R EE

ExVakER (REBE(EE
N AMERBI) (5£622F ) % 3831%
(28 (RBEESAEER) R
AI) (56622GE) R&ERB L™
RABEER)

(@) EERTIETBRAEME

BE_Z-NEFR-_T-N\F=
A=t—BLFE REZEKTE
TTRABFHMEIINT

Equity-
settled Pension
Discretionary  share option scheme
Fee Salary bonus expense contributions Total
RagE Bffé
fie e MERL BRERX STEER &3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- &7 &R 7R 7R FEx
2019 ZE-NF
Executive directors and the HTESR
chief executive BETHAE
Cheng Chor Kit (Note J B8 i) - 4,500 - - - 4,500
Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent B%8 - 2,700 - - 18 2,118
Liu Tat Luen BEg - 1,269 - - 18 1,287
Cheng Tsz To g1z - 1,350 - - 18 1,368
Cheng Tsz Hang g1 - 1,620 - - 18 1,638
Hui Ka Po, Alex FRR - 2,610 - 17 18 2,145
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Wong Chi Wai i 300 - - 82 - 382
Sun Kwal Yu, Vivian Bz 300 - - 82 - 382
Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul HEy 300 - - 82 - 382
Cheung Wang p RLE 300 - - 82 - 382
1,200 14,049 - 445 90 15,784

179



KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
EaEEERAR

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

BE-F-NFZA=+—ALFEZEH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS R EE

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (continued)

10

BEENRZRERS (KBER
N EMEB) (5£622F ) 538315
(PRI (BBEEENZER) R
AlY (6622GE) R EFERB L™
ARAWEER) &)

() ESERTFETHRAEME (B

Equity-settled Pension

Discretionary  share option scheme
Fee Salary bonus expense  contributions Total
et Rike
He e WERL  BRERR HE |25 a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
A A7 AT FET FAET AT
2018 ZE-NE
Executive directors and the YIESR
chief executive BRTHAR
Cheng Chor Kit (Note J BRE W) - 6,000 978 - - 6,978
Fung Wah Cheong, Vincent EZ8 = 3,600 825 - 18 4,443
Liu Tat Luen BiEE = 1,692 300 - 18 2,010
Cheng Tsz To g1 - 840 700 = 18 1558
Cheng Tsz Hang B8 - 1,200 669 - 18 1887
Chin Wee Hon (Note i ik mii) = 798 - 130 12 940
Hui Ka Po, Alex FRR - 3471 386 132 18 4,007
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTEE
Wong Chi Wai LRk 300 S = 285 = 585
Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian BEm 300 - - 285 - 585
Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul I 300 = = 70 = 370
Cheung Wang Ip % 300 = - 74 = 374
1,200 17,601 3,858 976 102 23,737
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a
director or the chief executive waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year
(2018: Nil).

Notes:

(i) Mr. Cheng Chor Kit, a director of the
Company, is also the chief executive of the
Company.

(i) Mr. Chin Wee Hon resigned as an executive
director on 12 November 2017.

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any retirement benefits during the year ended
31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any termination benefits during the year ended
31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).
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10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622),
COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS
OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services
(2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans

and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
During the year ended 31 March 2019, there
is no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of the directors, or
controlled body corporates and connected
entities of such directors (2018: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
Save as disclosed in Note 18, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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11

INCOME TAX

Current — Hong Kong
Charge for the year
Adjustment for current tax of prior
years
Current — Elsewhere
Charge for the year
Adjustment for current tax of prior

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

PR R EE

11 8
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F BT FET

KEE—-FHH
FAZH 12,142 8,311
BEFENHREAE

2,180 (2,354)
AEE - Hfbih @
FARZH 2,173 20,095
BEFERHHEBEAR

years (8,118) 276
Deferred tax (Note 28) EIEFLIE (Hf7728) 10,383 6,291
Total tax charge for the year FARBEZ N BT 18,760 32,619
A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit BARNBIREXRZEWB AT EZ
before tax at the statutory rates for the locations FEMEAE ZERARBER ISR Z B
in which the Company and the majority of its TER Y EIRERMERAE 2 HIER X 8
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the R -
effective tax rate is as follows:

2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Profit before tax I 4 AT s 129,171 182,325
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEMEAE 2HIE 20,719 36,591
Adjustments in respect of current BT HABENE
tax of previous periods TI1E 7 F R (5,938) (2,078)
Income not subject to tax BAERB ZBA (2,844) (19,803)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR 2 AXZ 3,874 17,522
Tax losses from previous EFHBAEZBIEEE
periods utilised (952) (2,803)
Tax losses not recognised RIERZFIEE B 10,679 6,601
Effect of different taxation rates MEEE T TRIHEERNTE
under preferential tax treatment (6,778) (8,411)
Tax charge at the Group’s BRAEFBERMEAE Y
effective rate MBS H 18,760 32,619
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11

INCOME TAX (continued)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the applicable rates of tax prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates. The
tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC is
25% (2018: 25%), except for certain subsidiaries of
the Group in the PRC that were approved as High
and New Technology Enterprise during the year,
and accordingly, they were subject to a reduced
preferential corporate income tax (“CIT”) rate of 15%
for a 3-year period from 2017 to 2019 according to
the applicable CIT Law.
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12 DIVIDENDS 12 RE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Dividends paid during the year FRETRE
Final dividend in respect of the financial #Z —-Z— /\F = A
year ended 31 March 2018 — HK7.0 =t+t—HILEMBRFEZ
cents per ordinary share (2018: final REBRE-—SHREBRK
dividend in respect of the financial 708 (ZE—NF
year ended 31 March 2017 — HK5.0 BE_ZT—+H=A
cents per ordinary share) =T —ALVERFEZ
KRS —FRET B
5.0/811) 30,728 21,518
Interim dividend — HK3.0 cents per FRERRR B — R E B
ordinary share (2018: HK3.0 cents) 3.0 (ZE—NEF -
3.0784l) 13,168 13,063
43,896 34,581
Proposed final dividend ERARERE
Final — Nil (2018: HK7.0 cents per KIS —\E(ZZE—N\F:
ordinary share) FRE®BR7.080) - 30,692
The Board has resolved not to declare any final EEeS AT S EAERE Y REIRS
dividend for the Year (2018: HK7.0 cents per —E— \F SREERT.OEA) -

ordinary share).
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Br RS R EE

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

- profit for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$112,384,000 (2018:
HK$149,821,000),

- by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 438,831,233 (2018: 431,580,548) in
issue during the year.

A reconciliation of the weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in calculating the basic and
diluted earnings per share is as follows:

13 EREF
SREXBFDETHEEERTE

— ARREZREARGFERZN
112,384,0008 7T (=& — N\ F :
149,821,000/ 7T) -

- BRUFRABBTETRBRINEFY
£7438,831,233 (=& — N\ F :
431,580,5480%)

RAFESRERLEERN 2 EBR

I BRI ¢
2019 2018
—g-nE -T-N%

Weighted average number of ordinary BUAGTESRERAET 2
shares used in calculating basic earnings % i i% 1 S 15 £

per share

438,831,233 431,580,548

Weighted average number of ordinary BERRERNRBITEMNE
shares assumed to have been issued at  H A&7 2 BEARRE M (=
no consideration on deemed exercise of 1T TR INE T

all options outstanding during the year

369,565 3,728,407

Weighted average number of ordinary BUTESR#EERTN 2
shares used in calculating diluted TRBIMEFSH

earnings per share

Basic earnings per share SRERE
Diluted earnings per share BREFRF
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439,200,798 435,308,955

HK25.61 centsi#fll  HK34.71 centsi{ll
HK25.59 cents#fll  HK34.42 centsi{ll
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

The calculation of the diluted earnings per
share amount is based on the profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$112,384,000 (2018: HK$149,821,000) and
439,200,798 (2018: 435,308,955) ordinary shares,
being the number of shares outstanding during the
year, adjusted for the effects of the dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the year ended
31 March 2019.
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ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019
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14 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

14 B2 =]
TEHIIR-—E—hE=A=+—A0>

31 March 2019: TEWMBLAF :
Place of Particulars Ownership
incorporation and of issued interest held
Name kind of legal entity share capital by the Group  Principal activities
AL B R XEEREZ
ARER EAERER ERTRAFE FrERREE TEEX
Directly held
EEREE
Kin Yat Holdings (BVI) Limited  British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share 100% Investment holding
limited liability company US$1
BESE(RERLES) HERZHE ARAR ETRERIET REER
AR AT
Indirectly held
BERE
Guizhou Kin Yat Property The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company RMB130,000,000
EMZREIERRAR hE - ARAF TRRARK B ERE
130,000,0007T
Guizhou Standard Electric The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading
Motor Company Limited limited liability company HK$110,000,000 of motors
BEMEEERERAA hE - ARAA LB/ 110,000,000% 7T HEREREH
Kin Yat (Guizhou) Robot The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading
Company Limited limited liability company RMB100,000,000 of toys and electronic
products
BEENBEAGRLF  HE BRAF ETRRARE HEREENARET
100,000,0007C Em
Kin Yat (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% Trading of electrical
Corporation Limited limited liability company HK$10,000 products
Bh(ER)ERAERAR &% BRAA LB 10,000/8 7T EEEREM
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2019: (continued)

14 B2 F @)
TREIIR-T-NF=A=+—-BZ
ETEMBAF : (A)

Place of Particulars Ownership
incorporation and of issued interest held
Name kind of legal entity share capital by the Group  Principal activities
AL B R rEERELZ
AREH EAERER ERTRAFE FiE#RER TEEHR
Indirectly held (continued)
MERE (2)
Kin Yat Industrial Company Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% Trading of toys,

Limited limited liability company HK$3,200,000 electronic products,
and sourcing of
materials

BHEXEBERAA B BRRA L1BMR3,200,000% 7T BENA EFERMR

MEHRER

Newway Electrical Industries Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% Trading of electrical
(Hong Kong) Limited limited liability company HK$10,000 household appliances

MEEREE (BR)ERRA &B FRAA LiBR10,0008 T EEXE

Penta Blesses Enterprises Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% Investment and property
Limited limited liability company HK$1,000,000 holding

IREERRRA &% BRAA 3% 1%1,000,000%8 7 RERFEME

Renhua Talent Wood The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading
Company Limited limited liability company HK$26,500,000 of toys

ClBREAREERAF hE - BERAA % #%26,500,00078 7T HEREEMA

Shaoguan Turbo Electronic The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading

Technology Company Limited  limited liability company US$8,000,000 of toys and electrical
appliances

RREESFHRERLA hE - BRAA L 1BM%8,000,0005 7T SERBEMARESR
Shenzhen Kin Yat Power The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading

Electronic Company Limited limited liability company US$5,000,000 of toys and electronic
products
RNEHREEFERAA hE - BARAA L 1BM%5,000,000% 7T HEREEMAREF
Em
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2019: (continued)

14 KB 2 F) @)
TREIIR-T-NF=ZA=+—-BZ
ETEMBAR : (4)

Place of Particulars Ownership
incorporation and of issued interest held
Name kind of legal entity share capital by the Group  Principal activities
TEM A Lt B R XEEREZ
ARER EAERER ERTRAFE FrERREE TEEX
Indirectly held (continued)
MERE (2)
Shixing Standard Motor The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Property holding,
Company Limited limited liability company US$23,000,000 manufacture and
trading of motors
MAGERENRSERGRAR HE FRAA T 23,000,000% 7T RENE HEREE
BH
Smart Electric Hong Kong, Ordinary share 100% Trading of motors
Motor Company Limited limited liability company HK$1 and materials
BRERERNA BE  ARAA LRBRIET EXEHRYH
Smart Electric Motor Singapore  Singapore, Ordinary shares 100% Trading of motors
Pte. Limited limited liability company SG$100
g BRAA LB 1003 % T EEEH
Standard Encoder (Malaysia) Malaysia, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture and trading
Sdn Bhd limited liability company RM500,000 of encoder film
SRAT - BRAA L BR%500,0005 ¥ SERBERBRIEM
Standard Land (Malaysia) Malaysia, Ordinary shares 100% Property holding
Sdn Bhd limited liability company RM500,000
SRAS - BRAA L1B%500,0005 # REME
Standard Motor Company Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% Trading of motors and
Limited limited liability company HK$40,000,000 sourcing of materials
CEMAEITERAR B BRAA 3% 1%40,000,0007% 7T ERSHERRBIN
Standard Motor Japan Japan, Ordinary shares 100% Trading of motors

Company Limited

limited liability company
BA - ARAA

JPY10,000,000
% 38/%10,000,0008
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2019: (continued)

14 B2 F @)
TREIIR-T-NF=A=+—-BZ
ETEMBAF : (A)

Place of Particulars Ownership
incorporation and of issued interest held
Name kind of legal entity share capital by the Group  Principal activities
TEM A L3t B R rEEREZ
AREH EAERER ERTRAFE FrE#RER TEEHR
Indirectly held (continued)
MERE (2)
Unicon Investments Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% Property holding
limited liability company HK$10,000
HEREBRAF BE  ARAA LB 10,000/8 T RENE
World Talent Enterprise Limited Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 100% Trading of toys
limited liability company HK$1,000,000
REGCEBRAT % BRAA 3% 1%1,000,0007%5 7 EEMA
ENEEREEROA The PRC, Ordinary shares 100% Manufacture of
limited liability company RMB5,000,000 toys and clothes
hE - BRAA TRRARK SEMARRE
5,000,0007T
Progress Power-Saving Glass ~ Hong Kong, Ordinary shares 64% Trading of glass
Technology Company Limited  limited liability company HK$20,000 products
BIREREBERRERAR  AB BRAA £ %20,0005 7T BEWEEMR
glEfae 3 (EM)BRAR  The PRC, Ordinary shares 64%  Sale and downstream
limited liability company RMB30,000,000 processing of glass
mE - BRAA ERRARK HEM TR MIRE
30,000,0007T
EMalEEseEE T The PRC, Ordinary shares 64% Design, manufacture and

BRAR limited liability company RMB50,000,000 installation of curtain
wall systems
HE - BRAR TRRARE Fit EERTE
50,000,0007T i R4
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT

31 March 2019

Cost or valuation:

At 1 April 2018

Additions

Disposals

Acquisition of a subsidiary
(Note 18)

Write-off

Transfers

Surplus on revaluation

Write-back on revaluation

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2019

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:

At 1 April 2018

Provided during the year

Disposals

Write-off

Write-back on revaluation

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2019
Net book value:

At 31 March 2019

An analysis of cost or valuation:
At cost
At 2019 valuation

ZE-hE=A=1-H

BAERE:

RZF-\EmA-H

NE
e

WE-RRBAF
\//Wi?fg/]

i

a5

Eff 2R

EfkEE
BiA%

R-E-NEzR=1-H
SHTERAE:

RZE-\EWA-H
FREfk

k=

Wi

EffBOE

B

R-E-hE=B=1-8
BEFE:
RZE-NEzA=1-H

BAESMEEZDH -
BAAE
R-F-NEHE
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15 W%  BERRE

Medium term Moulds, Furniture,
leasehold Freehold tools, and equipment
land and landand  Construction plant and and motor
buildings buildings in progress machinery vehicles Total
HHAg KAZRE BR-IR  KR-&%
THEEF  LHREF EEIE RERHEES kAE @5t
HK$:000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$:000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
370,074 25,216 52,378 917,165 414,094 1,778,927
- - 50,507 221,348 22,938 300,793
- - - (17,880) (646) (18,526)
- - 147 31,143 7,050 38,340
- - - - (4,204) (4,204)
- - (1,496) 838 658 -
68,754 176 - - - 68,930
(14,650) (176) (14,826)
(8,601) 1,830 (3,946) (47,624) (13,253) (71,594)
445,517 21,046 97,590 1,110,990 426,637 2,077,840
- - - 629,926 282,333 912,259
14,650 176 - 63,929 26,160 104,915
- - - (8,745) (580) (9,325)
- - - - (3,300) (3,300)
(14,650) (176) - - - (14,826)
- - - (28,318) (7,289) (35,607)
- - - 656,792 297,324 954,116
445,517 21,046 97,590 454,198 129,313 1,123,724
- - 97,590 1,110,990 426,637 1,635,217
415,577 21,046 - - - 442,623
445,517 21,046 97,590 1,110,990 426,637 2,077,840

192



ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEZZT-NF=A=+—HIFEZFR BEEEERAR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% R ax MY =

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15 % MERRE @)
EQUIPMENT (continued)
Medium term Moulds, Fumiture,
leasehold Freehold toals, and equipment
and and landand  Construction plant and and motor
buildings buildings in progress machinery vehicles Total
hEEE KAKE BR-TR &M %&
1HRET  IHEEF ERIE RERERZ kAE it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT TAT TAT TAT

31 March 2018 ZE-NEzZA=t-8
Cost or valuation: AAESRE:
At 1 April 2017 RZE-tEWA-A 335,828 23,863 8,189 839,591 378,813 1,686,274
Additions RE = = 42,864 96,152 29,508 168,524
Disposdls te (1881) - - (1,388) (1,261) (4,530)
Acouisttion of a subsidiary WE-RNBAT - - - 4,938 4,489 9,427
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF = = - (50,391) (22,135) (72,526)
Write-off i = = = (49,413 - (49,413
Transfers e = = (1,680) - 1680 =
Surplus on revaluation EffR% 34,800 168 - - - 34,968
Write-back on revaluation SEEDE (13,661) (169) - - - (13,829)
Exchange realignment EiA% 14,988 1,363 3,005 77,676 23,000 120,032
At 31 March 2018 RZB-N\E=A=1-H 370,074 25,216 52,378 917,165 414,094 1,778,927
Accumulated depreciation 2FERAE:

and impairment:
At 1 April 2017 RZE-tERA-H = = = 633,760 271,464 905,224
Provided during the year EREE 13,703 168 - 44 568 21,659 80,098
Disposals e (42) - - (1,266) (1,191) (2,499)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT - - (50,391) (22,135) (72,526)
Write-back on revaluation EfFOE (13,661) (168) - - - (13,829)
Wiite-off s - - - (49.413) - (49,413)
Exchange realignment EREE - - - 52,668 12,536 65,204
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=A=1-H = - - 629,926 282,333 912,259
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 March 2018 RZF-N\E=R=1-R 370,074 25,016 52,378 287,239 131,761 866,668

An analysis of cost or valuation: KAEHEEZ 2 :
At cost BRHAE - - 52,378 917,165 414,094 1,383,637
At 2018 valuation B-g-N\EzfE 370,074 25,216 - - - 395,290

370,074 25,216 52,378 917,165 414,004 1,778,927
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15 Y% - BMERKREB#E)

EQUIPMENT (continued)

At 31 March 2019, the Group’s land and buildings
in Hong Kong, and buildings in Mainland China
and Malaysia were revalued based on valuation
performed by Asset Appraisal Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$87,000,000
(2018: HK$78,700,000), RMB280,050,000 (2018:
RMB235,600,000) (equivalent to HK$328,577,000
(2018: HK$291,375,000)) and Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”)
14,200,000 (2018: RM13,630,000) (equivalent to
HK$27,046,000 (2018: HK$25,216,000)), respectively.
Revaluation surpluses of HK$68,930,000 (2018:
HK$34,968,000) resulting from the above revaluation
were credited to the asset revaluation reserve.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of
the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained.
The management discusses with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed for financial reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation
techniques used in prior years. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the Group’s land and buildings at
31 March 2019 and 2018 are estimated by using
significant unobservable inputs and the fair value
measurement is categorised within Level 3.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).
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RZB-NF=A=+—H8 A~&H
REBZ T REFURRFE A
FERAGZEFDHREBIEXS
ERHEMPHEEETEBMEEA
RARFET HEMERS “ED
7 A£87,000,000 T (=& — N\ F =
78,700,000/ 7T) + AR #280,050,000
T (ZE—NF : AR%¥235,600,000
7t) (% R328,577,0008 T (ZE— N
4 1 291,375,000/ Jt)) &14,200,000
FEE(IEEB(ZZ — N\ F -
13,630,00055 % ) (48 % 7427,046,0007%
T (ZF—)\F :25216,000/% 7T)) °
S E A 2 S 1h & £#268,930,000/%
JC (ZZF— )\ : 34,968,000 7T) B 5
ANBESHHEE-

BF  AKEZREIBEEMAEHA
SEZYMEETINEMGE - TBFESR
RhmEME - B2 BUMERSEER
BEXEE - ERMBRBETHER
EEEgEGEMREERKLGEE

+
# °

BEFEMAGBERMITEZEE - B b
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AV EEMN
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements

categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount:
At 1 April 2018

Depreciation

Surplus on
revaluation

Exchange
realignment

At 31 March 2019

At 1 April 2017

Depreciation
Disposal
Surplus on
revaluation
Exchange
realignment

At 31 March 2018

REE
R_ZE—N\F
WH—H
e
EHAR
R
RZE—NF
=A=+—H
R_E—+F
WH—H
e

HE

=2HA

R EE
ﬁé\:i_)\ﬂz
=HA=+—8H

15 ¥ - BMERRE#®)
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DNFERE(E)
ENERAFERBE=FNZATE
SR HE
Land and Buildings Buildings
buildings in  in Mainland  in Mainland Buildings
Hong Kong China China  in Malaysia
(Industrial) (Residential)  (Industrial)  (Industrial) Total
REE ReErt ReERE RERAEZ
ZIREF ZETF ZEF ZEF
(I¥) (£=) (I¥) (I%) #gt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FE FET FET
78,700 - 291,375 25,215 395,290
(3,148) - (11,502) (176) (14,826)
11,448 - 57,306 176 68,930
- - (8,602) 1,831 (6,771)
87,000 - 328,577 27,046 442,623
60,800 1,792 273,236 23,853 359,681
(2,432) (42) (11,229) (168) (13,871)
= (1,839) = — (1,839)
20,332 - 14,468 168 34,968
= 89 14,900 1,362 16,351
78,700 = 291,375 25,215 395,290
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used
and the key inputs to the valuation of properties:

Class of properties

LEE Yl

Hong Kong

BB
- Land and buildings
— T REF
— Industrial
—T¥
— Level 3
-%=F
Mainland China

A A HE
— Buildings
—EF
— Industrial
_ I%
- Level 3
~HE=F

Malaysia

BRI
— Buildings
—1EF
— Industrial
— Level 3
~E=

As at 31 March 2019, had the Group’s land and
buildings stated at valuation been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation, they would have been
included in the financial statements at approximately

Valuation
techniques

HEA%

Market comparable
method
5L B

Direct replacement
cost method

HEEEERANA

Direct replacement
cost method

BERBERAR

HK$173,004,000 (2018: HK$191,353,000).

15 ¥ - BMERRKRE#®)

D EEE(E)

Significant
unobservable inputs

BEATUEERGAYE

Gross unit rate per
square foot
BYFREBLER

Gross unit rate per
square foot
BT REBRER

Gross unit rate per
square foot
BEFREEAERS

MEREFRAZHEREREEZH A
BEHgENT

Range of unobservable
inputs (weighted average)

TABERARIBEE
(fnEF33)
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-)N\F
HK$ HK$
B BT

JrAp—
ZIHEEFURARRETESE
BREE - JIAMEHRERPEBE L RE
F 7 EREEX A173,004,000/8 T (=&

4,135 to 4,231 3,750 to 3,827

4,135%4,231 3,750%3,827

67 to 145 57 to 125
67£145 57%125
488 455

—NE=A=1T—H0 HAKHE

— J\4F : 191,353,000/ 7T)
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16

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Carrying amount at the FUREE
beginning of year
Transfer from properties under B R ) 2 e

development
Gain from fair value

adjustment (Note 6) (Hite)
Exchange realignment PE 3 38 B
Carrying amount at the end of year FRIEMEE

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
construction of The Royale Cambridge Residences
in Guizhou Province is substantially completed,
the Group has reviewed the intended usage of the
commercial building, and determined that certain area
could be leased to derive rental income. Therefore,
certain portion is transferred from properties under
development to investment properties.

The balance also included residential units and car
park, and a commercial leasehold land in Shaanxi
Province and Guizhou Province, respectively.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 March 2019 based on valuations performed by
Assets Appraisal Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers, at RMB55,460,000 (2018:
RMB50,990,000) (equivalent to HK$65,070,000
(2018: HK$63,061,000)).

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of
the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained.
The management discusses with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed for financial reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation
techniques used in prior years. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use.
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PR R EE

16 REWHE

2019 2018
—E—-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FE T
63,061 42,173

= 10,733

5,383 4,935
(3,374) 5,220
65,070 63,061

BE_ZT-N\F=A=+—HILFE"
EMNERBEFRMNERTIFEERNE
Ko AKECENAEXETORER
woWEEARRESEANE T
g-FHit ETHOREBRRTOERSE
BMEREWE -

BATORIBRERAENEEEMLRE
Big AREBEMENEERE L -

RZZE—-AE=A=+—8 K&E
CHEREMEBEBUEELAERGE
BT HEEETEBM AR AR E
T2 HEEM A ARS5,460,0007T
(ZZ=—N\%F: AR#¥50,990,0007T)
(HBE765,070,00008 T (ZE— )\ F :
63,061,000 7T)) °

BF ASEZRBIBEEMNEESEAR
SEZMFEETIHIBGEE - REFTER
RMEHE - B2 BUMEREEER
BERE - ERMBRRETHER
EEEgEMGEMN REERRLGE

=i
él:l °

RBEFERBZAEENELELE o
REFTIERZAFER  BENE &K
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 March 2019 and 2018 are estimated by
using significant unobservable inputs and the fair
value measurement is categorised within Level 3.
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements
categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

16 REWE #)

DNFERE
R-B-NFR-_F-NF=A=+—
B AREREMENRFELIERE
RAABRGABBG R ERE
BEEFEZE  RAFE $EEFAA
FEHEEF EBEHF_EZEEE -
NEBAFIBEE=ZR(ZZT-/N\F:
&) o

SHEEANTEEEE=-EB2AFETE
HERWT -

Buildings Land in Building in
in Mainland Mainland Mainland
China China China
(Residential) (Commercial) (Commercial) Total
URPERE CRPERE CRPERG
ZEBF 21t ZBF
(F%) (F%) (%) Bt
HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’°000
FET FET FET FET
Carrying amount: REE:
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\ENA—H 4,564 46,995 11,502 63,061
Gain/loss from a fair value NTEAEEEZ
adjustment Wi/ BB (638) 5,781 240 5,383
Exchange realignment 0E A% (218) (2,561) (595) (3,374)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF
=A=+—H 3,708 50,215 11,147 65,070
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—tE5MA—H 3,875 38,298 - 42,173
Transferred from properties REEp Y EER
under development = = 10,733 10,733
Gain from a fair value adjustment A V(&R E £ 7 iz 270 4,467 198 4,935
Exchange realignment B 5 5 419 4,230 571 5,220
At 31 March 2018 RZT—N\%
=A=+—H 4,564 46,995 11,502 63,061
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16 REWE &)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used REMEGBEMAZHEEREREEE
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment ABERALT :
properties:
Valuation Significant Range of unobservable
Class of properties techniques unobservable inputs inputs (weighted average)
FTOBRERAREBEE
L/E X0z fH{EF % ERTAEERRASE (hn#E¥39)
2019 2018
—E—hHF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
Er T
Residential properties  Market comparable Gross unit rate per 951 1,170
in Mainland China method square foot*
Wb B A2 EE M SRR R A BRI E B
Leasehold land Market comparable Gross unit rate per 26 24
in Mainland China method square foot*
R B A BE T TS EE BEAREEMCER
Commercial properties Income method Gross unit rate per 518 534
in Mainland China square foot*
RPN BEYE WRAOX BT HREELER
# The higher the gross unit rate per square foot, the # BEHFRASMEBERAS  AFEA
higher the fair value. 5 e
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ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

17 PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Cost:
At the beginning of year
Exchange realignment

At the end of year

Amortisation:
At the beginning of year

Recognised during the year (Note 8)

Exchange realignment

At the end of year

Carrying amount at the end of year

Outside Hong Kong, held on:

Leases of between 40 to 50 years

A

G

E 5

RER

e

REH

FRER (HiLs8)
PE SR

RER

RERZEHEE

REBBINAES :

T E RA0E504F
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2019 2018
—ZE-NF —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
33,174 31,431
(946) 1,743
32,228 33,174
8,402 7,314

650 641

(261) 447

8,791 8,402
23,437 24,772
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
23,437 24,772
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% R ax MY =

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 BEE
Contract
order back
Goodwill Technology log Total
[5ES Bt BEENETE @t

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET TET FET TET

At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R-ZE—NF=ZA=+—H}K

\:?-Ai@ﬂ—ﬁ
Cost 2% 7,872 - - 7,872
Accumulated amortisation R EH = - - -
Net book value REFE 7,872 - - 7,872
Opening net book amount ENREFE 7,872 = = 7,872
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note) Wi —FR M B A A (A7) 10,713 18,100 900 29,713
Amortisation B 54 - (1,207) (600) (1,807)
Exchange alignment B K 3 2 1 - - 1
Closing net book amount FRREFE 18,586 16,893 300 35,779
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=ZRA=+—H
Cost AR 18,586 18,100 900 37,586
Accumulated amortisation Rt - (1,207) (600) (1,807)
Net book value REFE 18,586 16,893 300 35,779
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 R-ZE—+E=A=+—-HE

—T-t+tEMA—AH
Cost B 4,650 - - 4,650
Accumulated amortisation 2 EE = - - _
Net book value REFE 4,650 - - 4,650
Opening net book amount FRAFE 4,650 - - 4,650
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note b) Ui —F M B2 3 (H1:b) 3,061 = = 3,061
Exchange alignment R 161 - - 161
Closing net book amount FREmFE 7,872 = = 7,872
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NF=ZRA=+—-H
Cost B A 7,872 - - 7,872
Accumulated amortisation Rt - = _ =
Net book value EHFE 7,872 = = 7,872
Amortisation of intangible assets is included in B EERECTAGERERZITH
administrative expenses in the consolidated income XA o

statement.
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 3 April 2018, Kin Yat Enterprises (BVI) Limited
(“Kin Yat Enterprises”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with a third party to acquire 13% equity
interest in Progress Power-Saving Glass Technology
Co., Limited (“Progress Power-Saving”) together
with shareholder’s loan amounting to HK$1,386,000
provided by the seller to Progress Power-Saving at a
total cash consideration of HK$7,647,000.

On 25 July 2018, Kin Yat Enterprises entered into
a sales and purchase agreement with Silurian
Resources Limited, which is wholly owned by Mr.
Cheng Chor Kit, the chairman of the Board of
Directors and chief executive officer of the Company.
Pursuant to the agreement, Kin Yat Enterprises
will further acquire 51% equity interest in Progress
Power-Saving together with shareholder’s loan
amounting to HK$16,820,000 provided by Mr. Cheng
Chor Kit to Progress Power-Saving at a total cash
consideration of HK$30,000,000.

The acquisition was completed on 14 August 2018.
Upon the completion, the Group holds 64% equity
interest in Progress Power-Saving, of which its wholly
owned subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
sales and downstream processing of glass.

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

18

BE-T-NF=AS+—ALFEIFH

BEEE®)

Mat

(a)

R-ZTE—N\FMA=H AEEZZ
& MiE A FKin Yat Enterprises (BVI)
Limited ([Kin Yat Enterprises]) B2 55
=R EBE R IREEAIEET RS
WHEAMEERAR ([AIESHE]) Z
13%MEEREH MEIZEEREZ
B 5 B 5%1,386,000/8 7T * RS HRE
7,647,0008 7T °

R-Z—)\FLtA-+HH ' Kin Yat
Enterprisesfl E&B 4L ERBMR AT (K
HAARIEFE TR RITHRATD
BREEZEBRB)IFTILEERE -
B Z W= Kin Yat Enterprisesi
#— U B R AN AL 2 51 %A% #E i )
BREGgrEmalZHERHZIBRE
B 316,820,000/ 7T ' BEENRE A
30,000,000/ 7T °

WEEBEeErR - E-NAF/\A+MOA
TR RTEMRIE  AEERE AR
BE64% X - R AR R EMB R R
TEREHEM T HMIRKE -

Consideration:
Cash

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed

Cash and cash equivalents

Property, plant and equipment

Inventories

Accounts and other receivables

Intangible assets

Accounts and other payables

Deferred tax liability

Total identifiable net assets

Non-controlling interests

Amounts due to shareholders assigned to
Kin Yat Enterprises

Goodwill

HK$’000
FET
RE:
Be 37,647
AEN2ERBEERCREAEZ
CRASE
RERBEERY 856
Y - BE REE 38,340
"E 14,885
JE R B 3R B EL A B W KB 33,897
mVEE 19,000
JE 1] BR 5% K EL Ath JE 15 5K 08 (88,590)
BEHEEE (4,750)
WM UEREERE 13,638
FEPE AR 2 (4,910)
B2 TKin Yat Enterprises 2
FE AT AR SR R IE 18,206
(EES 10,713
37,647
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The goodwill of HK$10,713,000 arising from the
acquisition is attributable to the synergies from
combining the operations of the Group and Progress
Power-Saving. None of the goodwill recognised is
expected to be deductible for income tax purpose.

The acquired business contributed revenue of
HK$83,468,000 and net loss of HK$3,221,000 to
the Group for the period from 1 August 2018 to 31
March 2019. If acquisition had occurred on 1 April
2018, consolidated revenue and net profit to the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 would
have been HK$4,249,701,000 and HK$109,334,000
respectively.

On 10 December 2017, Kin Yat (Guizhou) Robot
Group, a wholly-owned subsidiary company of the
Group, entered into a sales and purchase agreement
to acquire the entire issued share capital of &
MEERFE AR AFlat a cash consideration of
RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$5,877,000). &
MEBREBR AR is principally engaged in the
manufacturing of toys and clothes.

il

On 26 December 2017, all the conditions precedent
under the agreement have been fulfilled, the shares
were transferred to the Company and the acquisition
has been completed. Upon the completion, the
Group has acquired the control over E/NEEEHE
BR A |], and goodwill of HK$3,061,000 was resulted
from the acquisition.

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

PR R EE

18 B EE &)
Bt - (&)

(a)

(#&)

U B8 Fr 2 A 2 7 210,713,000/ 7T J5
REGHAEEREIEEZ EERN
EEZHRNE- BRHECHERRE
Z A gh BTG B VR AR o

R-E—NEFENA—BE-_Z—NF
A=+ BHIM - FKREEBAK
£ B 75 2k W 2583,468,00058 7T &% B
183,221,000 L - HEBEKRBER ZF
—NFUA—B%LE KEBHE=
T-NF=ZA=1+—BLEFENESE
U 28 & 4 K| 55 9 Bl B54,249,701,00078
7T % 109,334,000/ Tt °

R-ZE—+E+=-A+H ~EE
PEWBRARER (BM) EEAE
BTV EEHHE UWBEERBARE
5,000,0007t (48 % 545,877,000/ 7T)
WEEMNEEREERAFMNEEE
BTN - EMNEBERIEARARE
EREZETARRE -

RoZE—+E+=-_F=+H HZ
HETIKTA SRR EER - kK
EEETAQRBRESEDTEMN -
REXE  ANEBEERESEMNESR
BERRBIMEG#E mMEKBEED
52 53,061,000/ 7T ©

HK$’000
FHET
Consideration: RE:

Cash Be 5,877

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets TRz EKWBEEHBEAREEEZE

acquired and liabilities assumed BREE

Cash and cash equivalents ReMBE2ERY 2,278
Property, plant and equipment M WERH&E 9,427
Accounts and other receivables JE U5 BR 5% K EL Ath & W KT8 5,074
Accounts and other payables JE 1T BR 5% K EL Ath & 15 5K IE (10,270)
Deferred government subsidy i RE TR 7S f7 B (3,693)
Total identifiable net assets B UEBEEREAE 2,816
Goodwill =S 3,061
5,877
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The goodwill of HK$3,061,000 arising from the
acquisition is attributable to the synergies from
combining the operations of the Group and &M &
BEHEBBR AR None of the goodwill recognised is
expected to be deductible for income tax purpose.

Impairment test for goodwill
Management reviewed the business performance
based on type of business as follows:

Electrical and electronic products
Motors E=Ri

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

HEZZ-NF=A=+—HILFEZFRH

18 B EE &)
Biat : (&)

(o)

BENEFEM

Glass technology and application I 1S By i K e B
At 31 March R=A=+—H

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
management of the Group determined that there was
no impairment of the CGU to which the goodwill has
been allocated. The recoverable amount of goodwill
is determined using a value in use calculation with
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The key assumption for the cash
flow projections is the budget gross margin which
is the average gross margin achieved in the years
before the budgeted year. The discount rates
applied to the cash flow projections for electrical and
electronic products, motors, and glass technology
and application segments were 14%, 14% and 17%
(2018: electrical and electronic products and motors
segment: 14% and 14%) respectively. The financial
budgets are prepared reflecting actual and prior year
performance and development expectations.
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(#&)

U B8 BT 7 4 2 723,061,000/ 7T J5 2R
BAHAEBEREMNEERZEARA
RIZBEMES 2 HRME - BEIH
BERRH BB REL IR -

R (A R
BEEEREA NEBRUEREHX
1] :

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
3,222 3,222
4,650 4,650
10,713 -
18,585 7,872

REBEZE=_ZE—hLhF=ZAR=+—81
FE - ASEECEEET EOED
B RSESBNTERBE - mEY
e e EERERAEBETEESE
mEAEBEEAERSREEEIEZ
HMERAFHZVHBEEZESREE
At -BeREBAZEZBEA
BEEMNE HARBEFENHF
NATERZFEHEFNE - REERE
TER BHUARFEBERNTKERS
BrReRBARAZMRES A
14% ~ 14%B17% (ZE—N\F: &
BRETFTERARBESTE  14% K%
14%) - TRFEE 2 mBEERBRER
REFEMEEREREDY -
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19 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19 BRPY=

2019 2018
—B-—hE —T-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFHET
Properties under development (Note) 2 f& FR 2 (K753) 530,710 294,963
Current portion BIHEAEL > (485,863) (247,795)
Non-current portion JEENHAES o 44,847 47,168
Note: Hfet -
Properties under development comprise: BRPYESE
2019 2018
ZE-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Construction costs and capitalised BEKARERNEEZ W
expenditures 331,532 190,712
Interests capitalised FMEER 30,961 21,201
Land use rights T A 168,217 83,050
530,710 294,963
During the year ended 31 March 2018, certain REZE-_ESE—NE=A=+—HIF&E
properties under development of HK$4,582,000 B B FHESRYEL582,0008 T2
which previously impaired was written-back to O LA EN R R ZE Y ¥ 7] &35 5F
reflect the increase in net realisable value of these B (sEe) o

properties (Note 6).
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B 7% ¥R AR MY B

20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 20 RBE QR ZKRE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Movements in the investment in AL Rl/NE] I
associates are as follows: REEHMT
At the beginning of year REH] 6,183 =
Addition NE 7,189 5,877
Share of post-tax losses JEMEBR B2 518 (827) -
Exchange alignment fE 5 A% (480) 306
At the end of year RER 12,065 6,183
Place of
business/
country of % of Nature of the ~ Measurement
Name of entity establishment effective interest  relationship method Carrying amount
EEnY/
ERER AEE EREREIL BELE FEEE REE
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZB2-nfF “T)\F ZB-NF —T)N\F
HK$000  HK$'000
TET TAET
EMANEUEERAR The PRC 33.33% 33.33% Associate Equity 5,419 6,183
# B2 ER%
EMERERBENERRAT The PRC 46.7% - Associate Equity 6,646 -
G e E&%

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
has subscribed 46.7% of the equity interest in &
MEN EERIMBR AR at a consideration of
RMB5,970,000 (equivalent to HK$7,189,000) settled
by fixed asset injection. During the year ended 31
March 2018, the Group has indirectly subscribed
33.33% of the equity interest in BN ER FHE
[RAd] at a cash consideration of RMB5,000,000
(equivalent to HK$5,877,000).
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REBEZE-_FE—NFZA=Z+—HLF
E - AEBUREARS5970,0007T
(F8 517,189,000/ 7T ) R EE & MIA L
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ERETEEITEMNBE REBE_ZT
—NEFE=ZA=Z+—HILEE A£EH
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21

22

INVENTORIES

Raw materials R
Work in progress &
Finished goods LR
Less: Provision B BiE

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in “Cost of inventories sold” amounted
to approximately HK$2,971,560,000 (2018:
HK$1,955,739,000). Impairment of inventories
amounted to HK$3,034,000 (2018: write-
back of impairment of inventories amounted to
HK$14,895,000) was included in the “Cost of sales”
in the consolidated income statement during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS

RECEIVABLE
Accounts and bills receivable JEUR AR 3k & =R
Loss allowance &5 18 B
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21 7E&

2019 2018
—E-hE ~—T—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000

F BT FET
442,778 319,138
47,342 52,991
159,333 135,987
649,453 508,116
(34,088) (31,054)
615,365 477,062

BREMIRKFAIEEFTENS] 2
FEEK AR A2,971,560,000/8 7T (- =
— \4 : 1,955,739,000/8 7T) ° F &
{E/43,034,0008 7L (ZE—N\F: F&
2 BB B B 514,895,0008 7T) © RE
E-E-NAFZA=+—HILFENE
G EFAEATHENE] -

22 BRRARERE

2019 2018
—E-NF —F-)N\#F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
316,300 371,178
(4,151) (852)
312,149 370,326
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22 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS 22 BWERAKRERE &)
RECEIVABLE (continued)
The Group's trading terms with its customers are REEEZEFZEGBRARBONEE
mainly on credit, except for new customers, where RET TP —RFJFURESHTE
cash on sale or payment in advance is normally NEABEERN - EEH-—RB—EW
required. The credit period is generally for a period @A ETEERARMZEFZEE
of one to two months, extending up to three HARERE==@H  BRXFPHAE
months for certain well-established customers. Each B R - REEERK O EKE 151%%
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group ’EV? B3 E pnsR %'JLH-M*EJ—L
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding RE - REEASSEHR uTﬁHﬂ
receivables and has imposed tightened control to ﬁ/? ﬁgllﬁi‘fﬁf”ﬁgﬁ S
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed ERFEEMEFRREMEERA -
regularly by senior management. The Group does FEWEE AN EEIALAGHE -

not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its accounts and bills receivable balances.
Accounts and bills receivable are non-interest-

bearing.
An aging analysis of the accounts and bills receivable RBEER  BRERRERZERERD
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the MORBEZER)WMT -

invoice date, is as follows:

2019 2018

—ZE-NF —E-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

0 - 30 days 0Z30H 166,541 237,216

31 - 60 days 31260H 51,263 71,253

61 — 90 days 61290H 59,536 43,651

Over 90 days 90H KA I 38,960 19,058

316,300 371,178

Loss allowance BEEHE (4,151) (852)

312,149 370,326

At 31 March 2019, the Group had certain EA_::—H¢:H:+—E KEE7A]

concentrations of credit risk that may arise from EREIAEPR&EAREP E’Jﬂ 2 Wl

the exposure to the five largest customers and the ﬁﬂﬁi ST &EREERR - DRIEARE

largest customer which accounted for approximately E MR IBRE 2 H42% (—ZF— \F:
42% (2018: 64%) and 19% (2018: 42%) of the 64%) &19% (ZZF—/\4F : 42%) °

Group’s total accounts receivables, respectively.
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22 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS 22 EWRAKREE &)
RECEIVABLE (continued)
The movements in provision for impairment of R EEE 2 BEREEENT

accounts and bills receivable are as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
At the beginning of year G 852 1,558
Provision for impairment recognised R E R ERR
during the year BEREE 3,299 3,784
Write-off i 524 - (4,490)
At the end of year RER 4,151 852
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach RNEBEREEMBRELERFEOWEE
to measuring expected credit losses which uses a {EF A 2TEHEEEE AR
lifetime expected loss allowance for all accounts WEERFE R 2 EATE AR 1B B 45 o P 5%
receivable. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the SAL)E BN ERE 2 FHER -
calculation of the allowance.
The carrying amount of accounts and bills receivable EUEREER 2 REAERLAFER

++

approximate their fair values. = o
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23 PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 23 ENRERZS
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Prepayment for property, Y - WRE REREENRKIE
plant and equipment 195,667 180,411

Prepaid construction cost (Note i) TE B EERA (K7 22i) 21,165 184,926

VAT recoverable A] Yz [O] 4% F F 52,603 32,395

Other prepayment and B RIE R

receivables (Note ii) J& WK IE (e atii) 67,831 40,337
Tax reserve certificates %5 25,408 25,408
Other deposits Efine 3,740 2,549

366,414 466,026

Less: Current portion B BUEAER o (155,772) (274,934)

Non-current portion JEENHAES o 210,642 191,092

Notes: et -

(i) As at 31 March 2019, such prepaid construction cost (i) R-ZE—NF=ZA=Z=+—8B HH
include prepaid construction cost of approximately ENREEXNFTBERURFEAR
HK$6,693,000 (2018: HK$174,380,000) to a main HAE (THE]) EMEELE (B
constructor for the properties development project WD 2WEEFRBEESIN T —RBEF
in Dushan County (“Dushan”), Guizhou Province, the B 78 #16,693,000/8 7L (=& — )\ F :
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”). 174,380,000/ 7T) 2 AT R EERK AN -
The properties, upon completion, are for selling ZEMERETRIEHEERSE LT
purpose and are expected to be completed within HR+Z@ARET Bt EHH
twelve months, therefore, it is classified as current HARBEE -
assets.

(i) Other prepayment and receivables include receivable (i) HMENKEREWRRESFERE
amounting to HK$15,955,000 (2018: Nil) from a bank FEERERIES $£162,147,0007
regarding certain factoring without recourse totalling T(ZE—N\F : &) mEKR—FERT
HK$162,147,000 (2018: Nil). As the Group has 15,955,000 T (Z T — \F : 8) K
transferred the credit risk and late payment risk of the EHo-ARAEEEKERERZEE
accounts receivable to the bank, the corresponding b R FEE N R ERER EZIRIT
accounts receivable balance is derecognised from e ERBERERE NG E BN
the consolidated statement of financial position. MR IETER ©
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24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 24 EBBEBRAFEIRZEH

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity investments, LR E - ZmE
at market value - 22,614
Listed debt investments, ETEBKEE  BmE
at market value 3,936 8,640
Unlisted equity investments, FLETRAKE  RAFE
at fair value 10,204 =
14,140 31,254
The above investments at 31 March 2019 and 2018 RZE—NER_T—NF=ZA=1+—
were classified as held for trading and were, upon Bz LB ARBEER - WREKX
initial recognition, classified by the Group as financial AR AER S EABFEBERIEAF
assets at fair value through profit or loss. BIERZemERE -
25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND 25 HENIRITEBR N EHER
TIME DEPOSITS
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Time deposits — original maturity of THER-REEA
more than three months BB =1EA 13,754 11,645
Restricted bank deposits (Note) BRI RITFER (M5 5,017 5,156
Cash and cash equivalents HeRkBES2ZERY 222,153 199,855
240,924 216,656
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25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND 25 BERBITERREAER

TIME DEPOSITS (continued) (%)
Denominated in T3 & EFE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong Dollars BT 62,923 31,931
Renminbi AR 45,511 108,186
United States Dollars =TT 111,618 60,251
Others H At 20,872 16,288
240,924 216,656
Note: Hiat -

Restricted bank deposits of RMB4,276,000 (2018:
RMB4,169,000) (equivalent to approximately HK$5,017,000
(2018: HK$5,156,000)) can only be applied in the
designated property development projects prior to the
completion of construction.

As at 31 March 2019, the cash and bank balances and
time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to HK$45,511,000 (2018: HK$108,186,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies; however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying periods of between four months and one year
(2018: four months and one year) depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates.
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SR § R 177 KA R %4,276,0007T (ZF
—\FE : AR#4,169,0007T) (HHERH
5,017,000/ 7T (ZZ — J\ % : 5,156,000/
T ERREERTAARIEEYEERE
E °

RZZE—AF=ZA=1+—8 KEEUAR
MABEZRESRBITEHUREHERA
45,511,000% 7t (=Z — /\4F : 108,186,000
BIL) c ARBETAIEBREBRRHMEY
SR RPN R LA B HNE B IR R 51D
MR - EERMNEEERTE)  AEEHE
LRI IRITIEA R SR A H A EE A #
TINEETR -
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—F(CE-N\F:OEAZ-F)HEZE
HER - WIREFE TR KRS -
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26 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE, 26 ENRAREE HtESR
OTHER PAYABLES AND HEEE
PROVISIONS
2019 2018
—B-h#E —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Accounts and bills payable (Note a) FERBE R R EIE (M ita) 740,050 549,993
Accrued liabilities, provisions and EstEE  BEL
other payables H A FE A 5RI8 217,785 216,633
Deferred income (Note b) EEWA (K1 5Eb) 103,300 137,755
Payable for construction work BETIRZEMNTIE 21,552 19,675
Receipt in advance TEURFRIB - 138,524
1,082,687 1,062,580
Less: Current portion A BNEREL1n (1,000,597) (953,372)
Non-current portion FEBNEA SR 1 82,090 109,208
Notes: Hrat -
(@  The accounts and bills payable and other payables (@ ENEREEENUREMENSKRIE
are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled Tt - BEAMEANGEESRNE
within credit terms of two months, extending up to F BZUTEEZE=@A -

three months.

The carrying amounts of accounts and other HREMEREREMENRELAGR

payables are considered to be the same as their fair M ALHEEAEHEAZSRR
values, due to their short term nature. HEAFME-

At 31 March 2019, the aging analysis of the accounts RZFE-—NF=RA=+—H " EME

and bills payable based on invoice date are as REEBEREZZELSHZERRS TN

follows: e

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZE-)\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

0 — 30 days 0&30H 268,120 230,838

31 - 60 days 31£260H 112,284 124,582

61 — 90 days 61E90H 147,826 121,598

Over 90 days 90H A 211,820 72,975

740,050 549,993
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26 ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE,
OTHER PAYABLES AND
PROVISIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(o)

The balance mainly represented government grants
received in respect of the subsidies from The
People’s Government of the Dushan County, Guizhou
Province (the “Dushan County Government”) for the
Group’s manufacturing company located in Dushan
County, Guizhou Province, the PRC. These grants
are held as deferred income and recognised to the
income statement on a systematic basis to match
with the costs or the assets’ useful lives that they
are intended to compensate in accordance with the
agreements with the Dushan County Government.
During the year ended 31 March 2019, subsidies of
HK$33,112,000 (2018: HK$26,338,000) had been
recognised and included in subsidy income of “Other
income and gains, net” in the consolidated income
statement.

The balance also included other subsidies for
purchase of machinery which are going to be
recognised over their useful lives.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, subsidies of
HK$33,112,000 (2018: HK$26,338,000) had been
recognised and included in subsidy income of “Other
income and gains, net” in the consolidated income
statement.

The movements in deferred income are as follows:

At the beginning of year A F )

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Additions NE
Amortisation 5H
Exchange realignment E XA
At the end of year RF R
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26 ENRAREE - HttEAR
W\ BE e

Bt - (&)

(o)

Y B — Rl Pl 88 2 3]

HHFTZHEEMNEBLUEARRE
(IBILGEET]) M A S BN
BEEMEELGZEEXERRNHER
BATHB) o X SMBIR R G EERN
EREEERABRUESZSEEE
RIR TS | BT AT L 2 R B
ZHAREENAERAFH - REE
—E-hE=ZA=1+—-BILEE B

2 f/ Bh FX 1833,112,00008 7T (=&
— J\4F : 26,338,000 7T) W5t A&Z A&
s R A T MU A R a - F58 ]+
p i N

ERTEEANBERS Z LM
B BRE A EAFNER

REBEE-_Z—HhhF=-A=+—HLF
€+ %85 3 1E33,112,0000 T (=&
— J\4F : 26,338,000/ 1) Bt ALZA
Was R A T MU A R as - F58 ]+
B BRI A o

FEEWRA ZZEEIMT -
2019 2018
—®-nE  -T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
137,755 146,306
= 3,693
5,004 =
(33,112) (26,338)
(6,347) 14,094
103,300 137,755
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27 BANK BORROWINGS

Unsecured HEL A
Current portion B B & 55
Non-current portion JERNER &R

Under the relevant bank loan agreements of certain
term loans, the relevant banks have the overriding
right to demand for repayment even though the
schedule repayment dates are beyond one year.
Due to the oversight of management, the Group had
not applied for and thus had not obtained before
the year end date a confirmation from the banks
to waive such rights for its bank loans totalling
HK$364,750,000. As a result, certain of these loans
with scheduled repayment dates beyond one year
amounted to HK$235,500,000 had to be classified
as current liabilities as at 31 March 2019.

As a result of the foregoing, as at 31 March 2019,
the Group has not complied with a restrictive
financial covenant requirement of certain bank
borrowings amounted to HK$484,750,000 (including
those loans described in the preceding paragraph),
which included bank borrowings of HK$325,500,000
with scheduled repayment dates beyond one
year after 31 March 2019. Under the relevant
bank loan agreements, such non-compliance of
covenant may cause the relevant bank borrowings
of HK$484,750,000 become immediately due and
payable should the lenders exercise their rights
under the loan agreements. In addition, such
non-compliance also triggered the cross-default
terms of certain other current bank borrowings
of HK$173,543,000 and bank borrowings of
HK$32,000,000 with scheduled repayment dates
beyond one year after 31 March 2019, which may
also cause these loans to become immediately due
and payable should the lenders exercise their rights
under the loan agreements. Accordingly, the total
relevant bank borrowings of HK$690,293,000 were
included in current liabilities as at 31 March 2019.
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27 RITEE

2019 2018
—B-nFE T )\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH#T FHT
810,106 237,140

- 294,750

810,106 531,890

RIEEZETTHERZHBBEITERD
HoORFEBETEERHA—F14 A
RITHEBRHNEKEBZZEMEEF -
MR EEEBZHR AEBITERE
% BRI st H IR 1T B ;A $£864,750,000
BILARITHBRLTANEREE B
EMZER Al R=ZZF—HhLF=A
—t+—H ETEEEEBHE &%
2 B $235,500,0005% 7T 7B 9 18 AR &
BfEo

FwmEXFM R-_ZE—HLE=A
Z—t+—H AXEBRGEETAEK
484,750,000 T2 H FTRITEE (8
LB ZZEER) 2R MHEE
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27 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

27 RITERE &)

Bank borrowings bear average interest at 3.7% per
annum (2018: 2.9%).

At 31 March 2019, the maturity analysis of the
Group’s bank borrowings following the contracted

RITEERFHFERNEITR(ZE—N
F29%)EE o

RZZE-NF=A=+—8 x&EK
BREFHMRHEZRITEERH MM

repayment schedule would be as follows: S 8
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 year or on demand R—FRFILEK 688,106 237,140
Between 1 and 2 years A —FETBERE 102,000 119,250
Between 2 and 5 years HiBREETBBRSF 20,000 175,500
810,106 531,890

The Group’s banking facilities are secured by
the corporate guarantees given by the Company
and certain subsidiaries of the Company.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank
borrowings approximate their fair values. Except
for a bank borrowing of RMB80,000,000 (2018:
RMB57,000,000), equivalent to HK$93,863,000
(2018: HK$70,494,000), all other bank borrowings
are denominated in HKD.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has undrawn

uncommitted bank facilities amounting to
HK$56,377,000 (2018: HK$421,433,000).
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28 DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets
during the year are as follows:

Gross deferred tax liabilities

PR R EE

28 IR IE
EEMBAGREERNFAZEE A
e

EERHRERE

At 1 April 2017

RZE—+tFMA—H

Deferred tax debited FARERNE
to equity during the year ZIEERIE
Deferred tax credited FNEFF ARG R
to the income statement ZIEERIE
during the year (Note 11) (BsE11)
Exchange realignment 0 5, A &
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\F
and 1 April 2018 ZA=+-8Bk
—E2-\FWMA—AH
Deferred tax debited FARNERMR
to equity during the year ZIELERIE
Deferred tax debited FARKEE R
to the income statement 2RI
during the year (Note 11) (Bi&t11)
Exchange realignment [E i =
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NEF
=B=+—H
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Depreciation

allowance
in excess
of related
depreciation Others Total
nERE
HLBEENE
HEm Hity @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
29,072 1,471 30,543
5,821 - 5,821
(185) - (185)
1,323 - 1,323
36,031 1,471 37,502
13,977 - 13,977
- 4,139 4,139
1,667 - 1,667
51,675 5,610 57,285
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28 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 28 ELEHIE ()

Gross deferred tax assets FEERIEEEAR
Deferred
subsidy
income Others Total
EEBEWA Hit mst
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—+FMA—H 36,575 119 36,694
Deferred tax debited FARKEE R
to the income statement BRI
during the year (Note 11) (Biz11) (6,518) 42 (6,476)
Exchange realignment PE 5= 3,479 @) 3,477
At 31 March 2018 RZB-N\F
and 1 April 2018 ZA=+—8k
—E-\FWMA—H 33,536 159 33,695
Deferred tax debited FARKEE MR
to the income statement ZIRER IR
during the year (Note 11) (Bi#t11) (6,756) 512 (6,244)
Exchange realignment BE X R (1,547) 16 (1,531)
At 31 March 2019 RZT-NF
ZAR=+—H 25,233 687 25,920

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$19,959,000 (2018: HK$16,397,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose.

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland
China of HK$154,754,000 (2018: HK$119,765,000)
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.
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28 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated since 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2019, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
The aggregate amount of temporary differences on
undistributed profit of the subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately HK$491,372,000
(2018: HK$519,862,000) at 31 March 2019.
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29 SHARE CAPITAL 29 M7
2019 2018
—E-NE —T)\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Authorised: JETE
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,0000% & i%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each HEC.10E T LBk 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRHMZE
438,960,000 (2018: 438,460,000) 438,960,000% (=& — \F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 438,460,0000% ) & i%
HE010E T Z HilKR 43,896 43,846
A summary of movements in the Company’s share RNATIEANESHFEDO T -
capital is as follows:
Number of Share
shares Share premium
in issue capital account Total
2ET
BB EE LN R R E R @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2018 RZE-N\EMNA—A 438,460,000 43,846 154,672 198,518
Share options exercised (Note) 17 {5 B AR 4 (#:7) 500,000 50 1,343 1,393
At 31 March 2019 RZE—-AF=A=+—H 438,960,000 43,896 156,015 199,911
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—tEMA—H 428,360,000 42,836 139,642 182,478
Share options exercised (Note) 77 {# & W1 (47:2) 10,100,000 1,010 15,030 16,040
At 31 March 2018 RZE—N\F=A=+—H 438,460,000 43,846 154,672 198,518
Note: Hiat -

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the subscription
rights attaching to 500,000 share options were exercised
at the subscription prices of HK$2.262 per share (Note
30), resulting in the issue of 500,000 shares for a total
cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$1,131,000.
An amount of HK$262,000 was transferred from the
share-based payment reserve to share premium upon the
exercise of the share options. As at the exercise day, the
market price approximates to HK$2.50 per share.
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company
terminated the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 20 August 2002 (the “Old Share
Option Scheme”) and adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) pursuant
to a resolution passed in the annual general meeting
dated 20 August 2012 which became effective on
the same date. The New Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for ten years commencing from the
effective date, after which period no further options
will be granted but the provisions of the New Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
option granted prior thereto or otherwise as may be
required in accordance with the provisions of the
New Share Option Scheme.

The Old Share Option Scheme

The Company operated the Old Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the Old Share Option Scheme
included the directors, including independent
non-executive directors, other employees of the
Group, suppliers of goods or services to the
Group, customers of the Group, any person or
entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group, the Company’s
shareholders and any non-controlling interests in
the Company’s subsidiaries. The Old Share Option
Scheme became effective on 20 August 2002 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, would
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Old
Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Old Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30 BERESTE &)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the
date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer
of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Upon termination of the Old Share Option Scheme,
no further options will be granted thereunder;
however, the rules of the Old Share Option Scheme
will remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of options
granted prior to its termination or otherwise as may
be required in accordance with the rules of the Old
Share Option Scheme. As at 31 March 2019, there
were 3,250,000 options (2018: 3,250,000 options)
granted but not yet exercised under the Old Share
Option Scheme.
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The New Share Option Scheme

The Company operates the New Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the New Share Option Scheme
include the directors, including independent non-
executive directors, other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, any person or entity
that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group, the Company’s
shareholders and any non-controlling interests in
the Company’s subsidiaries. The New Share Option
Scheme became effective on 20 August 2012 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the New Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30 BRETE (&)
The New Share Option Scheme (continued) HEBRAESTE (Z)

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the
date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer
of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

As at 31 March 2019, there were 3,100,000 options

(2018: 2,100,000 options) granted but not yet
exercised under the New Share Option Scheme.
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30 BIREE &
The following share options were outstanding under IR ERERHE 2 R E IR EETE ([3%
the Old Share Option Scheme and New Share Z:1E8 ) RFARNKRITE ZERELWD
Option Scheme (the “Schemes”) during the year: T
2019 —E2-NE
Number of share options
BREHE
Date of Granted Exercised Lapsed Exercise
share options At 1 April during during during At 31 March price per
granted 2018 the year the year the year 2019 Exercise period share
R=2-NfF ~ Ro8-nF S8R
REBRERSE DmA-B  REARE  RERGE  RERZM ZAZt-RH M ﬁ%
V-7
Directors
Bz
JE‘L‘ Tat Luen 4/1/2010 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 4/1/2013-3/1/2020 2.102
PR
Hui Ka Po, Alex 10/3/2016 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 17/2/2019-9/3/2026 1.160
FRR
Wong Chi Wai 29/3/2011 300,000 - - - 300,000 29/3/2011-28/3/2021 2792
i 11112017 400,000 - - - 400,000 7/7/2017-6/7/2027 2.262
1712017 100,000 - - - 100,000 13/9/2017-6/7/2027 2.262
9/7/2018 - 100,000 - - 100,000 13/9/2018-8/7/2028 2470
Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian 29/3/2011 300,000 - - - 300,000 29/3/2011-28/3/2021 2.192
BEm 9/7/12018 - 100,000 - - 100,000 13/9/2018-8/7/2028 2470
Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul 7/7/2017 100,000 - - - 100,000 7/7/2017-6/7/2027 2.262
LI 9/7/2018 - 100,000 - - 100,000 9/7/2018-8/7/2028 2470
Cheung Wang Ip 9/7/2018 - 100,000 - - 100,000 21/7/2018-8/7/2028 2470
Ri%
Other employees
HibEE
In aggregate 29/3/2011 650,000 - - - 650,000 29/3/2011-28/3/2021 2.192
At 11/2017 400,000 - (400,000 - - 1/712017-6/7/2027 2,262
11112017 100,000 - (100,000) - - 1/12/2017-6/7/2021 2.262
9712018 - 100,000 - - 100,000 9/7/2018-8/7/2028 2470
9/7/2018 - 400,000 - - 400,000 9/7/2018-8/7/2028 2470
9712018 - 300,000 - - 300,000 9/7/2019-8/7/2028 2470
9/7/2018 - 300,000 - - 300,000 9/7/2020-8/7/2028 2410

5,350,000 1,500,000 (500,000) 6,350,000
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30 EBREFTE(w)
The following share options were outstanding under RIEEBRETSI R EREE ([3Z
the Old Share Option Scheme and New Share SED)RERDERTEZEREND
Option Scheme (the “Schemes”) during the year: T (&)
(continued)
2018 —E—N\F
Number of share options
BREHA
Granted Exercised Lapsed Exercise
Date of share At 1 April during during during At 31 March price per
options granted 2017 the year the year* the year \ 2018  Exercise period Share
R = = N = 0\ &8
REBREES  MA-B  REARL RERTE  REAXR ZAZT-R ORH ﬂﬁ%
AT
Directors
E%
Cheng Chor Kit 10/3/2016 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) - - 10/3/2016-9/3/2026 1,160
BRE
Liu Tat Luen 4/1/2010 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 4/1/2013-3/1/2020 2102
BER 10/3/2016 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) - - 10/3/2016-9/3/2026 1.160
Cheng Tsz To 10/3/2016 500,000 - (500,000) - - 10/3/2016-9/3/2026 1.160
475
Cheng Tsz Hang 10/3/2016 500,000 - (500,000) - - 10/3/2016-9/3/2026 1.160
B+6
Chin Wee Hon (Note) 10/3/2016 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - 10/11/2017-9/3/2026 1.160
R&H (W)
Hui Ka Po, Alex 10/3/2016 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 17/2/2019-9/3/2026 1.160
FRR
Wong Chi Wai 29/3/2011 300,000 - - - 300,000 29/3/2011-28/3/2021 2.792
Bl 19/3/2013 500,000 = (500,000) = - 19/3/2013-18/3/2023 0974
11112017 - 400,000 - - 400,000 7/7/2017-6/7/2027 2.262
71712017 - 100,000 - - 100,000 13/9/2017-6/7/2027 2.262
Sun Kwai Yu, Vivian 29/3/2011 300,000 - - - 300,000 29/3/2011-28/3/2021 2792
BEm 71712017 - 400,000 400,000) - - T/7/2017- 61712027 2.062
11112017 - 100,000 (100,000) - - 13/9/2017-6/7/2027 2.262
Cheng Kwok Kin, Paul 10/3/2016 200,000 - (200,000) - - 23/6/2017-9/3/2026 1.160
BEy 1112017 - 100,000 - - 100,000 7/7/2017- 6/7/2027 226
Cheung Wang Ip 10/3/2016 200,000 - (200,000) - - 21/7/2017-9/3/2026 1.160
RRE 71112017 - 100,000 (100,000) - - 2A/12017- 6/7/2027 2.262
Other employees
HftfER
In aggregate 19/10/2009 500,000 - (500,000) - - 1910/2012-18/10/2019 1.550
At 29/3/2011 650,000 - - - 650,000 29/3/2011-28/3/2021 2.792
10/3/2016 300,000 - (300,000) - - 15/5/2017-9/3/2026 1.160
10/3/2016 300,000 = (300,000) - - 3/6/2017-9/3/2026 1.160
71712017 - 400,000 - - 400,000 7/7/2017- 6/7/2027 2.262
11112017 - 100,000 - - 100,000 112/2017-6/7/2027 2.262
13,750,000 1,700,000  (10,100,000) = 5,350,000
Note: Hiat -
Mr. Chin Wee Hon resigned as an executive director on 12 REMEACDR_E—+tF+—A+_HE
November 2017. ERITESB -
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, 1,500,000
share options were granted. The fair value of the
equity- settled share options under the New Share
Option Scheme granted during the year ended 31
March 2019 was estimated at HK$1,094,000, as at
the date of grant using the binomial valuation model,
the share option expense of HK$863,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2019 is recognised.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, 17,300,000
share options were granted, of which 3,000,000
share options were subjected to the vesting period
ranging from 14 months to 36 months. The fair
value of the equity-settled share options under the
New Share Option Scheme granted was estimated
at HK$5,814,000, as at the date of grant using the
binomial valuation model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted, of which the Group recognised a share
option expense of HK$117,000 (2018: HK$317,000)
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, no share
option is lapsed (2018: Nil).

The following table lists the inputs to the model
used:

2019
Dividend yield (%) 4.46
Volatility (%) 48.37
Employee exit rate post-vesting (%) 1.57-2.21
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2.202
Expected life of options (year) 1.769
Prevailing market price (HK$ per share) 2.47
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30 BRESE(#)

HE-_Z—NWF=A=+—HLEFE
2% H1,500,0000 R - HE - T
—NWE=ZA=1+—BLtEEREBEFER
BB EREBRAEEERE 2 ATE
FR-EAGEEARNT LA SE
1,004,000 T  HEZT—NLF=
B=Z+—HILFE CEIABREMAX
863,00058 TT °

HE-_ZE—X"F=ZA=+—AHLHF
& - 2% $17,300,0001p B AZ 4 - E
3,000,000 & i 1 2 F 8 B T 1448
RZE36EAR - RIEFERETEERD
BAEEERE AFEFEHAZ-ER
i EE X R B 8 {E 545,814,000
BT WaT RIF SRR 2 53K
Mgt ERAEEHEREE-_Z—N
FZAZ+—BLEFEZERERY
117,000/ 7T (ZZ — )\ 4 : 317,000/
JL) °

BE-_ZT-NF=ZA=1t—HLFE"
MEBREC R (ZF—/\F: &) -

—E—-NF
AR B2 (%) 4.46
R 18 (%) 48.37
BEBBE(FEBE) (%) 1.57-2.21
4 2, B T 2 (%) 2.202
B 2 TERT 8 () 1.769
RITME(ERBT) 2.47
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30 BEBRESE 2
The expected life of the options is based on the BEBRENBAFHDNEREELSIEE
historical data and is not necessarily indicative of F o ORWMBEIERAIEEH IR A ITEE -
the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected T8 5% 08 [ R FE 52O B) A] R R oK SR B B
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical MEBRER  BARVAEBRGER -
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome.
No other feature of the options granted was HEATEEBEYES RO EREY
incorporated into the measurement of fair value. H b 4 o
The following share options were outstanding under FR - ZEEE TN ARITE R
the Schemes during the year: m
2019 2018
—ZE-NEF —E-N\F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
nfEF 3 InwEF
TEE BEREZE TEE EREHE
HKS$ per HKS$ per
share Sshare
=R BT BT
At the beginning of year R4 4] 2.120 5,350,000 1.453 13,750,000
Granted during the year 4 R #% 4! 2.470 1,500,000 2.262 1,700,000
Exercised during the year 4 7T {# 2.262 (500,000) 1.236  (10,100,000)
At the end of year REx 2.191 6,350,000 2120 5,350,000

As at 31 March 2019, the Company had 6,350,000
(2018: 5,350,000) share options outstanding under
the Schemes. Should they be fully exercised,
the Company will receive HK$13,916,000 (2018:
HK$11,342,000) (before issue expenses). The
exercise in full of these share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 6,350,000 (2018: 5,350,000)
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$635,000 (2018:
HK$535,000) and share premium of approximately
HK$13,281,000 (2018: HK$10,807,000) (before
issue expenses).
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RZEBE—-NF=A=+—H8 AQF
RZERT 8B T #56,350,00010 (=&
— \4F : 5,350,00013 ) R 1T1# 2 B A%
o MZEERBEERRITE  ARF)
# Wz 13,916,000/ 7T (=& — )\ F -
11,342,000/ L) CRINBREITHR ) o
BEARNT ZEEEARE BT
% 5 B IR R % 8 BURE 9D 55 176,350,000
B (== — A\ : 5,350,0000%) KA 7]
I 3B A% K 5B 9D #T 18 IR AN635,000% JT
— T — )\4 : 535,000 7T) A R HD
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RESERVES 31 w#fE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the REBRAFEE MBEFE 2 HEHEREE
movements therein for the current and prior years MEEZEFIBSE RNV BRRZEEER
are presented in the consolidated statement of FERANET -
changes in equity of the financial statements.
The contributed surplus of the Group represents the REEBZ#MABBERER—NAANE
difference between the nominal value of the shares WMAtHETZEEBEAMKERER
of the aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries ABRAZRMHEERANARRZER
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation on 7 SMBETROEE = -
April 1998 and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.
Other reserve represents the excess of the HEMREERRE B EG IR ERS
consideration over the share of net assets acquired FIEEEFE 2T
from non-controlling interests.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 EEBMALIRBZRER
AND BALANCES
Compensation of key management personnel of the AEFEETEEEAB ZFH M -
Group:
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances e EUREVER
and benefits in kind 14,049 19,061
Performance related bonuses BRI 2 AL - 3,858
Equity-settled share option expense AR E 2 BN 117 262
Pension scheme contributions BIREET IR 90 102
Total compensation paid to key ENETEEBABE TS
management personnel 14,256 23,283
Amount due from non-controlling & U — R B B A A
interest of a subsidiary (Note) FEFE AR 2 2 SRIA (ML) 10,560 -

Note:

The balance represents amount due from non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary with no interest charged.
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 EEBMALTXRGERES &)
AND BALANCES (continued)
Further details of the directors’ and the chief EERERTTBRABHMZ#—F15
executive’s emoluments are included in Note 10 to BHEHRAEREMFTEI0 -
the financial statements.
33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 33 MEBHERERMT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant (a) HEVE BERRBAEBRE
and equipment
In the consolidated cash flow statement, REERERERAN  HEWE -
proceeds from disposal of property, plant and MR N EEPTE A
equipment comprise:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Net book amount: IR FE -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RRE
(Note 15) (Ktit15) 9,201 2,031
Gain on disposal of property, LEME - BER&
plant and equipment (Note 6) 2 Wz (B ie) 1,438 781
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE BERHK
property, plant and equipment Fri5 I8 10,639 2,812
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33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation

33 LERERERMT &)

This section sets out an analysis of net debt
and the movement in net debt for each of the

periods presented.

Cash and cash equivalents
(Note 25)

Liquid investment (Note 24)

Bank borrowings (Note 27)

ReMEEERY

(Htat25)

B E (K1 5t24)
IRITEE (K iz27)

Net debts FER

Cash and liquid investments

Gross debt — floating interest rate B BE -2 BRI X
Net debts FE
Note:

Reki@trE

Liquid investments comprise current investments that
are traded in an active market, being the Group’s
financial assets held at fair value through profit or

loss.

Net debt as at 31 March 2018 RZE-N\E=A=+-H
L FEB

Net cash movement ReBeFE

Exchange realignment 0 5 A%

Other non-cash movements EERe %

Net debt as at 31 March 2019 RZE-N=R=1+—-H
LFE

FEBHR
7 5 %0 1) & B 9 P 51 R OB
BEOTMED :
2019 2018
—B-h#F —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
222,153 199,855
14,140 31,254
(810,106) (531,890)
(573,813) (300,781)
236,293 231,109
(810,106) (631,890)
(573,813) (300,781)
GER

MBUERERENERMISEEEZR
PRE  AKERAERBRGERA
FEIGEZEMEE -

Cash

and cash Liquid Bank
equivalents investment borrowings Total
RERREERY RBUERE BITEE Eh)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET A
199,855 31,254 (531,890) (300,781)
27,540 (17,149) (282,419) (272,028)
(6,242) 53 4,203 (986)
- (18) - (18)
222,153 14,140 (810,106) (673,813)
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T
period are as follows:
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34 ZEHE S ZEMTA

RBEHR  SELRTAZEREEN

2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\5F
Financial Financial Financial assets
assets at fair assets at at fair value
value through amortised  through profit Loans and
profit or loss cost or loss receivables
BATE RE -GN |
S8R RAGEH 1) Rk
SREE SREE SREE JE Y 3R IE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets tREE
Accounts and bills receivable ERERRER - 312,149 - 370,326
Deposits and other receivables 124 J E i el 08 - 71,571 - 42,886
Time deposits EHER - 13,754 - 11,645
Cash and bank balances Be M7 - 227,170 - 205,011
Financial assets at fair value ARBaRATEYIR
through profit or loss LEMEE 14,140 = 31,254 -
14,140 624,644 31,254 629,868
Financial liabilities tRBE
Financial liabilities at g 3D g
amortised cost: PREME:
Accounts and bills payable ERNERRER 740,050 549,993
Financial liabilities included FTAH A E R FIE R
in other payables, accrued [ aE
liabilities ZeMmARE 138,898 60,256
Bank borrowings BIIEE 810,106 531,890
1,689,054 1,142,139
Note: Hiat -
The fair values of the financial assets at amortised cost REBEKAAENSREENATFEEAR
approximate their carrying amounts. HEEES -
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35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

35 ARABZUBMRRARRZAEE

POSITION AND RESERVE )
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company AR T ZMBMRRE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN o 3 1,105,328 1,085,733
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TEAS 3R - 1
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHER 5,416 1,479
Total current assets MEBBEBTE 5,416 1,480
Total assets WEE 1,110,744 1,087,213
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity AATERSEEAEMER
holders of the Company
Share capital fi& A< 43,896 43,846
Reserves (Note) R (Haz) 630,475 669,099
Total equity RSB 674,371 712,945
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables — fEzt & & & H {th &~ ZUB 6,070 3,074
Bank borrowings RITIEE 429,750 75,500
Tax payable FE B 1R 553 944
Total current liabilities RBAGEEE 436,373 79,518
Non-current liability kRBERE
Bank borrowings RITEE - 294,750
Total liability weE - 374,268
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 1,110,744 1,087,213
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35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 35 ARF2HBRRRRHEE

POSITION AND RESERVE By (&)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
Note: Hiat -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AR ZFERBEWT
Share Share-based Capital
premium payment redemption Contributed Retained
account reserve reserve surplus profits Total
DYl
REBRH RERE
RARER DES1 ®wE  BARK  REERAN fct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET TET TET FET
At 31 March 2017 and R=ZZB—+F=A=+-Bk
1 April 2017 ZT-tFMA-A 139,642 5,506 14 104,750 441,853 691,765
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - (818) (818)
Final 2017 dividend paid ENZE—tERHAKRE
(Note 12) (Hit12) = = - - (21,518) (21,518)
Interim 2018 dividend paid B ZZE—-N\EFEHRE
(Note 12) (Hit12) = = - - (13,063) (13,083)
Issue of shares (Note 29) BT (Hf7229) 15,030 (3,560) - - - 11,470
Equity-settled share option NEREE ZBRERY
expense (Note 30) (#t:230) - 1,263 - - - 1,263
At 31 March 2018 and RZZ-\#=ZA=+-HBEk
1 April 2018 —Z-\$MA—A 154,672 3,209 14 104,750 406,454 669,099
Profit for the year FERA - - - - 3,211 3,211
Final 2018 dividend paid BERZZ-N\EREBE
(Note 12) (Hit12) - - - - (30,728) (30,728)
Interim 2019 dividend paid BRZZ-NET1HERE
(Note 12) (Hit12) - - - - (13,168) (13,168)
Issue of shares (Note 29) BIRG (A17229) 1,343 (262) = = - 1,081
Equity-settled share option WEREE 2 BRERS
expense (Note 30) (H3230) - 980 - - - 980
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NE=R=1+—-8 156,015 3,927 14 104,750 365,769 630,475
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35

36

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the then combined net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the same
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
Company’s contributed surplus is available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie under
certain circumstances prescribed by section 54
thereof.

OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS

(@) As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties
(Note 16) under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms of one year.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

35

36

Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth years, F_EERF
inclusive (BREEEMSE)
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ARABZHBRRARREEE
B

KRB ZBABBRIERER —FAMK
BZHBARERZAHEERERD
RRABIRZERXZMETROEEZ Z
L

REARE-NN\—FREDE - HFE54
GRETARRARI A AR THERATABAR
BIEREDIRR,/ REYDIK

REEOTH

(@) EHRHBAA
AEEREELHOLTHEHE
BEME (M16) - HAKLER
MEEZHBA—F -

RZZB-NF=ZA=+—H &&
BAREN T 5 B R 8 2 HE A
AZTAIHHEEEMOMELZ
ARZFEHSELBOT :

2019 2018
—2-nE —2-)\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
77 3,672

7 27

84 3,699
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36 OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b) As lessee
The Group leases certain of its office properties
and warehouses under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to two
years.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as

36 K&EMBANZTH #)

(b) EHREHEA
AEERBEEHORERRAES
FMAEMERBE - MERLK
ERmETZHPEN T —EMF -

R-ZZE-hF=ZA=1+—HB F*&
BARE N T 5 HAfE 2 HY 2 S AT 3
HREHOMEN 2 RE&IER

follows: SHEFEWOT
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Within one year —F R 755 1,107
In the second to fifth years, F_EERF
inclusive (BREEEMSF) 449 163
1,204 1,270
37 COMMITMENTS 37 EIE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the RERBITNERMAEEZEARAZ A
year but not yet incurred is as follows: ™~
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NMRE 175,122 216,937
Properties under development BERPMERKREME
and investment properties 475,602 489,466
Investment in associates NN & - 18,5649
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38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

From March 2014 to March 2019, the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”) issued estimated
assessments (“EA”) for the years of assessment from
2007/08 (which were statutorily time-barred after
31 March 2014) to 2012/13 (which were statutorily
time-barred after 31 March 2019) with total tax
demanded of approximately HK$52,281,000 to
certain subsidiaries of the Group (the “Subsidiaries”).
The EA were issued as a consequence of the tax
audit being carried out on the tax affairs of the
Subsidiaries. The Subsidiaries lodged objections
to the EA and the IRD subsequently ordered the
Subsidiaries to purchase tax reserve certificates
(“TRC”) in the total amount of approximately
HK$25,408,000 and to holdover the balance on the
condition that an 8.125% annual interest (varies from
time to time as gazetted) will be charged should be
balance become payable upon settlement of the
objections.

The tax audit case of certain of the Subsidiaries has
been concluded in March 2019 subsequent to the
management’s submission of settlement proposals
of tax, penalty and judgement interest covering up
to year of assessment 2017/18 of approximately
HK$4,616,000 to the IRD in late 2018 and early
2019. In this connection, the Group has recognised
a taxation charge of HK$4,616,000 upon such
settlement with the IRD during the year ended
31 March 2019. Overpaid TRC of approximately
HK$15,467,000 paid by these subsidiaries with
the tax audit settled has been refunded to these
subsidiaries accordingly after the balance sheet
date.

The tax audit case of the remaining subsidiaries
is still ongoing, EA up to 2012/13 with total tax
demanded of HK$22,713,000 in respect of these
remaining subsidiaries is still in dispute with IRD,
and the TRC in the amount of HK$5,325,000 for
these remaining subsidiaries is still retained by the
IRD. The management is continuing the discussion
with the IRD for the tax audit case in respect of
these remaining subsidiaries, and there is no specific
basis which indicated potential adjustments were
warranted. As such, the management considers no
additional tax provision for Hong Kong profits tax is
required at this stage.
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BE-_ZT-ME=RAE_ZT—NF=8 -
HEREBER ((BABRBER]) AAEE 2
AETHBAR ([ZEKBAR]) %
R-ZEELF /ZENFEHEHR=ZZT—H
FZA=Z+—BBEEXRBE=Z
——F/—=F(HERZ=ZZE—NAF=A
=+ —HEBEERERBRHEE 2B
BRI BT A ([ERTREE D) A £4
£52,281,000/8 7T © i ETaHE T A ¥ 5%
EHBRARZHREEEETHIEESM
B ZEMBARE HEFERY
REREEHRIEREEDTSZEMNBR
RIBE AL A25,408,000/8 7T 2 4
A ([FERF]D RSEHES 2
fin REFRR B ES A58 - BIBIRER|
£8.125% (TN EF L B M AT L & B)) Y ER
FE -

EEBER-_Z—N\FEREZZ—NF
NAEBERERRRBEE-_E—tF
S N\ERBEEZ2HIE  SRRATE
BI85 B 44,616,000 T 2 &8 E &
2% ZEWBRARIZHEEEDER
“E-NFZALR At REIEZ
E-NFZAZ+—HLFE  A£E
HESHEREAEHEERDERY
T8 7 114,616,000/ 7T » © & R 1% =
BZZENBRAMZHBZHEHRAELN
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39 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@

On 29 September 2017, the Group entered
into disposal agreements with an independent
third party, to dispose of its entire equity
interest in Billion United Investment Limited,
Profitsafe Investment Limited, Profitpower
Investment (Hong Kong) Limited, and their
subsidiaries, at the face value of the share
capital. The total cash consideration is
approximately HK$594, the resulting gain on
disposal of the subsidiaries of HK$2,072,000
was recognised in the consolidated income
statement during the year ended 31 March
2018.
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39 HEHE A A

@ RZZE—tFALAZ+hnBE =K
SEE—EZBIYFE=FFIVHE
W - AR EE L & H X Billion
United Investment Limited * & %
"EBRAR EAKREBRAR
REMB AR 250 E - BED
RBHS94E T - Rl EZM B
AR E & 2 32,072,000 T A
BEz_Z2—/\F#=ZA=+—HL
FEZEANRERNER -

Note HK$’'000
B 5 FETT
Cash consideration REeERE 1
Identifiable assets and liabilities EHENRINEERERE
disposed of
Cash Re (1,014)
Other receivables H b & W Gk IE (1,577)
Non-controlling interests JEIE TR 2 (48,733)
Accrued expense FERTRX 4,259
Amount due to non-controlling B~ SR I I SR R0
shareholder 34,570
Release of exchange fluctuation 7 B B 5% B 1
reserve 14,566
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR W= 6 2,072
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

On 19 January 2018, the Group entered (o)
into a disposal agreement with an individual,
independent third party, to dispose of its entire
equity interest in Shaoguan Jianze Smart
Electric Motor Company Limited, for a cash
consideration of RMB100,000 (equivalent to
HK$120,000). The gain on disposal of the
subsidiary of HK$8,054,000 was recognised in
the consolidated income statement during the

(b)

year ended 31 March 2018.

Cash consideration

Identifiable assets and liabilities
disposed of
Other receivables
Accounts and other payables
Tax payable
Release of exchange fluctuation
reserve

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

KIN YAT HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEREARAR

PR R EE

39 HEMEB AT (&)

RZEBE—N\F—A+NA  x£EE
H—ZEAABIE=FI L HER
& WIRIR SR E ARK100,000
7T (#8% 7M120,000/ 7T) & E
REBEEEREERERAAIZ
ZEEARME - HEWB QR 2
8,054,000 TREBE T — N\F
ZAZt+—BLEFEZHEANRE
RINEER -

Note HK$’000

B 5 FE T

ReRE 120
DHETHINEERER

H b fE W FR IR (208)

JE A BR 70 e E4th FE - 7R0B 213

JET R IR 2,775

AR EE HOR Bt 15
5,154
HEMBR R 2K 6 8,054
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MBEBE

RESULTS

REVENUE

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT/(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

£ |

I 2

BRBADER (B8)

FrigBRx

FRERN/ (B8

T &R

RLORESHABA
RS

BERER

FRBEE
mEEE

BEE
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Year ended 31 March
BE=B=1-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—B-NF —FT-N\F ZEF+tf ZF-RF —T-If
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
4,221,878 3,034,274 2,472,193 2,317,504 2,169,285
129,171 182,325 245,289 (31,574) (115,118)
(18,760) (32,619) (49,048) (40,103 (33,848)
110,411 149,706 196,241 (71,677) (148,966)
112,384 149,821 196,375 (69,843) (121,583)
(1,973) (115) (134) (1,834) (27,383)
110,411 149,706 196,241 (71,677) (148,966)
As at 31 March
R=R=+-H

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE —T-N\F —T—+F —T-AFE _—T-1F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
1,541,484 1,240,511 927,839 863,650 1,008,900
1,847,987 1,623,224 1,225,984 977,103 833,658
3,389,471 2,863,735 2,153,823 1,840,753 1,842,558
(2,040,170)  (1,264,231) (1,011,419 (796,136) (726,901)
(139,375) (441,460) (236,093) (187,241) (159,896)
(2,179,545)  (1,705,691) (1,247,612 (983,377) (886,797)
1,209,926 1,158,044 906,311 857,376 955,761
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